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PROFILE

in April 2002, JT formulated a new corporate strategy called the “JT Brandeing
Declaration” at the time of its “new foundation.” As part of the JT branding strategy, We

seek in our tobacco, pharmaceuticals, and f
satisfy our sharenholders and other stakeholders

oods businesses and all corporate activities to

through the provision of unigue added

value that brings delight to and exceeds the expectations of our customers. This is how T

aims to become @ truly excellent company.

\While implernenting the JT Brandeing Declaration, JT will continue to strive 10 maximize
cash flow, enhance corporate value, and maintain the trust of its shareholders and other

————__

stakeholders.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Japan Tobaco Ing. and Consolidated Subsidiatias / Years endad Marth 31

Milfions of yen Millions of 3.5, dllwrs
2001 2002 20037 2003
For the yean
NEE 52185 .reerreereeressrssssesccnensssissnsesescrs sasssatsssssnnns e | ¥4,501,701 | ¥4,544175 | ¥4,492,264 $37,373
EBITDA. ..o wrvisremenns Ebee et s e R 312,045 334,119 337,297 2,806
NEE IREBME ....covimisrnsreccstsarinun s ssonis ssrsess e e birsrasmses 43,687 36,850 75.302 626
free cash flow (FCF) ... —— 307,311 31,413 170372 1,417
'Atyear-and:
Total assets uerenenee. ¥3,188,230 | ¥3,063,077 | ¥2.957,665 £24,606
Total shareholders' equity ... 1,513,846 1,613,105 1,622,654 13499
Amounts per share {in yen and U.S, dollars): -
NEE INCOME «...cvrrrerseroamssasersssmsemsesmesrssnnrewnnnee | ¥ 21,843 | ¥ 18,425 | ¥ 32,586 § 313
Cash dividends 2pplicable 10 the Year.......imceereersns 8,000 8,000 10,000 83
Notes: 7. Figuret sizted in LS. dollars in this rapart are wanslated solely tor canvenience st ihe Iz of ¥120.20 per $1, the e of gechange as of Marth 34, 2003
{9) As disouwssed In Nmo 2 ) £ and m) = the Miated fimandal efforave Apfil 2000, the consolkbad finantlal stemants hive been prenared In axor-
_ darke Wih new SCEOUMTNG srndadds furfn.moai insorumants, toralgn qumency THASICHING and emmioyecs reliremant bepefits,
) As dscussed In Nowe 3 g} e the riared financial stfaztive from Janusty 1, 2002, goodwil and ather Inwingie assets of o foraigh Conselidmd sub-
- . sidiary have been aerountad for m BECOMGAME with new ceoumung standands, Alss, as decussad in Now 3 ) 1 the conssiidated financial stnements, cHecuve April

2002, the Company changed ts method of acounung 8r the wanskrion it dapanese yen.of the rvenue and dxgense Mecounss of farein Gonsclicisted subsidanes,
2. EBTDA = operating ingome + depredanan ol majie jwed zcsrls - amontzatien of InGnplie fowd asets + emartzation of lonp-erm prepaid ADENses + amuniaEUon
-of poogwil .
T s 3K’=mfmmapmmgamurmhﬂcwmn STng acuvities) exgludmy the following remy:
S e el _ From "aach i Hom opersting acovmes*: Dividends mmdlmnemstmmedmdl:smvﬂm(dz%)llmru\psdmmmﬂtm(az%l
T T Frem meash flow-{ram Inwesting actmibies: Cash cutliow from nurchase &f marketabie saeurites / procsedk {rom safes of marketable seourties / cash outfiow fram purchas

T T s s ol Ivestment secuiiies / b from scles of i satueiues /£ OTher. fam not DusevssrRioed irvesiment socurmes, which or0 inclugied in tre invasiment seeye-
(s tem) T . .
-
-
NET SALES EBITDA NET INCOME . FCF
[Billions of yen) (BtMons of yer) Bulans of yan) " (Bullcns of yen)

Y

n
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FORWARD-LOOKING AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS
This wrvwnwtnn comatns farwandHooking maummatts sbowt cur industry, busines:, plans and obioctves, financis! candinsn and resuls of operations thal are based on our cumem
' and prajsaions, These st Siszuss e expectrtions, Kentfy qisd, dlicums marke ! wend;, commin progctionz of miuls of opere
tons & &f aur fin anda( caneiion, er stae orher farward-oaking miommauon, These forwsrd-ooking statxinen’s ane subjaet 10 vanois known and unkrown Tisks, uncorangas and
wther factor that could case our gl results o diffsr malenially from those suggested by anty forvardJockmg smtemem, We assutme no duty or oifigeticn © updsis any forward-
Jopking stymmant 0f 16 advise of Sy Change in the As5umpaons and faerors on which Viay are based.
Risks, uncanimiet of gther factors thit could cause actusl results w differ materially fram those exprassed in any foraandHosidng sratement Inciuds, without §mitgmon
1, Nealth concems relaang ta the use ot tobacco ProdKYs: ,
2, 1ol or regulatory develapments and changes, mauding. wahout | 1ax i and 5 on Tho zale, MarkaEng and wisge of obaccy progu, and oovemmen.
i Ivesbgauons and prvately imposed smokung restieions.
3, ogalica nt Japan.and elsewhers;
& 6ur abilny to funther diversiy our business bayond the T0DIGE0 INdurwy,
' S, our abilty sfully expand ints? fiy and make 1T gutzicde of Japan,
§. comp 3ad changing farsnces;
7. e rnpact of any sequemions of similar elons;
8, loval and glebal economi condidony; and
9. flucmanons in Joreign exchange tates and the &iw of rew materisls

Japan labacco inc @ Anrvs) Reporl 20463
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1n April 2002, Japan Tobacco nc. (T sormulated s “Flan
»004° medium-Em management plan, which spans the
three years from April 2002 to March 2005. Since then, we
have steadily implemented a range of corresponding intte-
tives. As a result, for fiscal 2003, ended March 31, 2003, we
achieved the nighest levels of operating income and requrring
profit since our incarparation in 1985, In the interest of pro-
viding increased rewms o our shareholders, we increased
the annual shareholder's dividend by ¥2,000, 1 ¥10,000 per
share, induding 2 ¥4,000 inter'lm-dlvidend'.

. Although.we recognize IT's overall business performance is
in kesping with Fian 2004, trie tobacce excise tax hike in '
Japan on July 41,2003, 6 expected 10 adversely impact
domestic cigarete sales yolume, which has graduslly declined
dus to such factors as d graying poputation. increasing health
CONSCIOUSNESS, and more stringent smoking restrictions.

In August 2003, we 2150 reached agreement with Fhifip
Morfis Intermational In<. 10 net renew The licensing agree
ment for the manufactuning and sefling of Marfbore-brand
cigarettes in the Japanese market upon +he expiration of the
contact at the end of April 2005..1T's sales volume is thus
expected 10 substevtially decline in fiscal 2006,

in consigeration of theses changes in our business anviron-
ment, we have formulated our new T PLAN-V" three-yzaf
action plan, from April 1,2003 @ March 31, 2006, anti¢-
jpating medium=10 iong-term changas 0 the business
enwironment and clearly setting and progressing toward

our corparate vision ever the next decade.

//'
(-/ { O i‘ -
Tadashi Ogawa,

Chairman of the Board and Representative Director

Regarding the Companywide panagemant goals set forth
in JT PLANV, we wil zim to achieve EBITDA of ¥360.0 billion
Jor fiscal 2008. Ouf other major goals include the attainment
of & 7% ROE for fiscal 2006 and tota! cumulative frae cash
fow for the three years of the plan of ¥450.0 pillion.

Although the highly challenging nature of our business
snvironment conunues 1o intensify, by firmly implementing
out hew medium-term managsment pian, we will establish a
foundation to enable prafit growth and achiave our COrpo-
rate vision aver the next 10 years—? global growth company

that develops diverss value-creating businesses.

JTRLAN-V Companywide
Management Targets
@ ESITDA; Fiscal 2003:¥337.2 Bilion
_, Fisca) 2006 ¥360.0 billlon
@ ROE: Fiscal 2003: 47%
— Frscal 2006: 7% minimum
. @ Cumulstive free cash flow.

Fiscal 2004-hscal 2006: ¥450.0 bilion

Luikho Mool

Katsuhiko Honda,

president and CEC and Representative Director

Japen Tobacco fac. @ Annusl Report 2003
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JT PLAN-V

1. Individusl Business Segment Mseasuras
Domestic Tobacea Business
In addition to the structural changgs taking place in the
domestic tobacco market, the termination of JT's Marboro
license is expected 10 result in 8 substantizl dip in sales vol-
ume for fiseal 2006, Neverthgless, we will work o expand
the enterpriss value of our domestic tobacco business by
irnplementing 2 fange of measures aimed both at sales
growth strategies and cost structure retorrm.

In s3les growth stratagies, JT has lagged behind in the

growing 1mg-tar and mentho! segmants of the market, and

it will seak o revarse the curent state of market share distri-

bution in its favor with new price strategies, which it impla-
mented with recant cigarette price revisions, and proaciive
marketing of new products. In the premium (¥300 of more
per pack) market segment, the success of our new reducsd-
odor LUCIA product indicates the growth potenual of tha

reduced-oder sector. Through the ongoing introduction of

. new producs, JT will cu'n’vate'reduced-odor progucts inio a

new cigaretie category and boost ts competitive edge by
implemanting a third market revalytion following the previ-
ous milestones of the introduction of filters and charcoal.
The Cornpany will also ¢ancentrate on reforming fs cost
structure for profit growth. We wilt assemble 3 fiexible cost
structure by cutting fixed costs and lowering variabie costs o

safeguard against the risk of business volume dedinz,

Intemational Tobacto Business

Building upon the progress made under Plan 2004, JT will
continue to werk to expand profit in its international tobacco
business through growth in its globa! flagship brands (GFBSs).
By continuing 10 concentrate on core markets and unflinch-
ingly warking to strefgthan its bushaass structure, the inter-

natianal tobaces business will contribute substantially to the

fulfilfment of JT's overall management targets as the driver of
profit growth for the JT Group, While adhering 1o a basic
policy of arganic growth, we will als0 proactively seek collab-
cration or acquisition opparunities if complementary 10 our

business strategy.

Pharmaceuticals Business

JT is working 1o establish its pharmaceuticals business as ong
of its future cash flow generators. The pharmaceunticals divi-
sion's goat in JT PLANSV is to put into ¢linical development
thres additional compounds that have the potential to

become global products.

Foods Rusiness

IT has positioned its foods busingss as its next cash flow
gensrator. Our goal for the foods business in JT PLAN-V is 10
attain profiability at the operating income level and reinforce
the division's business foundation, from which we will make
the foods business a solid generartor of cash flow from the
next medium-term managerment plan anward.

Tne processed food segment has already achieved steady
growth, and the Company will work to further entance s
business value undar JT PLAN-Y. This segment covers the
frozen food, seasoning, bakery item, and chifled food ssetors,
and, in areas requiring additional managemant resources, the
Compzny will proactively seek out partnerships and cofisbo-
rations with other companies.

in the beverage segment of its foods business, JT will
implement comprehensive programs to enhance efficiency

and work 1o attain profrability at the operating income level,

in ather businesses, we will accglerate initiatives to achieve
self-sufficiency for these businesses and radically restructure

thoss businesses that fail to display self-sustaining potential,




-

1. Companywide Measures
To strengthen its corporate ctructure, 5T will revise the orga-
nization and workforce of s corporate administrative division
to further hone its functions and sreamiing its operations.
We will alse consolidate our Group companies’ Ruman
resources and accounting operations in 2 COMMON SEIVCe
center, thereby enabhng us to maximize cost performance.
As 3 result of the integration of facilities and other initiz-
tives 10 improve cost-competitiveness in it domiestic tobacee
pusiness, JT expécts approximately 4,000 jobs 1o be made
redundant. and it will offer voluntary retirernent packages

1o eligible workers.

1. Dividends and Financiat Stravegles
1T plans te increase sharahoider dwidends gradually, contin-
gent on its atmainment of its medium-term plan targets and
+he medium-te-long-term profit outicok.

IT's finangia! srategies are aimed at optimum capital
allocation, including investmaents in current and future busi-
nesses, the acquisition of external resources, the reduction
of interest-bearing ¢ebX, and the improvement of returns for
its shargholders.

Furthermore, JT wil repurchase fis own gharas ang utilize
reasury stock to provide management with more finandial

options whet considering exiernal businass opportnities.

Corpora‘ce Vmon forthe Next pecade:
To become F) global gromh company

thatdevdups dwerse value-creatlng businesses

Busm&ss Goals in 10Yeats ‘ﬁ-ne

. 1TobaccoBusmess Coa L

7o vhecoma 2 laadmg giobal cxgaretreﬂanufadur-

- et with the"most tompetiive brang portfolio,

) throﬁgh the 2nhancement of solid and profiable, .

basingss foundations w,c’rldwid’e

2. Pharmacemeals Eusmess

» Distinguieh frselt as aunique gharmacetmicals
busingss with world-class RE&D '

» Enhance its presence with innoveive drugs

3 foods Buginess ‘

To lsscome 8 d\sunc‘we jpod manufacturer opet-

ating in multiple faod categones

. « Enhance its firm business base and ecanomies

of scalein Japan

. . a Pursue further business opportuniies in he

Asian and‘ Deeanian markets

Japan Tobecco Int.@ Annual Repott 2003
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

DOMESTIC TOBACCO
MARKET SHARE OF JT
(%)

M

7 98 ‘39 00 01 '02 03

10 Top-Selling Brands and Domestic Market Share (iscal 2003)

Domestic Tobacco Business’

Overcoming the changes in the business environment and securing stable cash flow

while augmanting ¢ash flow generating capabilities

‘!apan's tobarco market is one of the largest in the world. Howaver, the Japanese market
has recorded a continuing, slight downtrend in recent years due to persisting lackluster

etonamic conditions as well as such social facters as the graying of thé population'and the

rise in sodal concerns regarding the impact of smaoking on health.

JT succeeded in mairmaining 2 73.3% market share of the Japanese tobaccs market m the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, while the Company’s overall cigarente sales volume went
on to decrease along with the market downtrend. Japsn's leading brand of cigarettes is MILD
SEVEN, which was first launched by IT in 1877. We manufacture and sefl nine of the ten top-
selfing products in Japan, with the top thres products as well a5 the number seven product
coming fram the MILD SEVEN brand family.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, JT worked to swengthen its main.brands ang 1o
davelop and introduce new products to meet the diversifying preferences of its consumers. The
Company also implamented aggressive and efficient markating activities tailored 10 the unigue
features of the Japanese market. Regarding the leading brand of MILD SEVEN, MiLD SEVEN
ONE was launched. In responsa to diversifying consumer tastes, the Company also introduced
two new brands for sale in selected areas: icene Super Cooling Mentho/ (nationwide from May
2003) and LUCIA Ciirus Fresh Menthol, which fegtures reduced odor and sidestream smoke,
made possible through JT’s proprietaty technological inngvations. Despite the Company’s
sfforts in the peried under review, JT's annual cigarette sales volume was down 3.5%, to
228.0 billion cigarettes, amid a declining trend in the Japanese cigarette marker. Undgr such
difficult business condions, t¢ swengthen cost-competitiveness, JT proceeded 1o carry out 2
range of initigtives. In july 2602, we decided to strazmling our cigarette production operations
from 25 plants to 17, and, as of March 31, 2003, we had stopped production operations a1
three of these faciiities,

The environment surrounding JT°s domestic 1obaces business is currently undergoing
enormous ¢hange. I addidan to the tobacca excise tax hike ort july 1, 2003, in the midst
of industry volume deciine, in August 2003, JT and Phillip Morris International agreed not to
renew the current licensing agreement for Marlbora preducts, as 8 result of which JT will not
manufacture and market Marlboro products after the end of Aprif 2005. Consequently, we
anticipate a substantial dip in our domestic cigaratte sales volume for the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2006, during which the Marfboro contract will expire,

In respanse to these changes in the business erwvironment, JT will proactively promote new
products, with a focus on the premium price rangs, and work 10 gain market share while
leveraging our origing! raduced-odar technologies 1o develop new segments of the market.
Woe will atse work 10 achieve a dynamic and flexible cost structure through thorough cost
sructure referms centered on the strearnlining of every fink in our value chain, including sales,
production, and procurament. While we have alraady decided to reduce our dgarette manu-
tacturing plants 1o 17, we plan 1o dose six additienal plants,

Aot manetsnee. 3nd change the function of one plant. Furthermare, we plan

grang

.. Mud seven lighs n 85% 1o consolidate six regional sales headquarters with remaining
MId Seven Super Lights i) 3% ones, By Implementing this range of initiatives that covers
Mid Seven X £0% both top-line and bortom-ling issues, domestic tobacco busi-
Seven Swrs I3 71% . " ' of ding  flow
Caner Wil I a5% fiess will advance towzrd its goa! of expanding s cash slow.
Wariboro Lights Menhol Sex T 3.9% Furthermare, to promots harmonious cosxistence between
Mid Seven Extra Lights I 7% smokers and nonsmokers, we will provide comforabie public
Cabin Mild Box T 23%, .

srnaking areas as well as take other mezsures to enhance the

Lok Milds XS Bex M 2.2% i of adul ‘ impr King manmer
Franuer Lights Box T 5% satistaction ot adult smokers and improve smoking manners.

Soures; Tobeeco Insticunz of Japan (NOJ
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SALES VOLUME OF
INTERNATIONAL TORACCO
BUSINESS

(Rillion unns) 25
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international Tobacco Business

Being the driving forge for profit growth in JT Group
To expant its ravenue sources and strengthen cash fiow, in May 1999, JT acquired the non-
.5, tobacco operatlons of RIR Nabisco, In¢., for approximately US§7.8 billion. Beyand
strengqihening the sales and distribution network of its tobacco products in overseas markets,
in substantially all countries owtside of the United States, JT abtained the trademark rights o
such brands a5 CAMEL, Winston, and Safem, which boast a high level of imarnational brand
recoghition. These brands, together with MILD SEVEN, constitute our strategic Global Flagship
Brands (GFBs). The imtegrztion of the non-L.S. tobacea operations 9f RIR Nabisco into our
international 1obacto business was compieted in 2000, and our subsidiary JT Interrational S.A.
cutrently spearheads the business.

During the fiscal year under review, JT worked proactively toward sustained growth in its
intermational tobacts business through continual and effectiva sales promortion efforts, We
improved the flavor and packaging of our CAMEL product range and introduced this upgraded
fineup first in Europear: markets and then to other regions. Also, we continued to enhance our
businass svucture and operations 1o improve profiabilny. Consequenty, irternational ¢igs-
tette sales velume decreased 3.4%, to 207.8 billion cigarettes, due primarily to a decline in
szles of low-priced dgaretias in Russia as 2 resuit of our concentration on selling higher-priced
progucts. However, GFB sales grew stezdily, In fact, GFB sales volume incregsed 1o 112.4 bil-
lion cigarettes, up 4.3% from the previous Tiscal year, and net sgles inareased steadily.

In our internationat tobacco business, we will accelerate the growth of sales volume by fos-
tering GF3 wxpansion accompanied by Lni price inarsases through upgrading our Salem prod-
uct lineup in gddition 1o our CAMEL range, Through these efforts, international tobacco
opef;:gms will continue to move ghaad to-serve their function as an important profit growth
driver for the iT Group. L ,

We will also continue to take appropriste measures with regard 1o tobacco-rglated reguia-
ticns of the Waorld Health Organization (WHD), the European Union, and various courntries.

In Sanuary 2003, we established the China Division under our Tobacco Headquarters. The
division cenualizes two functions: the formation of key ralztionships in the Chinese markst
through technical support and other activities, which had previously been handled by the T
parent company, and the marketing of obacea products, which had been handled by sub-
sidiary JT International. Tha aim of this reorganization is to strengthen aur medium- and long-
term activities in the Chinese market in view of that ceuntty's entry into the World Trade

Organization,

Top Ten Brands Worldwide

Tt Warld Tot! world

Annuz) S8ies Yolume Annuel Seles Volume

Brand (Manufacured Billion units] Brand (Manvfacturer) (Brliga unims)
Mpripore (PM) 4747 Camel (ITAUR) 59.8
Mid Sevan (T) 120.7 Derby (BAT) 520
180 PV 80.8 Philp Moms (PM) 378
Winston {JT/RJR) 5B.0 - Yava (BAT) 3.5
Clevpatra (E2stern Tobatco) £1.0 Newpert {Loriferd/BAT .2

Seurce Maxwedl, July 2003

lapzn Tobaceo inc. @ Annual Report 2003
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Pharmaceuticals Business

Cultivating the pharmaceuticals pusiness as a future cash flow generator

Ts phannaCeuticah business is positioned as one of the future pillars of IT, and, as such, it
jmissions are ta develop into a world-class business backed by unique R&D and 1o firmly
establish fts market presence tnrough the development of original pharmaceutical products.
specifically, JT's MOst crudal purpese a5 a pharmaceuticals manufacturer is to conduct R&D
activities with the pfincipal ohjective of bettering the lives of the greatest number of people
through the drugs that Tt brings to market.

In pursut of these goals, in 1893, 1T established #s Central Pharm aceutical Research
Institute in Takatsuki €y, Dsaka Prefacture, 10 focus on R&D. The insttte has since engaged
in R&D concerning new compounds in fields induding ghucose and lipid metabelism, anti-virus,

- immune discrders and.inflammation, and bone metabolism and has pranched out into callabo-

ration with other research institutions both in Japan and oversaas.

in domestic pharmacauticals operations, we rededicated ourseives t0 optimizing the
synergies available in the prescription pharmaceuticels buginess with our acguisition of Tori
Pharmaceutical Ca., Lid., which became a JT Group company in 1938. Currently, Torii
pharmaceutical handles sales and marketng functions, while JTis in ¢harge of R&D operations.

To improve and augment our overseas RED acuvites, in April 2000, we added dlinical devel-
opment functions o Qur subsidiary U.5.-based Akros Pharma Inc. and gonfigured it 8s an over-
ceas development center. Since June 2000, threugh @ partnership with Tutarik inc. of the
United States, we have been operating e Tularik Pharmaceutical Company in California
as 3 new overseas research fadlity.

As of September 16, 2002, five pharmaceutical compounds doveloped by JT were atthe’
dlinicz) trial stage. We have also orepared two amii-HIV agents procured from Gilead Sciences
in the United states for NDA submission. In October 2002, we terminated the developmern
of 5 drug for disbetes that had cpmplemd phase §l dinical tmials in Japan. The overseas rights
{except for in the Republic of Kores) for this compound hawe been licensed out to Pharmatia
Corporation (now Pfizer inc.) sinca June 1998, which also decided to terminata dinical develop-
ment of this compound.

In Septembper 2003, we dacided 10 terminate the dlinica! development of the anti-
inflammatory agers for which development had extended to the completian of the
second phase of clinical rials. In January 2002, we entered it an agteement with Fulisawa
Fharmaceutical C&., L1d., to jointly develop and market, as of phase Il of clinical trials, this
anti-inflammatory agent in Japan, put the agregmant was terminated.

JT will work 10 establish a solid business foundation for its phannaceutica\s busiress to
achieve rapid busingss expansion as 3 future pillar of cash fiow by augmenting in-house R&D
capabilities and accelerating development with the utilization of external resources.

Clinical Development {As of September 14, 2003)
Code Swaoe \ndicatien Mechanism
JTE-607 (1) phase | Uopen) SRS (Sysiem infiammetory inflammarory cyakines nhibior
Onl} Fhase | {0\ ) Response Syndramel
Jv-803 (nj) Phase | (opdn) Amucosguiant Factor %a mhibiior
Onj) Fhase HOverseas)
77705 (oxab Phase Il (Overseas) Hypedipiderid CETP tnhibinar
Phase | Yapan}
JTX-003 {orall Phase Il {Jagan) Hepatmis € HEV RNA potymerase inhianot
Phase ! (Qverseas)
17130 {eraY PFhaese | Japan) wypertipidemia MTP Inhibitor
Phase | (Overseas)
Tenedovir disopraxil peapared for NDA Amo-HV REvers TansLripEse inubm
{fumarate (oral) submission (Japan)
Emtratanine (oral Prepared for NDA ANFHV Aeverse TANSCTipwse inhiblor
subrmismon Japen) _ .




Foods Business

Fortifying the foundation of +ha foods business for future growth and expanding
bustness vaive to positionthe segment as the next generator of cash flow

triving to be a distinctive $o0d manufacturer cperating in multiple food categaries,
S JT's foods business conducts operaﬁnhs in two major segments: processed foods and
beverages. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003,JT upgraded the scale of its foods
husiness by actively developing and introducing hew products as well as acquiring new sales
chanmels and strengthening existing ones.

We axtended our processed $oods business by adding new products 10 the Dairninkil hng of
frozen food. To further graw our bakery operations by urilizing Our R&D know-how, we
actuired 100% of the equity of sairt-Germain Co., Lid., the former bakery and retail sub-
sigiary of Tokyu Department Store Co., Ltd., in May 2002.

1n out beverage busingss, the sales volume of JT-prand products increased sfightly. We
erhanced the lineup of our Roots canned cotfee and Jaunched SENOBY, @ calcium-enriched
health drink with milk pasic protein (MEP). sales of both these products wera favorable, In the
sugarless 123 market, the fargest domestic segment $or soft drinks, in March 2003, we prosc-
sively launched Shibucha, 3 green-tea beverage featuring 100% domestic tea leaves, Aks
Oolong, which exclusively uses highly fermented oolong tea leaves, and Ao Oaleng in July
2003. These products are free of added fragrances or fiavors. n addition, from Aprl 2003, we
began selling Twining brand beverages in 1apan. Twining is one of the worid's major brands of
plack tea. Also, we stesdily expanded vending rachine channels through Japan Beverage Inc..

-our vending maching operations subsidiary.

TT will strengshen the foundation of its foods business for future growth and expand 15
pusiness value to position the segment s the next generator of cash flow, In precessed foods,
therefore, we will develop our current bugingss srategy and work to further expand the.busi-
ness valua of such operations, We have srategically concenuated on the four sectors of frozen
sonds, seasonings, bakery fiems. and chilled foods,* and we will praactively segk out partner-
ships and collaboration opportunities 1 supplement areas that require addiona) management
fe50Urces.

Following careful assessment of the current situation and changes t¢ the business nviron-
ment, JT will move fts beverage business away from strategies that amphasize EBITDA break-
even and scale expansion toward policies that emphasize profitability. Wa will implement
thorough efficiency programs covering all aspects of the business and 2fm to achieve profitabil-
ity at the pperating income Teve! by the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008, The Company will
continue to invest in R&D, advertising and promotion, and vending machine sales ¢hannels 10
cultivate and rinfarce its brand power. V

+ Cified food operations are cumently being ¢onducted by Hans Cominental smallgoods Ply. L1d. of Ausrafe. whidh JT
acquired when i 100K cver the food Dusinés? apératons of Asahi Kasal Carporation,
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FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

"

: Why has it diVem'hed i ;ﬁe mtemm!bnal tcham‘ B
K 'phannaca«.:ﬁr.als- and fmds btlsmasses? Whams its plan

for dther ax:mng busmeses’

The gromh pmentzl m‘JT maybe:ume i:mned it tonbnuas '
o sole!y rely s onls dnrr&eshc'fobaeco bUSmess, with such fac-,

Tors, 2 the :ontnua1 graying of the Japanesa populaum dnd
changes inthe social ciimate surounding smo[c_mg. Tissiniv-
ing to become 2 global growth company with yalug“crasting
and 'divéfs'ﬁéd businesses and will concentﬁte its invast-
ments in the: three major segments af international tobazc
pharmacezmcals ant foodsin ofder 1o compile 3 busmess
portioito reflecting a balarice of fisk ard retutn & w»all as
IT's skil at recognizing busimess; upportunmes

Aﬂhough JT will comipue t0 WOnc hard Jin ns core bus;ness,
it will alse carryuut radical ref:m5 of businesses thatfallta
attain profitability. Acesrdingly, the Company withdrew fram
its agricultuce business in Jupe 2003, '

What is iT's philosophy an mergers and acquisitions?
17 strives for firm growth based on tne foundations it has laid
thus far i 1ts international tobacro, pharmaceuticals, and
foods businesses, We will also proactively sesk out growth -
opportunities based orithe procurement of external

| TRSOUCES a5 Means o accelerats businass growth and sup-
. plement our value chain. We also have a8 systern of fixed. pri-

erity levels for our individua! business. Based on assessments
of synergistic value, speed, scaie, bussiness congfripns, apd -
1 nanual tonditions, we wil p(ace priosity on the projects
wrth the greateSt potential to contnbute to 1he expan.ston

of our anterpﬁse value.

A,"-‘-What is s p‘hllasnp'hy on sharefib!dar rofit shating?

© Growth it our cor;}orate Gaie. over fhe medimeto-ong
term will determing JT's attractiveness to shareholders: i the .
-, mzerest of augmemmg pfoﬂt sharmg wﬂh QU shareholders,

v mcreased the amual shsreholder s dmdend for. the Jiscsl
year ;nded ‘March 31, 2003, by ¥2,000, © ¥10.,000 per share,
"Wa also intand 10 continug 10 increase sharsholder dividends
gradually, contingent on the attainnient of mediume-tarm
plan abjectives and the medium-10-long-term profit outiock.
Retained earnings will be allocatad to investment in
current and future businesses, the acquisition of external
resources, and the reduction of imerest-bearing debt.

Why did 7 obtam authanzatwn far 'the repun:has«e
of s shares? BRI '. : .

P 'ihe o::ccber 200 revmons to the Ccmmercra) Ccde of o
,)apan prowded Japanes= compan»es wnhgreater flexibility .

inthe. ha!dmg and sk of fredsury stock, Jn tonsiceration of '

© this developmem and 10 pursue grea’te! maneuw/erabxrrw in

respoise to the, ;hangmg busmess gnv:r:mmerm- we cbm:ned .

' authonzanonfo repurchase a maximom of 100, 800 shares
" for up o ¥75 bitlian at our June 25, 2003, general meating

of sharehoiders, Under T PLAN-Y, whiletaking into account )

 such facuars a5 ptan progress. rrarket trends, and stock !in

-idity, we will repurchase shares.and wtilize treasury stock

O provige management with mare ﬂnanna! options when .
consigering external business opporrunmes or the fea51b1lty
of making Group companias whofly.owned subsidiaries.
Authorization was approved far a repurchase of stock of
e same size in the pre'vious year. Hawever, we did not
repurchase any such shares.

CONDFIONS SURROUNDING THE TOBACCO BUSINESS.

Many of the major tobacco manufacturers in the Unjted
‘Siatas are now facing numersus fegal-actions, Are the
risks of litigation increasing for the IV Group.2s wall?
Asof August 31, 2003, there were 41 tobacco-related law-
suits invalving JT, 40 overseas, primaily in the United States,
and one in Japan.

In the United States, sInce the scale of JT's business i
axremely small, we belisve tobacco-related litigation risk
is limnited and uniikely to materially affect ST oparations
aver the ‘shomc-rr‘nnechum :gnﬁ. Cutside the‘, United States,
sr‘npking and health-reianed fawsuits are far fewer in number;
and:the amount &F damages sought is mich lower, U.5.- '
type lawsuits seem to be spedfic to the mun&ys unique
tegat envxmnmen;, and we de. not expect them 0 axpand
rapidly o other jurisdictions. | .

Howevaf, the businass emvitonment surrounrfng the

. ' tobatto mdustry wo:de;de has become smngerw because

of the youth smaking issues and other smoking and heaith ’
issues as wel] as tha Tighter restrictions put in place te
address these issues. in such drcumstances, JT observes

with greart interest developments of lawsurts involving other
companies in the contaxt of relations between the tobacw
industry and society.




WHO and Eu re.m'i'ctiohs( o1 Yobeceo are growing
tighter. How will this affect JTs tobaces bssimess?

There aremany posmons on the issue of smokmg Tebacco™

B has been the suhject o a; great deal ot diseussion in recent
.; yeats with regard 10 1t effect on-heghth. JT mainains 2 sup-
poruve position regarcfng appmpnate Tastnmons o tobac— '
co which m:onsnders necessary '

Tobaged is = ﬁrmby zsrabﬁshed feature o human ﬁrestyle e

. andhasa long, h»stary of en]ayment by adults, and we
beliave that adults’ Bre entitled 1o choose for themsaives
whether to srnnke o m;tk based on & ful awareness of

Heatth-relsted information. W therefore take issue with me '

impasttion of a sihgie uniform set of restrictions o Excessive
restrictions that fail 4o take into atesurit the:unigue cutures
", ot indhidusl nations. ' s
1 wili eontinug 19 live up 1o its social responsipilities, ‘
implemet programs to prevent uriderzge smoking and’
imprave sthoking matners, and meet the general expactz
tiens of today's sogiety. At the same time, vwe will whole-
heartedly provide a variety of services to indiiduals who
thoose to smaoka and continua to conduct our business in
& manner that promotes. harmonriouscoexistance between
smbdkers and nonsmokers.

GOMESTIC TOBACCO BUSINESS

Ta whet extent will the termination of the Marlboro

licemsing agraement influence IT's finances?

IT curcently is @ party toa licénsing‘agreement with Philip '

Morrs Products S.A. for the exclusive manufaciure, sale, and

Trademark use ofMarIboro products in Japan. The current

con'aact is vahd thruugh Aptl 30, 2005. ¢ s
Tag! Marlboro produ::t sales in Japan For the ﬁscai vear

ended March 3, 2003 amounted to apprcxlmately ¥3180

‘olﬂmn (appmx(mately ¥130.0 billion after tobacco excise
‘taxes) and generdted apprmumately ¥12.0 biliion i m nperatmg
- incorne. Wi the termination of our Mariboro ilcensmg o
" wfresment, factaring in su¢h costs as manfacturing- ang’
sales-reiated personnel costs and degregiation and amortiza-
tion ang assuming samnings equal to these for the: ﬁsca'l year
ended Marchy 31, 2003, we anticipate an approximate ¥50.0
billion potential dediing in operating income as a result.

With the wntxmxa: dedm& in marke: share and salss

. ,vnlumes, Mehat measiras will [T take v mtreusa sa!es’ .
ln sales growh srategies; T has. iagged behmd inthe grow. *

ing’ 1mg-:ar nd menthal segmants of the marke* and & wilt

seekto reverse the current state of marketshare diswibution -

- i rm‘avor wrthnew price stra'iegles, whichly lmplememed .
- i e Iy 2003 dgarerte price felisions; and pmactuve o
‘iniarkeﬂng of rew pragicts, o
* Wewill also wark to enhance our competrtwe edge inthe
-‘prammm market segment. Dur new reduret-odor LUCIA

“

‘u'oduct. which we launchedin February 2003, p\npom‘cs the
needs of custamers who are concerned with c«garette odor

. 8nd has substantially ou‘:performed other facently markmd
 pramiam produces, The success of {(/CI4 has convinced JTof

the growth potential of she reduced-odor produzt seqwr,
Through the ongaing intmducm;\n of new progucts, T will '
cultivate reduced-ador pr'oduc's into @ new cigarews catego-
ty, thus bringing about a third market revolution, following
the previous milestones of the use of filters and charcoa), and

. thereby boost its comperitive edgs,

Although we have lagged behind in grawth areas, this
megns we face little risk of causing competition amang our
own progucts when it comes 1o launching new cnes into the
markew Focusing ont these arowrh areas, we will proactively
develop products that are predsely ariented to Customer

needs and test-market approximately. 10 new producz brands,

€ach year—doubie the number in the past—pnmarny in
‘growth areas.

* Whai b5 ST doing to reducs costs?
. In our damestic tobacca busingss, we will accelerats business

efficlency programs with atention to the risk of degining .
funure business volume. Regarding manufacturing operations,

‘ durmg the T PLAN-Y time frame. in addition 1o our prevrous—

ly annaunced closure of enght of-aur plants,* wa wnl close.

_ si* &F our remaining 17 plarts and change the function of

oneplant*+*, We will aiso reduce fixed costs Wrough'the
integratian of Group campanies and the consofidation af
facilities, inclutiing the consclidation of six ragional sales
nezdguarters with remaining omgs, the rastructuring of our
domestic raw materials division, and the streamlining of the
head office.

3apan Taboctd Inc @ Annvel Repary 2003 -



_Japan Tobatca ifc. @Anixuﬁl feporl 2003

| Wewdl also-work b1 reduce variable Costs, Mcre efﬁcnent
* mechanisms foyrmanaging By matena)s angd Dther matersal
. eests wzu be deve!oped encampassing a stages ﬁ'om ouf-
O ‘chasing through wansport and stofage..At the same time, we'
il augmennhe Syriergistic effects of our Groupmanage*
et by implementingjoint purqhasmg of raw materals with '
B Internatrona and.oursue 3 further reuction 'of logistics,
“casts. By:mpremeunng ‘these tharough comeductms spar -

aing poth fixed and vanabte msts T wnll further enhance s
cost~compaut~ehe$s. .
Our aim is to maximize costeetfectve operahons by

B impraving eff' cnency fhot onty for.our busmess dmsnons but

. also.for pur heat) office zdmxmsimﬁve dlws»cns, which we
il streamiine by revising orgamzaauns and pemnqel nlme

beed and further enhancing head office functions.

We anticipate that approximately 4,000 jobs will be mage
redundant as a result of this range of initiativas for sreamlin.
ing our domestic tobscge business and head office opera-
tiens, 2nd we will o¥er early retirement packages 1o qualifiad
empicyees. '

*  [ThrsLanmounced and Commenedd the resTuictunng of its domestic agareta

manufacturing operations i july 2002, The shuttown schesuie i & fallows:
«Sgndal, Nagoya. and Haghimato piants: Shuwdown by Match 31, 2003

Rirashirma, Fchy, Mersuyama, and Naha plonts: Shutdown by March 31,
2004
Ueda Plant; Shuzaéwn oy March 31, 2009

$+ 17 Bnnourced 1 ¢iese The .oncwmg plants in September 2003:
Hakodare, Takasaki, Teskampisw Tokushima, Usuki, Kagoshimy plants:

. Shutdown by March 31, 2005,

*" %+ m aiddirion, the Tokyo plam will ke consolidzted with » machinery center

10 begame a mamafactunng techaiogy center in Agrd 2508, s gart of our
¥m 18 enhance rrmufa'mrmg techdoiegy and product develppment while
prévitiung technical support i romaining plant.
* A8 2 redull, the tatal numcer ofmdcmemc clgardrra manutacturing
* planswil be 10 by April ,2008. , |

'Wha:‘: affict ‘wilr the Juiyiznd?increase in the tobacco

’ xcise 1A% have on.4Ts dcmesﬂnobacm tmsmas1
"In response tothe dapanese govemmen'c‘ s considerstion of 3
o tobacco excise 15X hme. the entire industry unizad i in opposi-'
. "hon ta the imposttion of an inerdinate burden on one. speqﬁc .

N mdusuy and its consumers, and 2 petition agamst such tax,

" increases gathered slgnatures from fcte than 6:5 milliot
".paople. However, 3n increase gf approximately ¥1 per ciga-

rette effective from luly 2003 was decided. All 1obacco com-
panies have revised their product prices to reflect this tax
increase, ingluding 1T, which raised all cigarette prices—with
the excention of certain products—by ¥1 per cigaretiz to
pass along the increased tax burden 1o selling prices. For

. progucts w which we did net apply the ¥1 per cigarette

increase, vee st prices based on a comprehensive considera-

. 'aon of such hctcrs a8 maracet Irends mstomerevahmun
Y hnd md‘vlduai rost structare.

* The fax hike and carrespondmg price revxstons are hkely‘ta

‘ suppcess wtaJ tomestic dernand and prasent & potential

strai 10 JT‘s pmﬁt To minimiza the influence on prnﬁt we

" will :ontmue o mamram bur mp ine and redute costs, *

" What is J‘r@ s‘tant.e on the risk of ﬁmhar m:raases .

In dumesnc t¢ba:co exciss taxation?:

. JTw‘ll strongly oppose any 1abacco exdise tax mr:reaseu A dis- K

pmportlcna'te ax burden levied against a single mdustry and
lts :onsumm's is not accemzble T will continue to o every-
ti'nng inits pawer to'prevent tobacco excise tax (pcreases and
protect the interests of !apan‘s’31 8 million tobacto users

" and penple employed in tobaczo-related industries.

. INTERNATIONAL TOBALCO BUSINESS

How doas JT view the reorganization and privatization
of tobaces companies that are teking piace worldwide?
A great deal of reorganization is currently 2king place
ameng European tobacco companies, For example, in
Oetaber 1593, Sodéte Nationale d'Exploitation industrielle
des Tabacs &1 Allumettes, 5.A,, of France and Tabacalers,
5.A,, of Spain merged to form the Ahadis Group, and, in
February 2002, lrnpenal Tobacco Graup PLC of the Unfted
ngdorn agreed to purchase Reemtsma Cigarettenfabriken
GmiH of Germany. Furthermore, in Jung 2003; Brmsh

,Amgncan Tobacco p.le agraed to acquire Ente Tabaccht
“ttafiani $.pA., aly's state tobacco compary. Such devef-
* . Opments are not imied solely to Eureps, as naﬁonél .
" tabiaco monopohes around the world are mO’easmgiy
* betoming pnvatlzed

Fonbwing our chu;smon 'of the non+L4S. tobso:o opara-
tions of RJP. l\abtsco we warked to Fchiave oormnua! top-ing
growth |mprove czsh flow ganeranon ahulrty‘ and enhance

L npe;atlona! performance m an effort 1 attaln a svengﬂwened '

business fourndation for firm and continual growth and we
befieve that our efforts have proved su¢cessful. However,
while crganic growth is our primaty policy, we will alse
proactvely seek coflaboration or scouisition opportunities if
complementary 1o our business strategy.




O

”What is JT’s pnwstramg'g?
- IT's basic pohcy lsto mammm a0 ord.rly pnce*strudure to
N pratect :wbrand equ:‘cy we :herEfOre avoid resorbng t0 .qm— ‘

'pﬂe pnce reduchuns to mcrease sales vcﬂume. However.

i WL|| cnnslder assummg a more flexible price srrategy ¢ should
+ such & need afbe; gueto the \e¢el of eompetnmn of ﬁ\e s
, rentt Stata ot the, marke& " '

PI-IARNIACEUT!CALS BUS!NESS

' "Wi}y'&id i 'mﬁke the dedsionto entar‘rha phormateutl:

r.alg busmess? ) . . ’
The, phar rnacavticals busmass s 2 highly valuable entty for
sodety thh the ability 1o contribute to the'well-being of

. humanity through the developme'\t of new dnigs, Despite

the Wigh fevel of busingss fisk, s potennaithgh added value

Was enough 1o attradk s o this market, which weengaged

with a full regiment of business r&sources gained through our
tohateo operations. Another reason for entering the pharma-
cauticals business s ﬁTB:L, atthe tima, such new technologies
a5 blotechnology had just begun 10 appear, and we conclug-
ed that even as 2 latecomer 10 the market, cpp:rtumttes
were still avauable if we.proactively engaged i joint research
and ne-ups with blopharmaceutncal companies that are
in;trhmen‘tal_m technological nnpvaticn.

' What ars the scale and priority aress of ITs R&D
' pparations? What is unigue abat TS pharmaceuticals

business?

' At our Central Bharmaceutical Research’ Instite, esiablisr\ed
1983, wae are pursuing worid-tass pharmaceunca\ R&D -

witha staff of approxlrnately 520 as of Apsil 2003 mcludmg
proven xalent ré\:funed #rom outside JT. We are a\so actively
seeking allnanceswrth gther research facilities i Japan and

* around the world, JT's R&D jnvestrents for the fiscal year

‘ended Mareh, 31, 2003 amourted 10 ¥26.4 bilian, and we
plan to invest approxxmatdy ¥80.0 blllmn intne thre&yaar
4T PLAN-Y, Whigh wil condude inthe fiscal year ending”
March 37, 2006.

1n the field of research, we are forusing our energies
primarily on fields induding glucose ang lipid metabolism,
ant-virus, immune disorders and inflammation, and bone
metsbolism from the perspective of leveraging our com-
petitive srengths and repository of knowledge.

our pharmaceuncafs husiness sets ltself apart with a

..degree of ﬂex:bll:ty *d*at Allows 7110 work ™ outsidethe box”

and it tommrtment tothe d»ve\opment cf new drugs ats8
gJobal fevel. ‘

'

With ':he wcﬂemde phamaceutcai mdus\ry gcow:qg

steadily targes ‘through mergers and a:qulsmons, an

_ ithe ST Graup :ompm qan & gioba\ scate?

We believe tHat R&D strength is the Yfeblood of a pharma-
ceuticals manuiadurer, and we consider the quesnon of

'our abmmo create mtematonal.y marketable drugs 2

¢rudial one.

_ The Company is almlng 1 sxzrt dm\ca\ ma|s of three Lom- '
: pounds that have the pmenﬁai 1 trecome new world-class

medidnes that c2n be\lcensed 10 globai pharmaceuticals
tompsnizs, Por thls reason, we will maintain our current level
of R&D spending, -accelerate developmeant thrbugh the use of
external sources, 2nd search for licensing oppo'wmtles with
majof averseds’ companxs 25 necessaty in 1andem withh
sfforts o strengthen the Company 5 atility 10 develop
pivarmaceunicals.

We will also work t0 improve the operations of our sub-
sidiary Torlt Pharmaceltical by increasing and strengthening
s marketing power.’ ' ‘

FOODS BUSINESS

Why did JT dicidé to aner the food product market?
we determined that therg was an opporwnny for entering
{his market since we could:utilize our technologies with

réspect 10 1aste and ‘flavor as well 85 OWr consumed-orierded
" marketmgy skuls whch are commen 'to the foods business, .

acqu;red through our exp=r|ence inthe tobaccomdusrry

. We beheved that, among. pur diversifying investment fields,

qould establish and expand the foods huginess- within 8
reiatwely short time., Alsa, we consider the foods buginess
crucially wnpor:am fmm e wewpmnt of expaﬂdmg our
customer base 2nd wnprovmg our corporate image,

 is indead true that Japan's sood product market has
become extremely competitive as restructuring spreads
throughour the industry. With such reszucturing iniatives
accelerating at 2n incressing rate. IT has 2 substantie!
opportunity 10 ¢laim a prominent position amid this business

environment.
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) Piaase ten me anout tha pcﬂomancg of the p:oqessed
; : faa#s busmess L
o I rheprocssed foods busmass ‘gven ihe successes oo our
r ‘ efforts 4 strengmen product devehpment mpabulltas and '

R8O g well as in the procyrement ofkey raw tatadals, we

" will continug mpursue and developvur cuirent business
' ' st’a-tegnes to funher expand tﬁs va}uecﬂhe busmess
" Ourfmzen fods businessis labonng Unter conditions of
' f‘erce compe’tmvn. bt we have estabhshed 3 fixed eammgs

Stru@LTe white en.mnng ‘topdine growﬂw '
In the seasbnmg buﬁmess we ars proceedmg quickly i in.

Iour shiﬂ from chemical :EESOH!T)QS hiel naturalry flavored sea-
.50Rings in Jmewrth ou: policy af be.mg nat'.L'al. safg, and
" aditive-free, , . w

n.our bakeuy ftem buslness we.are implemanting mea-
sures mdudmg the strategic remodehng of storefronts and
the review of eparations, and we: seek 10 further boost cus-
Tomer support.

In our chilled food operations, leverag ng Hans Continents!

Smallgoods {addnienal details subsequently), we are making
full use of our 2ccumislated management resources to con-
struct 2 sturdy foundation in raw materials procurement,

in our processed fopd businass, we will focus on the pra-
teding four businesses, and, i our resources are instfficient
o strengthen the value chain, giving dye considerstion to -
profmabllity and busiriess strategy, we wil secure necessary
resources threugh cooperation and alfiances with other

companies‘ .

Tha bavoraga mdustry T8 axpermncmg groat ditficuliies.
How does. IT intend to develop inthe future w com

" frontthise cllenies?

Basedon the lmmedmte smauor\ and changes in the husi=
ness dimate, we bsve changed rarh strategies pursuing both

EBITDA break—even and scale expansion to ones focusmg on
profnabnry, and' wa are seekmg 0 achxeve pmﬁtabmty in

operaung mcorna by the fiscal year ending March 31, 2006

" As cur primary measure to reach this goal, we will strengthen

R&D and product development, devélbp unique and differen-
Hiated products, and expand and strengthen our strongest
sales channel, vending machines. In addition, we will ro-
mote the highest degree of efficiency thraughout aur

* operations and ereste a corporate structure condudve to

sustainable profitability, while continuing to invest in R&D,
advertising, ang vending mathine channel expansion, &4

suth investments contibute to cultvating and reinforcing our
-br;ndpewer. o Co ' :

' What are your pians or daveiapment overseas? }
18 the processed foed busmess, we have uuuzed accumulated

management resources centered on Hans Commental
Smangocds and crmted a sturdy foundanon for the procures -

' ent ofrawmmnals Accordmgly.JT wolld next like 4o

wofk ) expand business i the Asian and Qreanian markets,

- Asia ‘ poos

. Amance formed with Shanghax Indus:rial Investrheat {Halding) Ca.,
114, (SIC), " for the company'sfood business, and Yood retaiting
sointventure compapy eswblishedwith shanghaiSIE Modam
Agn:u\tural Development Co.. L1d., 4 snt Group compary, &h
Chungmlng island; Stanghai
* Titi 1 the Shanghal muncs! Jovemment's only cempany 10 handle over-
5835 cuomard, 808 T controls an extensive nanwark af»foad compame;
* and diswibutors,
. Oreania
Acquired 100% of shares in Hans Contineng! Smsﬂgoods it 1398,
when JT purchased Asahi Kaset's toods business
* Hans Canunental imaligoads croduees Bnd markes ko, bacas, salefm,

$8ushg8, and other met products Bnd is exiablishing the Na. 1 brandin |
 Austraiié in rer@ll paciaged harn 9 Sausage products.




O

To promo‘ce benes understandmg of the mbacco industry and )

T, we have provuded this rief outline of me legal ‘ramework
3nd business. enwronment surmundmg Japan stobacto
mdustry sdsr. °

LEGAL FRAMEWORK AND BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT SURROUNDING IT

' mLm contznue Yo hold a1 least one-half of all of the ongmal

2:800,000 shares. which the governmant acquired Ugon

" fapan T dbacco ncs esfabhshmem and that, even if Japar |
' Tebaced Inc ssUes new shares'in the future, the govemmert

‘ . must cont:nue o] hdd more e one-tturd of all of the

Toba:w Busmess Iaw o

. Tne Tobacco Buyness Law was enacted i Augusz 1984 for
L the purpose o%achnevmg sound growth"for Japary H mba:co
- industry, secunng stble govermuent revenisss, and can-

tribUting to xhe heatthy expansion of the Japanese etanomy
The Tobacto Busmess Law governs The cultrvaﬁon and pur-
thase bf {eaf tobacco and the manufacture eng ds‘tnbuhon
of tabacco pmduds. Japan Tobacca Ine.is obliged to negona

e centracts with domesuc feat tobacen growers 10 rbtar-

mhine the total ares used for tohaceo cultivation and tobacco
leaf pricas based on type and quality. Japan Tobdcco inc
is raguired 1o purchase the entsre usable domesudaba:co

- ¢rop. Contracts stpulate the srea 1o be cultivated and the

prives of leaf tobacao for the subsequent year, and in this
regarg Japan Tohacoo'ine, respects the apm\on of the Leaf
Tobacco Deliberative Couricil,”

As the sole manufacturer of tobacco products in Japan
Japan Tabaooo Inc. must obtain the approval of the Minister
of Finance on the maxmum prices of each dass of tebacco
released from sroragé to the market,

Tobacto, sroduct importers and wholesalers muss register
With the Minister of Finance, and retilers of tobacco proth-

"u@s need 16 get approvel from the Minister of Fmance In

addmoh, Jlst prices for Japan Tobaceos ln 'S tobacco produc‘ts
and imported tobacto products must be epproved by the

"Minister of Finanice, In principle, manufacturers’ list prices

will be approved Unless the Miriter of Finence deeins that

vthey are unfa;r o consumers. Tobztco retailers are only per-

mitted tq s&ll tobacc products athst pn\‘.es that have been
aporoved by the Mmm.er of Finance, .

* The feaf Tmba:w Dafiverstive Cound! is' :omtﬁh( ccn‘refrlngon IMPeRant

' mawers mzmmg 1hs cultvation and parchisie &t gemastically. -grown leat

" tobacoe in mepenss 12 Intuies by Japen Tobacce ing. reprasantatives, The

1+ council congies & no more than 11 merbers, appomyed by T with the

approval of tha Minister of Financa from.among repressataiives of domestic
leaf 10bacCs orowers and ACAUEMIE 3IDOMLSES.

The Jagan Tabacoo Inc, Lew
Japan Tobaceo Ing, was established under the Japar Tobacco.
inc. Law (JT Law} for the purpose of developing businesses
related to the manufacture, sale, and impor of tobacco
products. The JT Law prdvides that the Japaness government

issuag, shares The k2 Law ‘.a\so prcmdes that the ssue of new
sharas m‘~ npt)ons or warrants m subscnba fbr newshares
and of bands wrth npnons or warsants tasubscribé for new
shares reanres the a-pprova\ af the Minister of Binance.
The Ty L grants Japan Tobaces Inc. zhe fr»ed.om to enter

other ‘ﬁon"mbacc&related Business aress in hne wth fts over-
Coal DbjECfNES asa corporat;on dependent upcn mm\s‘tenal .

permission, in addivan tg the manufacture. dist bwon.

.and mpon af yobaceo progucts and tnbacco-reiated busi-

nesses. Japsn Tobacco inc: must aisp Dbﬂln amhbnzatlon
from the Minister of Finance for certain matters, mcthmg
The appointment ar dls'mssa( of diracrors, exacytive officers,
and auditars, amendmems’toJapan Tobaccd Inc's Articles
of Incorparation, appropeations of eamings, and any merger,
carporate split, of dissoiution of japan Tobaccd inc. "Within
three months after the close of each fiscal yaar, Japa
Tobaccs Inc. must issue its belance sheets, statements

of income, of loss, and operatmg report 1o the Mmstnr

of Finance.

Taxation )
Al tobiacco products soid in Japan are subject to the nztionzl
tebacco axdse tax, the national 1obacco special excise wayx,,

<and {ecal tobacco eﬁxcise, 1Axes. The national tobacco excise

Yax s setiat ¥3, 126 per thousand. units, the nationa tobacco

: speclal exase 1ax :s set at ¥820 per thousand unfs, and the:
ol tobacco e.xcse Taxes are set at¥3,946 per thoysand

units, as of July 12003, aﬁer the increase'in the tobacco
exCIse tax '

In 'che ma;pnty of ovarseas markes oms;cte of Sapan
tobetto praduas are subjact 1o various taxes, mdudmg
fegeral, state, 1ocal, and other tobaceo axcise mxes

Breakdown of a ¥270 Package of Cigarettas

Consumglion & ¥12.85  {4.76%) E

fstaler's margln ¥17.00 {10.00%) -

Numonal iobado exise tax ¥62,52  (23.16%) *g'

Natonal tosactn $pectal sxose x ¥16.40  (6.67%) 3 Eg
Locs) Tobeso excite taxes  ¥W7B.92  {29.23%) - § P
(orefeenre) ¥19.38) ﬁ = =
irmuncipallty) (¥59.54) =z

IT's procseds Y7230 (26.78%) 2

Japan ¥obatto Inc. @ Annual Repore 2003
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}m‘rougn ourtobaceo business. We sim to be an ‘irreplategble

Tahareo Brantising Dadaration

Wehava developad *Tobaced Brandng 'bédaqaﬂbh" 254 o

" et and-our commitments towards actions,fased onthe
recogtition Jn conducting tobaced business. v
+ " #7ghacce Brand#ng Declaration” consists of treesec’

‘®:0ur Recognition cn‘Toba'c‘c'o ,
® Toiacco Susingss Mission C

" 1@ Tobacgeo Business Managetient Guidéline

" We take gride in the brandswe pravide to-consumeré

company' by keeping otr commitment i “Tobacto Brand-
ing Declaration”. - ' o o

8 Our Recogrition on Tobaces

We, a5 JT Grou, recogrizé tur fnain groduct Tobacco, as follows:
<Tobaeco for Customers> o v
Alrngst one third of the adult population of the world STOkes.
People smoke for variaus reasans; same people smoke for plez-

" sure, 4o enjoy tobage's tich taste and flavor, others to relax and
gain wpeace of mind,of © tocus.

" on the other hand, with smoking pleasuraceme real riske, There

are many people who repor Sifficulty quiTing. '

\We believa:adults have afresdorn 16 choose smoking 2s a per
<onal hatit, being fully informed ebout T risks. "
<Tabateo for Seciety»

Tobacea hak been commonly used as 8 Mmahn i promote commu-
rication between peopls; 16 break a moment of silence of soMme-
Yimies to gain relief from mnsion. LR

"However, people who do not <make are often iiritated by tobacs
to smoke, Smokeys should at &l timas be courtesys and payfull
attention to nEreAMOkErs. . o

From a sodip-Economic stangpoint, tobacen fs.the product.of a *
side ranga of Industies, from farmers ™ remilers. Many peqpig in
sthe wiorlg rely an ibacte Far their [velihoods. «

ftshould aisp Ge:npted that tobacto saxes stering from ciga:
refte sales 4re bome by Sfnokers.and convibiteta 3 signficant. -

part of GovemmMent fevenues acrosathe werld
<Tobaeao iy History>

Tohacgo has 2 long histary going back 1 thedays of the MEyan . |

 chvlizarion. Many wriiaue ndimsresting cuitures cap be traced
ek o its natural proximity 1o people's everyday Ives,
. 1o sodert fnes, 1obaceo became an important agricurural
roduct with sigrifieanteronoric vjue. The menutacnre of
tobacco préducts, smrting 6 a5 8 househald industy: went
through rapid tectinological innavation and bacame one of the first
indusiries o globalize in the end of the 19th century. On the other
hand, some countries have, from tima ta time, banned tobacce
because smoking was considered 2s an urmecessary pastime, and
far other raasons. Smoking hag recently become controversial in
1erms af its effect on haalth.

Tebaeco has been a comroversial product through history, yet it

is s produst which people énjoy {or more than 500 years.-

@ Tobacco Busiess Mission

Bearing in mind cur secognition or tobacco, our main Produtt, %

. " ganzge and operare o business in arder to satisly:and defiver

tobapo :bxﬁsmessyérslan oteur ‘§°fP°rate.T"issi°E,’; “JTBrands " pisasure th oot eustomers and 1o meet our staksholiers’ expesta
+ing Declaration’, # clartfies our recognition bn tobaccoprog- st . ot
' o : “eCustomers -

. We enhange tustomer satisfartion by cfl’e}kn'g 2 renge of tirst class,

" - qualhty and addeg-value brandq o adult smokers. To'this end, we

Y willnot compromise.in Tecogrizing and addressing the varibut
. ' needs of oyr tustomert.’ - ' ‘

W are committed 1o offer Fanprehéﬁﬁvé supiport 1o smokers'

", plessure.” oon

. £Sbdety>

" ! ya nperate bur business with high ethical standarts, dedicated

" afforts fowards environmenta! protecion,and respact for she loal |
communfies and the Cultures of different ‘counties. We sTive 1o
.be:a good coqorate citizen welcomed by bt logatand giobal
COmmUNItes. ' "

Minors should nat smoke. We will agoressively.address this
soial preblem and are committed 10 playing = signfficant role
towards youth smoking prevention.

awe are oware that Smaxing is controvarsial. This s why we'will

 continue our efforts i listen 10 Ron-smokers' opimions and w0
achieve sensidle agcomodation where smokers and NON-SMOKETS
can work fogether and co-exist '
<Employees>

e, & empioyees of one of the lezding tobacee coMpanies. toke

pride, dedication and responsibility in proviging valyed tobacto
brands 10 SUr QUSTOMeT.
We will provide gtiractive business cpperunities for those who
. arecapable end matvated. )
“we il contnue our-gfforts 5o that we &an ankance employee
san¢faction.
<Shareholders>
Gur mission s charactesized by the developmant of consrstent posi-
Tions in ndividual mafkets through selection and concentranan, in .
order o generate lang-term value in the tobsced business, We
opergte ah opert and ranspAreNt business in accordance with
_ social rles and regulations in order 1o safeguard shareholgers’
interests. - '

'@ Yobacco Business Management Guideline
Tobaceo is 5 controversial product and ‘public authorities have
 determingd that with smoking ome heatth risks: As 3 chacee
. business operator, we therefore reqagnize that we must areet high
social expectations of honesty and transparency. B
.. We have esiblished managament giitiefines by which we disci-
. pline oursetves in order 1o meet these expectations, and are o~
mitted o the following prindiples: ‘
'+ <Opefiness abent therrisks of smoking> S
public auindrities have detgrminiéd that smoking Gauses ot s 20
jmportant rigk factor of @ humber of diseases. We support efforts
10 atvise smekers accordingly. No one should smoke without
kowiedge aoout the risks of smoking.
<Transparency about our produce
Smokers Should be informed about the products. We acknowledge
and take on the responsibility 4o tel them what we put into our
cigarettes- ’




’
'
"
. Voo o

| «Endeavring torreduce the risks qf smoking> C

We go not beliéve that smeking isks can be rompleiEly eliminated,
but therg 2re ways in swhichive.may be ablE D redoce Them WWe are
Committed ko developing dgareties that have the potantid) 15 reduce
the tisks of smoking. oo .
ot smtking prventians

r
¥

" Miogrs shauld;petsmoke. Youth s’r\:uki{)g 152 sbcietal proddem and |

‘cannat be soived by tobacco cosnpanies alone, We are.comumitted 10,

oo playing a_'full‘lr'b:iei,ﬂ‘swppir'ag‘m"mo;?from;-,oﬁiﬁg.]_",“: S
o <ALommodation of smokirs and A STOKers> .‘ "

. '

" pagiple iho 9o not smaka are ofren ritated by tobapeo smoke, |
. Crgarefte ering spails the emdronment, can-cause fire, and
.smokingiaa crowd can be dangerous. a0
pit ol times, smokers thould ShOW TOTE Courtesy 13 nen-smokers
. and o sociery, o o
\We atvocats raaschable sclurions o sceotmodate siiokers and - '

“pon-5mokers, t

internatiana) Tobacco Producis-Markiting Standards.
In September 2001, /T and six tobacce compantes, Including
‘Phifip Moris Imerratioral-and British American Tobaceo,

reathed am agreement on the internationsl Tobacco Products

Marketing Standards, which have been implemented since
Sepremiber 2002, '

These standards represent a minimurm &2t of mumwally
adopred restrictians for tobaceo product marketing world-
wide, by which the patticipating tobatco rompanies ensure.
et rharketing is directed only at informed adufts who

choosa to smoke and never at youths, These standards cover
* all aspects of marketing amivities, including print media, hill-,
" ‘hoards, electronic medialvsafes promaotion events, packaging,

and spansorship, o \

provisions.of the 'mternaﬁonal “Tabacco Products
Marketinig Standards | '
Thg: inain points are as folows; -

& Restricting broadcast and gleciyonic media marketing o AUl only

melevision arid radio advertiing shall not be congucted when the
" adult stanss of the udienice cannot be verified, even n countries

twhar teleVsen and Yadio,1aDacco advertisiag.s DOt prohited. '
© . This restricion also appli=sto Intarnet aoverdsing: o
" wize and location it on bilooards SR

Bliboards shallngt exceed 35m? and shall not be plazed doser
shan 100m from schopls antended primardy by underega people.

‘@ flestricion of readershiﬁ in-print media
Agvergsing in print media shall be fimited to those whase réader-
ship is over 75% aduht.

& Restriction on advertisement soment

Avectissgrents shall not rget minors of use celebrities. No advers

" isemenmshal sggest that gmoking gnhances Sports perfomance’

‘ot athletc, professiondl, soda; of saxual success. All advertise
 rients inpn‘pc_iple shall canry 2 heatthwaralng. .
 Resticion f pramotions! Giters and progams 10 0UTs ,
Promotionat otférs and programs shall be directad ohly at adults.
¥ ] Resﬁié‘&oﬁbfp&gqﬁuﬁm'{alﬁe.venﬁwvaduls" PR
.. Agmission 1n, promotiona) gvents sl be limited 2o aduiss.
@ Restickon 6 sporiorship 2civiies ‘
o spyonsorship actvitias shal be of partoulat appet] 10 yYOuths.
{Fian Decimber 2006, orly spensorship of events whare adult
+ axtandance is over 78%)

Adult Jdeptification Vending Mechines e
* In Nevember 2001, ihe Tobacco Institute of Japan mOJ)"‘,
the iapan Tobacconist Federation,.and the Japan venting -
'Machine Manufacturers Assodation reached an agreement o
cooparate in the development andl'lmpiernenta’cion of dga-
retre vending machines equipped with 2dult identification
gystams and haye been working together toward aquippng
all vending machines throughout Japan with such systems
by 2008,

.vending miachines with these systems are desighed 10
prevent minors from purchasing cigareites from vending
machines and will dispense cigarettes only after scanning and
verifying special 1C cards that ndicate the purchaser’s age.

Hfram Apdil 2002 10 March 2003 in Yekaichiva, Chiba

.. Prafecture, with the full support of local authorities. Basic

fechhical and operational knowledge was attsined and mar-
. ket recsptivity was. ascertained In consideration of the resuls

. of these tests, JT.is curcently conducting dei'elupm entand

 prearation for nationwide implementation of these
machinies in 2008. - S

T fully respacts the intertions of these cooperative effors -

: mand"intends ta actively participate in thé s}nopth'gjevelop—
L and tplementation of adult identification vending
machines C

propagacen of Information regarding tobacco, enhance he seund tevelop-
ment gt he 4obacco Industry in sur EOUnLY, and thereby sentribue 10 the
soung progress of the natenal 2conoimy by respohding ppropriately to whe
sodial eAMIGRMENT sumounding sabacco and cafryng out vanous Fcuvrties,

The TIOj was eswzblished as » veluntary prganzansh ) 1967 asa8 offshoot
of the Associauign of Tobacco Manufecturess. which was astasisned i 1985,
end was fRorganized 8§ an \ncorporated body 1480,

Qne-year trial use of thess new machines wes conducted

Japan Tobacco Int @ Annual Repori 2003
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Youﬁr Sraoking Preuent‘an I , ' K
?n Japan. smokmg by mlrmrs hasbeen prohubl‘ced by Jaw for .

. .gore than 2 cehtury Thls problem hastube ‘addressed by al
- ‘members.cofsodsty, T, ¢ inl order to ‘fukfnll its sodial responsxbnh-

1y, bas. been lmplemarmng Yaribys measuires in coopara‘uon

© o with other felevént organizations, sum as, mrormmg the

.public t0 p:event smokmg by youths. -
" s a memberif the TI0J, mainlyfor.the plrpose of youth
smckmg preverﬁion, IT s, observed voluntary standards

fnr advsn'lsmg, s3les promation, and other related agiivities.’ ‘

The standards were re:e'\ﬂy rewséd ta mc::rpomte the
Intemnational’ Tobacco Products Marketing’ Standards whlch
-ware agreed Lipon in September 2001. These revislens went
into effectin June 2002, JT actvely suppurts the voluntary
standards &nd farrhfuhy adheres 1o them. '

.
Wt

Pmmot}ng Harmony betwaen Smokers
and Nonsrackers
Tohaceo smoke can be inritating to those who do no’c smoke,
and inconsiderate smokers can be a sodalnuisance. As
. tobacco manufacturer, JT believes it is necessary 1o pmm'me
better smok?ng manners and appropriate accommodation
for smokers and nonsmkers in public piaces, stc., to enable
a society'where sﬁmkers and nomsmokers coexist

4T, for morn than a guarter of a century, has been organiz-

. ing campatgns sifed ut fostering better. smcknng T™Tanners.

Thmugh the media, we hava sought to increase public
awareness for courtesy toward nonsmokers and have
‘ mstaﬂed many. standing ashtrays in public fadlities as well as
dlstr’buted portable astmrays and organized street-cleaning .

" actvites. Furthermore o improve smoking enwonments

mpubhc piaces, we strive to promate accorrmodavcn and
. have been @rrying. QUtRRD on fhe mprcwementof air-
‘cqrﬁmomng Lgchnologles. '

'

S WHD' Pramswurk(onvsn’uun on Tobaer.o tcntml e

. Du’mg the May 1993 Wor!d Hea!z.h Assembly o the WHO!
-aresglution was passed’to commence work toveard the

. :adopﬁcn of the Framework Convention an Tébacco Contral.

' Followmg 3. roundsnf mtergovemmen‘tal ‘hegotiations,

. 1he C'unventlon was adopted in May 2003. The new FCTC

proposes vanous pzo\nswna mcludmg the fcllowmg

@ Price and et SRERSUNES,
Including prohibition or restiction orf duty-ree sales, a8 appro-
* priate and without pre]udbce tothe nahons sovereign taxation
polikies,

_':' Packading and labelmg l’eSans

Medsres incloting those 1o ensurz that tebacco product package
ing ard’ labdmg 4o not promcue 4 Tobatco product by any means
that would treate the fase Impression that the particular tohaceo
froduct. i Ias hariul than otisér tobaero products {these may
indude etme suth as *fowtar,” "light.” of ~mild*} and that the
‘realth warning shall be no less 1han 30% of-the pringpal dlsplay
areas.

@ Restrictions on agvertising
including a comprehensive ban, af restrictions in the casa of

. nations that cannbt undertake  comprenensive ban due 1 con-
smumna\ principhes, of ail tobacco advertlsing, prnmotlcn and
sponsorsh:p

-@ Ban on salas of tobaceo products to minors
including adaption and implementation of effective measures Tiat
may indude those ensuring that tobacco vending machines under
its ;unscﬁcnon are not accassiole 10 MINGIS,

@ provision of sppait for ecana'nxcally vigble shernative activities
Rromaticn of ecanomically viable alternatives for tobacc workers,
growars and sefllers, as appropriate.

0 Resenranons
! No resarvations may be-made {o this convention,

This Convention shall enter inta force on the 80th day fo-

. luwmg the'date of depasit of Yhe 40th instrument of ratifica-

tion. For each nation that ratifi ies thereaftar, the Convention
shal enter o force on the,30th day following'the date of '
‘the deposit. ' '

IT futly mtends tn coordmate thh governments for e
rmplementatan of itemsicwardvmdw IT is Biready. commxt
ted volumzn]y and proact!yely to support, induding the pre-
wernion of Lmderage smokmg and illicit sales. Alse, Tot the
sake of effective lmplementatuon of the Convention, we
continue to Take issue with the excessive enforcement of a
single set of restrictions globally, without taking into account
th;e' vnique legal systems, cultures, and histories of individual

i

nations.




o EU Tobw Canh'oi ﬁrre&'ﬂve ,
Y onJufy 18,2001, thel LI Tobicco: . onrl Directive: emered
imo force. The pumcse of the drective Is to approximate e
o laws, reguiztions. and admrnrsiratme provisions of tha'mam- ?
ber states concernmg tar, mcot]ne, ang, earban monoxide lev-

We, at JT te£ogn ze1hat‘the many tﬁé prévisions of this
N Conven'hcn are |eft tothe dlSCfEtIDn of eachsignatory cousr-

Y, and wa‘wrsh 16 see future meaSures adnpted inan.

' app[opnate anid reasonable mannerwnh respea 16 8ach

caunw’s mdlvldual urcurnsfances

" pls, warning labats gh ingividua) packages, ingrediems, and

. ‘prodyict description terminclogy.

Rrimary segulations areas ¥ollows:

@ Limits on tar, nicotine, and garbon monoxide of 10mg‘ mg, and
10mg per dgaretts, rspecbveTy

'@ Introtuction of quanijtative labefing for @r, nicotdne, and carbon
‘monaxide Tevals, general warning latels, arid additreral warming |
" Iabals '

. L‘);scl:sure © consurmiers of tha fngredlentsin tebacca produsts,
usage guahtity, seasen for tneir usage. toxicojogical datz, and
effects on health .

@ Bans on the use of such words as "light” or “mild” for cigaretiss
Limits on Tar, picotine, and carbon monoxide will go

finta effect on Janwary 1, 2004, #nd néw warming labels

and product descriptions will be applied from the end of

September 2003.

Although the drre:tNE seeks to'ban such geseriptive terms
as "light” or mrid JT cannot agree on the application of

1this. ban 10 MILD SEVEN, whlch is a registered tademark in ab

£V member na‘hons and taunched a legal challenge In the
European Coun of First lnstance fot the null;ﬁcanon -af the
dause In queﬁ:on However, this' laimiwas wrnad down

in September 2002

T Attrtude-toward Ban on Dusmpmre Terms _
Provisions that prohibit s from using EurMILD SEVEN trade-

matk mfnnge upan out propeuy rights, ang we will challenge

" such provisions in ofder to globally protect our ¢ valuzble grop:
__erty rights through alLarallable legal means.

Tahanco—Ralatéd ngatron r

"\ Asof August'31, 2003, )T was involved in 41 Iaw;unts relazed g
* 110 smoking and health, 40 overseas andone it Japari. |

. n Japan, i current}y facing a surt filec by pialntl"is

N ‘ clarmmg damege to their health allegedlycausedby smoking.
" Dverseas, in addiborto simlar tigationi JTis also involved in

¢ases nnmated by national or. reg:onal govemmem bodies”

: seakmg recavery, of health care costs: related 1o wobacca-
rekted |1Inesses o o
Also s ong.of the de‘fendants in the Frbga‘uon instituted
inthe Umted Smtesby tha EU and 10 member ates agemst
' the major EIQBTE"\:Q companles The hnga’uon was originally

brought in Navember 2000 by the EU, aﬂegmg that the major

' cigarate, companies, including JT, systemancally pamcwated

in smupgling schemes znd thus caused damages T Bconomic
intarests of the EU, After the federal ‘district court dismissed
the case in 2001, the EU and the newly added 10 member
states brought 3 new case in January 2002 before the same
court, which also dismissed it. The plaintiffs have filed an
appeal. .

In response to plaintiffs’ alizgations in those cases, we wil

_ vigorously defend ourselves on rr\any bases, which we believe

are valig.

fapan Tobacco nc. e Anncal Reperl 2003



_ lapen Tobacco (nc.gi\nnual Report 2003

'HISTORY OF IT

;.
‘-.

', yJT’s h:s-tory dates batk to 1898, when a govemment bureau '
: Was'formai 1 operate H] monopoiy for the sale of domestic -
. {eaf tobacm i the early 1900s, this monopo'y Was extended . )
) aﬂ tobacm prodncﬁ mJapan and the domesnc sah busn-

nass. The bureaUWas !hturporated in 1949 asthe Japan .

. ~T Qbacco enq Salt Pubhc Corpnraﬁnri (JTS):ta act asthe toﬁn- v
: ', try*s 5015 prodm:er and 5upp1ier of mbacco and solef purchas- )
l er andsuppt-em% saft produr:ts n tius tapaciy, s pn:wrded ‘
_asteble supply of tabaeco products, and ser.ured government
revenues, Howeve, i the mid-1970s, condmons arese 1hat )

requnedthe rethvnklng ofthe basuc structure of the monop-
oly and public corperation sysr.em.

A!though tha domestic tobacco market had bEen grawirg
unti the mid:1970s, the growth in 'demand for cgam*tes in
Japan slowed afterward as ] :esui: m‘a number of factars, )
including demographlcmnﬁs, heaith concerns, prive increass
es,.and a peaking of the rate of mgarette consumption per
smoker. ftwas further preducred that these wends would per-

 sist, Meanwhﬂe. JTS ‘was suddénly taced with s':rong pragsure -

frem other countrigs, particularly the Unrted States, to open

.the Japansse tobacca market 0 help even the trade balance.

Moreover, such damand Fer increased market access from
‘Europe and the United States was predicted ta incrazse in the
years to come, requiring ITS to pregare for even mare intense
market competiton:

Such increased competition gemendad mare efficiant busi-
ness ‘operation based on auttnomy and resgénsibility of man-

" agement. However, JT5 faced-a number of constraints due 1o

its status as a public corparation. Fol example, JTS's bperat-

.ing budget and wapital mvestment plans were subjectto rati-
.+ ficatior by the Japanese Diet and were determined suicdyon *
. an annua! basis, which made long-tefm planﬁip'gllﬂi'fﬁduh. '

l[—drthermo;é}the ‘limitaﬁdon Bt T 's-séope of oberatiqns and
irwestment under the lapan Tobaccs and Salt Puslic
Corporation Law prohibited any biusiness diverstheation. |

" TS was also requireq'to purchase all dofhesr:icallyl grown

. deaf tobarco, of which there was 2 substattia) surplus snd

Which Was significantly more expensive thin foreign-grown
leaf tobacco. Sales.volumne stagnation in the late 1970s crea-
ed an imbalance in leat 1obacco supply and generated a con-
siderable surplus inventory. At the same time, there was
increased-public interest in the privatization of public corpe-
rations within the context of an administrative reform inhia-

- tive in Japan. In a report presented to the Japanese

government in 1982, the Provisional Commission on

Adm'ir‘x,istraﬁ\'fe\kef'dr'm ;recor'nmehded the privatization of

. . three! public corporations. indluding JTS. Thie governmeqt's
* adoption of this- re:ommandaﬁon led zo'the Enammem of

the Tobacco Business Law and the Japan Tobacco Inc. Law
in 1984, the subsequ.rﬁ esrabhshment m‘ Japan Tobatce

' lnc. mAprll: 1985, and The Shccassiarg of JTS 5 busmess and o

as8e 10 IT'Y m. fheir entxre‘ty

" The abohtnon cf the monopoly system forthe sale of
fobacco was accdmpam ed'by the 0psning of the Japanese
tobago market 1o foreign tobasco companies. Compeﬂttcn

"inthe domestic market from fDrmgn mbacco pmuucts

increased with thl< measure arid then mtensmed further with
the susperwon of at! customs guties on Jmpcrrted 10bacco

_ products in 1987, fol(oﬁmng negatiations betwesn the

japenese ang U.5. governments. This aation (educed the
price of foreighjﬁgqreftes ang allowsd fareign companies’
market share 1o grow more rapidly.

From the date of rts estauhshmen'c untit 1934, Japan
Tobageoe inc. was Whoily owmad by the govemment. A total
of one-third of Japan Tobacco Inc.’s commen stodk (666,666
sharas) was sold in October 1994 and June 1996, Coinciding
with the inftial sale, Japan Tabacce Inc.'s cammon stock. also'
became listed oneach of Japan's eight stock exchanges. ‘

Foliowing the repesl of the manapoly law for the sals of
salt produsts in March 19986, Japan Tobaceo Int. wransferred
all asset:t righ’é, and obligations relating to salt operations to
the 5ak irdustry C'enl:er ¢f Japan, & newly established antty
supenvised by the Japanese gavernment,

Japan Tobacco Inc. had prewdg:s.lyman_'aged the salt busi-
ness exdusively on ‘oehalf of the Japanese govemment under
the monopoly law for the sale of ssit products. The transfer
tid pot affest sharehplder ngh'cs or interests, because share—

4 hotder rights did not Iegaliy extend to sa|toperatmns

\In receltt years, ST has built up and axpanded mtemamnal

‘cobaccc pharmaceuhca!s and foods buginesses. in May

1998,.J7 acqu;red the nomU 5. tohacco Dpera,tJons qi RIR
Nabisco for apprnx!mateiy Uss7 B, billior. |nthepharmaceuv- ‘
cals sector, JT acquired a ma)cmy share of Torii

Pharmaceurical, a company listed on the Tokya Stock

Exchange with an extensive markating network in Japan, in
1998. In the focds business, JT acquired a majority share of
Unimat Corporation in 1998, a Japanese vending machine
operawor with a large nationwide network of vending machines,
which we renamed Japan Beverage. In 1999, JT acquired the
foods division, comprising the manufacture of frozen foods,



C pany Tokyu Depanmem Stote, wrththe aim of Expandlng ns .

saasomngs, and bakery produas of Aszhi Kasen Further i
" 2002, 'theCumpany acqulred aff outsrandxng shares of Saint-
Germain, a bakery praducts retoif chain, éram its parert cam—" .

- foods busmess by uﬁllzmg its own dlstmchve 'technnlogy for
'I.'bakery produns t AR . v
T i Agnl 2002, at the't 54ﬂwrb"mary sessio of the Djet 2
' fav wag efdted ©o pamalfy tevise the Japan Tebagco’ lnc :
Law. Under the amended lgw, the Japanese government
. .must contine xo hold st least one-haffone million sharas) of
al the okiginal shares (twa milion shares) tnatthe Japanese
i ‘government acquired upo:nlapan Tobaccq Inc.'s establish- .
ement and more than che-third of issued stares. This will
'avowJapanTobacco Ine. o Issue.new shares irt an-amount
up 1o but not induding one million shares, Frevlousiy, the
‘Japanase government was obhgated %o hold at lsast ’twn
" thirds o Japan Tobacco inc.'s outstznting shares.

»

December 1698

o

v

Agril 1985

" Japan. Tobacco Inc. wag arablshed The Busmes
,.Deve(opmqm Dhvision'was'sat up 1o promote and

tacim the laundhyof new busiessss. | . -

", Subsequent prganizztional enhancements af cpeﬁ‘
. gtions were-implemented in each husiness ared
':hrough iy 1990; the businets development div-

sion was:eqrganmed and the pharmaceuum

+, agriclire, and cmerdms;om ) esﬁbhshe«-

_ Ocrober 1983

The Company name, T w&sadomed ‘nr Uubh

relations PUTpOSES:

Seprember 1593

The Central Fharmaceutics! Research Institute was |

established 1 bolstertha R&ﬁ swucture of ﬂ's
pharmaceuticels business.

Oé:cber 1982

354,276 governmentheld'shares wers released, ,
and Japan Tobacke . was listed o the first sex-

. yions of the Tokys, Osake; and Nagoya stock

gxchanges.

June 1958

272,390 government-held shares were released.

April 1998

An alliance forthe beveragas business was con-

-¢huded with Unimat Corparation, after which I

purchased a majority share in that company.

IT squired a mjority of the issuet and puwrand-
ing shares of Torii Phammaceutical Co,, Ltd,

April 1999

Following the repazl of the monopoly {aw for the

* sale.cf salt products, JT cedsed its salt operations.

Msy 1335

JT atquired RIRNabisco, lnc 5 non-U.S. 1obacco
business.

July 1983

IT acquired the feods busingss of Asahi Rasel
Carporation, sntfuding eight of Asahl Kasei's sub-
sidiaries .

October 1999

In pharmeceutical opergtons, R&D aclivilles were
corcentratad at Japan Tobasca fnc., and markets

iing funttions were integrated with Toril

Pharmacautical.

January 2000

ft's internianional tchacco operzrions and RIR
Interngtional InC 's operations were mesged,

May 2002

IT arquied SeintGermain <c., Ltd., From lts par-

gny company, Tokyu Deparmer Store Co., Lid.

lapan Tabacce Inc @ Annual Repari 2003



SOCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS B

te

» Asdn 'upstantiing torporate citizen, T contrlbutes to sa:zety Our JT Buohxstory Research Hall is one of only a handfu! of

thrDugh'its busmess. auttural; and cnmmuni‘ty acyvities: " fadilities around the warld devoted to the topic of the’ hree-’,
_ ' 'Vuiunteer arfvities have bfossomed in recert years s i bﬂhon-year history of life on earth. it comprises beth hatls: and

an expressscm of secial concern. JT,organizes suth actlvmes CT galIenes 10 provige a fascinating glimpse mto the ongms and
, ﬁ'|rough'the Tnbacco )nduswy Kosaikai (assoclauon) and sub- rustory oflife. '
sidizes: VOlUn‘eer wark cdrried bitt by NPOs in such fields a5 '

We a}sc manmzm the Tobacco and Salt Museum. wh;ch

. e . weriam, envxronment, "ard educaﬁom ofthe foung. We L hightxghts the rolg o'f 1ohaceo and saltin somety and holds
v ' nave als offered SChofarshnpS for-Asian studemsﬂudymg "t seminrsand spedial mihibitions. x
m Japan. L , L . L actwe)y cortiributgs o cornmun\tles overseas a8 weu

« IT hasbiean prxnding support for vg'um activbes in the ﬁc]d of iﬂlﬂhﬂdb‘- . through T Internatlonal As pad of its r&sponsmlllty ':oward
 cation through NBDs nd pther orgodizetiors and oifern scholssiis o~
o smmﬂs avogngn e e g 2003 - customers, shereholders,employees and the surrourd-
tny communmes,whmh comprisé its s:akeholders. J‘I’

mances by professional domestic ofchestras. it also sponsors Australia, reforestation in Tanzania, and nature présafvation

music fosTivals cemtered on Yaining seminars by famous viril-  campaigns in Taiwan, In the area af culture and the arts, T

505 35 well s holding concerts in sugpart of the en_semble " Intemational participates in & wide variety of activides, includ-

To contribute to local commentties, JT offers its business International aCtively supports ical communites and
* acilities furthe use of focal communivies, eanducts street- " their actMities. , o
" dleaning campaigns, and provides furiding, persornel, and Exa}nples of 1T international’s recent efforts i 5052& pro- .
" equipment.to local events. W also urge our employees. gramsand charitabie donztions mclude promdlng scholar-
2 0.become involyed in volunteer work by providing special ships for young journalistsin Romania o study in the Unfted
’-;r ., vplunteer leave and information on nationwide vplunteer $ttes and making donations to foster homes and @ chil-
g aciivities through JT°5 newsietter, gren's hospital in Russia. Donations are 3ls0 Made to orphan- ‘
é We suppert dassical music through the Affinis Ards ages i Kiev end charities dealing with the reinsertion of
@  Foundatien; which we established in 1988, The Foundatian adults into society. In the ‘area of environmental protecton,
= helps Japanese musicians study cverseas and funds perfor-  * e suppon programs for the pratection of wild eagles in
:
f‘é .
2
E

civities of orchestra members, ing ‘archaclogical excavation, the reconstruction of ancient

We also opened the'JT Ar Hall Affinis as 5 center of glassi~ persj an-reﬁés in Tarkey, the naticnal ballet in Russia, the mod- ‘

cal fusic cancerts in the' JT Bmld‘mg in 1985. The hall sup-

erh art museum in Geneva, &nd alse many other communrry
ports performers and local :mzens o the musical lével by acivities (| ocal theaters, orehestras, act cente Js) around the
hosting all kinds of programs in classical musk—paniciarly word, .
thamiber mumc—peﬁormed by niversity students, yotng v, v i
musc?ahs and muoses enher free of charge or fora ‘
nomma! hv_ : X

Strest-dearting campaign \ o Yobacss and Salt Museurn




' PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

« T considers rESponsweness to enmrnnmentahssues W be
E partcn‘ fts.sodal, rﬁponsnbum asa c:rporatmn and treafs this ',

E B 'top pnority yukiness issue wnh dirert bearmg on .ﬂ”s

eontinued e)ustenca o

In 1995; we fa(mulated our J’T Global Environment -,

Charter, 'y which was followed by the enactment of the n”

g Enwronmantat Action Blan{ in 1996. These two documents

, pro\nde medmm-fen'n oh}edh‘yes and gurdeh nes far ou enw- ':
g ronmemal protection effarts, which we. are nmplemem:ng @,

all manufacturihg plams, otficas, ard facilities, We' haw since

tzken fm‘ther steps'to improve eymrunmental managemem. '

|ndudmg the formulation of general regu]atlons for hel]
G.noup s environmanta! management in April 2003,

The primary tontent of IT's environmerital protecnon
efforts Is as fol!cws

' Glcbal-Wahﬂtng Praventint,
L0y Ermssion Volume Reduction

3T 15 working to conserve energy through the conversion to .
high-efficiency boilers and the implementation of cogenera-
Ton systems and other systems. R is also striving 1o reduce
€O, enssion volumes through conversion 1o natural gas
from heavy oilasan eriergy source.

Wase: Reduction '

JT strives to.curb waste emissions, recycls waste products
and redute u'lsposa‘ volumes. Programs are m place atJT's ‘
manufacturing plants to'sliminate lanafill disposat of wasie " .
and attain 100% recyding sates, C

:Environmental Cansideration’

dtthe’ Product and Distribution tevals |
We beheva that, along with enmronmerﬁak protectlon W
efforrs at business fadilities, the reduction of e gnvirgns "’

. mentai 1mpact of our produtts is one of our mcst orudal, . ,_"
Hasks as3 manufac:uner InMarch 2003 we: formulated the
T Ccm'amer and Packaging Environmentsi Cmpllance Palicy

352 means to reduce the environmental impact of our prog-
uct containers and packaging. We completely modifled the
packaging of our entire product ling and ¢onvarted 0 100% .
"green* materials for containers and packaging. We are also
engaged in the development of more environment-friendly
products.

_ JTan takes measures to reauce envisonmental impact ar
the dlstrlbutmn stager As oF Marth 81, 2003, we had 16¢
Business vehldes and 25 tranSporc wehicles in operanon that

'run on natwral gas, ang \{va plart to continually increase these

nunbers aver the qnoryi_hs 3d years ahead.

' Green Purthasmg . :
J‘rsgreen purd\asmg =frorts commenced w:xh office suppl’es '

-and have cnntmued 1 e.upand in scope. Regarding work
dm.hes and uriformms, mora ﬁnan €.300 of our employess
‘Wear clothing made from recyded PET bottlas.

Envlromnenial Managernent Symms

in June 2003, 150 14001 environmental managemem certfi
gation was achleved at al] domestic cigarette manufacturing
p)ams Furthermore, to enhance me efectiveness of the
efforts of-our branches and research facilities, we will assem-

. ble 150 14001-compliznt systems by fiscal 2004 yearend

as wall as create an environmenitaf management SySEm by
fiscal 2005 year-eng for the entire JT Group, supparted by
our veripus husinasses, including tobacco, pharmaceuticals,
and foods. ‘

Envirc'gmental Management Qrganization of J7

CEQ Exgquove Mecong
prr————— )
i Audhing Div. prosmerm s
T Growp £ Wal |
Mansgement Global Enwiranenam
Represpntatva Compmae
{Planning Group Leaden
1
Phivisional Ermrenmental
Managsmeant
s
DirectorsVice Prasidens} | '

o ] [Fomwmns]
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CONSOLIDATED SIX-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

lapan Tebaceo Inc and Consolidated Subsidiaries / Years enged March 31

Milior of
Mibons of yen U.S. dollers
1998 16990 2000 2001 2002 2003< 2003
For the yean
T NEL SBlES e ¥ASE6,919  ¥3,876,528  ¥4,371,250 ¥4,501,701  ¥4,544.175 ¥4,492,264 837,373
Cperating Income ...... 143,448 168,899 153,972 139,965 163,805 183,963 1,572
NELINCOME wiorerermriarns . 58,020 74,633 50,792 43,687 36,850 75,302 626
At year-end:
Net property, plant
and equipment ... ¥ 673,358 ¥ 675,883 ¥ 770,639 ¥ 757,311 ¥ 743712 ¥ 733,314 S5 6,101
Total 855815 creeerienrverens 2,058,681 2228566 3,095,298  3,188230 3,063,077 2,957,665 24,608
Long-term debt.......... 81,868 63,639 550,669 475,351 399,545 348,066 2,896
Total shareholders’
BAUITY wrvarrsserarerenerene 1,355,668 1,415,996 1,526,583 t,513,846 1,613,105 1,622,654 13,498
Ratios:
__Retumon
equny(%) . 5.39 1345 2.87 236 485 -
Equity 1© é&se‘é‘(%)"" 8585 T 6354 48,32 £7.48 52.66 34.86
Yen u.S. dallarz
1998 1993 2000 2001 2002 2003 2003
Amounts per share:
NetinCcome e ¥ 29,010 ¥ 37,317 ¥ 25395 ¥ 21,843 ¥ 18425 ¥ 37586 § 313
Shareholders’ equity,., 677,834 707,998 763,292 756.923 806,552 811,263 6,749
Cash dividends appli-
ceble 1o the year...... 7.000 7,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 10,000 83

Noie; Figures stated In U.S. dallars in this taport am vansiaed solely for convenience 2t the rale of ¥120.20 per 51, the rae of exchange as of March 31, 200%
{1) As doomzed n Nowe 3 § 1o the cansobdated tinanzial sutements, ters was 3 change i the accoumng Tor lisbiy for rotremerr banelis effective Aprit 1, 1958,

(2) As discussed in Now 3 /) § and m} 10 the

dawd imandsl

with now for fmandiai k

wifeclve Aprd 2000, the consolidanad fimandlal swtements have been prepared in accordunce
, fareign qurrency Vensacoens and amployces’ rotirement benelits,

() As discussed in Nt 3 ) 1o the conseligard finangial stnemeny, effective from January 1, 2002, goedwili and other inteniible assow of a foreign consolicated subsidiary
hive been accounted for n Accovdante with new accounting standards, Aka, 32 dxcussad m Nete 2 ) to the comsalidated financial staemens, aﬁ-cwu Apri 2002, the

Company changcd s mahad of ing for the vanstabon into J

yen of the tevenile and wxpensa

s of foreign

Pincan £l
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Incame statemeant data Miliions of yen Millions of L.5. dobers
For the yoar ended March 31, 2001 2002 2043 2003
Net 5ales vocrrsreeene ¥4 501,701 ¥4,544,175  ¥4,492,284 §37373
Cost of 58S “ . 3,571,153 3,598,786 3,569,334 29,695
Gross profit 930,548 945,379 922,870 7,678
Seliing, general and 30Ministrative eXPEASES. ... orcvrereccvcee s 790,583 781,574 . 733,907 6,106
Operating income ... .. 139,965 163,805 188,963 1,572
Other expenses, net (20,181) (65,562) {46,465) (286)
income before income {axas and minority interest 119,784 98,243 142,498 1,186
Income taxes 70,665 $6,730 61,814 515
Income before mingrity interast......... 458,115 41,513 i B0,684 671
Minority interest 5,428 4,653 5,382 45
Net inCome . eteer ettt et baaniee AR T RSO ¥ 43,687 ¥ 36,850 ¥ 75,302 § 626

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

Net Sales

Net sales for the year ended March 31, 2003 decreased 1.4% to ¥4,452.3 billion, due primarily to & detrease in Tobacco

business Sales of ¥43.6 billion. Net sales amounts discussed below represent artounts afer the elimination of intersegment

fevanues.

® Tobaceo Business

Net sajes for the ysar ended March 31, 2003 deeased 1.0% to ¥4,134.5 billicn from the previous fiscal year, Decreases in

sales in our domestic tobacce bu'sines due 0.2 decrease in sales volume were only partially offset by an merease in szlas from

our international tobacea business, We sold 438.2 billion dgarettes worldwide for the year ended March 31, 2003.
—Dornestic Tobacco Business
Net sales for the damestic tobacco business, which comprises salas in Japan of tobacco products manufactured by us in or
outside Japan and products manyfactured by foreign tobacco manufacturers for which we serve as whalesalers, were
¥3,443.1 billion, a decrease of 2.0% from the previous fiscal year. Net sales from the domestic tobacce business dacreased
dus to a drop in sales volume of tobacco proguets we manufactured. The decling was mainly due to weak demand influenced
by a weak economy and a reduction in the number of smokers reflecting social factors such as growing health consciousness
and the aging of Japaness sodisty, This wes pardally offset by an increase in the average net sales price of cigarenes sold in
Jzpan.
—fnternational Tobacco Business
Net szles fram the intemational tobacco business were ¥651.4 billion, an increase of 4.1% from the previous fiscal year
despite the adverse effect of foreign currency ranslation into Japanese yan. This increase in net sales was primarily due 10 2n
increase in average unit price as & resuit of 2 combination of & shift toward higher priced products, reflectirig an increase in
ssles volume of global flagship brands, an increase in sales in higher retail prige markets, and the impasnion of higher excise
taxes, Sales denominated i foreign currencies are first Tanslared into U.S. dollsrs and then wranslated into ven at the aversge
exchange rate for the period, Priar 1o the fiscal year entied March 31, 2003, the translation into yen was conducted at the
periog-end exchange rate.




©

® Pharmacauticals Business

Net sales in the pharmacauticals business declined 12.8% to ¥53.9 billion, due prircipafly to & decrease in royalties from our
ami-HIV viral drug Viracept and a decrease in net sales by our Torii Prwrmaceutical Co., Ld, subsidiary,

® Foods Business )

Net sales from the foods business increased by ¥11.2 billion, or 5.1%, 10 ¥232.4 bilion. Net sales from our processed foods
business incraased to ¥60.1 billion as a result of the indusion of tan months of results of Saimt-Germain due to our acquisiien
of Saimt-Garmain in May 2002, and an increase in sales of frazen foods, which was partially offset by a decease in sales of
ingrediants. Net sales from the beverages business decreased slightly to ¥172.3 billion, despite an increase in sales of JT-brand
beverage products mainly through expanded vending machine disuibution channels, due to the exclusion of JT Canning
Corporation, which was renamed Nishinlhon Canpack Co., Ltd., from our consolidated results as a resul of » reduction of our
ownership in this company. Severage sales volume of our praducts inareased by 1.3% to 31.6 million cases,

® Others

Net sales from other businesses decraased by 14.0% to ¥71,5 billion due primarily 1o a decrease in net sates of the real estate

business and agritusiness operations.

Cost of Sales

For the year ended Mar¢h 31, 2003, cost of sales deareased by ¥25.4 billion, or 0.8%, 1o ¥3,5€9.4 billion, as comparzd 1o the
ysar ended March 31, 2002, pnmarily 25 a result of 3 decrease in domestic tobacco sales volume, cost reduction efforts and the
absence of certain casts of sales related 10 the sale of the Shinagawa property by our real estate business division in the pravious
fiscal year. This decreasé was partially &ffser by an increase in cost of sales assaciated with incressed sales in our intermational

tebacco busingss and the consolidation of Saint-Germain.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

For tha year ended March 31, 2003, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased by ¥47.7 billion, or 6.1%, 16 ¥733.9
billion as compared 10 the previous fiscal year. The decrease was due primarily 10 a decrease in sales promotion expenses,
including ths effect of decreased depredation expenses from using existing tobacce vending machines for a period longer than
the depraciation period, 2 decrease in amonization expense due 10 ¢easing the amortization of goodwil) relating 1o the acquisi-
ton of RIR Nabisco, Inc.’s inmternational tabacco operstions, a reduction in personnel costs as a result of the voluntary early

retirement progiam implemented in the pravious fiscal year and @ decrease in research and development expenses in our phar-

" macauricals busmess.

Qperating Incoma

As 3 resuit of the foregoing factors, operating income increased by ¥25.2 biflicn, or 15.4%, to ¥189.0 bifion. Operaiing income
by business segment was as foliows:

® Tobacco Business )

Operating income in the tobacco business for the year ended March 31, 2003 in¢reased to ¥213.3 biflion, or by 11.0%, from
the previous fiscal year. The increase primarity reflected cost reduction measures in cur domestic tobacco business, the increase
ir{ sales of global flagship brands.in our international tobacco business and ceasing the amartization of goodwill by JT
Internationat due to the adoption of 3 mew accourtting pronouncement, This increase was partially offset by 2 decling in salgs

volume of domastic tobacce.

Japan labacco ln(.@ Annual Repart 20D3
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@ Pharmaceuticals Business
For the year ended March 31, 2003, opereting loss dacreased by ¥5.1 bilfien, or 27.0%, to ¥13.9 billien from the pravious year.
) Tha decrease in operating loss was dus 10 a derease in research and development expenses that were larger in the fiscal yesr
.. because of various ather factors, such as changes in some of our imeraational alliances and one-time tharges required for finan-
dal reparting purposes. This improvement was partially offset by & decrease in Viracept royalties and a decrease in income gen- -
grated frem our Torii Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. subsidiary.
@ Foods Business
For the yezr ended Mareh 31, 2003, our operating loss increased by ¥1.3 billion, or 11.0%, to ¥13.2 billion as compared 1o the
, year ended March 31, 2002, The increase in oparating loss was due primarily to the full amorization of ¥1.7 billion of goodwill
ingurred upon acquisition of Saint-Garmain i May 2002. The increase in operating 10ss was partiafly offset by the absence of
goodwill expenses relating to Japan Beverage.
9 Others
For the year endied March 31, 2003, operating income decreased by ¥0.9 bifiion to ¥0,9 bilfion as compared to the year ended
March 31, 2002. The decréase in operating income was attributable primarily to the decresse in income from our real estate
business.

Other Expenses, Net

Orther expenses, net, decreased ¥18.1 billion to ¥46.5 billion, This decrease was due prmarily to the absence of ¥31.4 billion
recorded in connection with an esrly rgtirement program in the previous fiscal year, as well s the absence of 2 ¥5.0 billion com-
pensation payment related to a contract modification of a joint development agreement beween JT and 2 pharmaceutical com-
pany in the previous fiscai year. The dacrease in other expenses, net, was partiafly offset by foreign exchange losses of ¥6.7

bilien due to an unrealized loss on Japan Tobacco Inc.'s foreign curcency deposits and various currency transactions in JT

Japan Tobacce Inc. @ Annual Repoil 2003

International’s worldwide operations, 3 decrease in gains on the sale of prapeny compared to the previous fiscal year and a loss

on the sale of securities.

Incame bafore Income Taxes and Minarity Interest
As 2 result of the foregoing factors, income before income taxes and mindrity interest increased to ¥142.5 billion, or by 45.0%,

from the previous fiscal year.

Intome Taxes

Income taxes for the year ended March 31, 2003 were ¥61.8 billian, cempared to ¥56.7 billion for the year ended March 31,
2002, due ta an increase in income before income taxes and mindrity interest. For the year ended March 31, 2003, the actual
effective tax rate was 43.4%, compared to 57.7% for the year ended March 31, 2002, The lower actua' effective tax rate was
due primafily 1o the absence of JT intermational’s non-dzductible amertization of goodwill, which was partially ofiset by &

¢change in enterprise tax rates that reduced deferred tax assets and resulted in an increase in income tax of ¥1.8 billion,

income before Minority Interast . v
income before minory interest increased 1o ¥80.7 billien, or by 54.4%, from the previcus fiseal ygar. Minority interest increased
to ¥5.4 billion for the year anded March 31, 2003 from ¥4.7 billion for the previous fiscal year.




Net Income
As a result of the foregoing factors, net income for the year ended March 31, 2003 increased ¥38.5 billion, or 104.3%. to
¥75.3 bililen,

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2001
Net Sales
Net sales for The yazr ended March 31, 2002 increased 0.8% 10 ¥4,544.2 hillion, due primarily to an increass in tobacco busi-
ness sales of ¥37.7 billion and an increase in foods business saies of ¥10.9 billion. Nat sales amaunts discussed below represent
amounts after the elimnation of intersegment revenues.
'® Tobacco Business
Net sales for the year ended March 31, 2002 ingreased 0.9% to ¥4,178.0 billion from the previaus fiscal year. Decreases in sales
in our domestic tobacco business due to & decrease in sales volume ware mare than offset by ncreases in overseas sales from
our international tobacco business. We sald 453.5 biflion dgarettes warldwide in the year ended March 31, 2002,
~Dpmestic Tobacco Business
Net sales for the domestic tobacco business, which cornprises sales in Japan of 1obacco products manufactured by us in or
outside Japan, and products manufagtured by foreign tobacto manufacturers for which we serve as wholasalers, were
¥3,514.0 billion, a decreass of 1.6% from the previous fiscal year. Net sales from the domesti¢ tebaces business decreased
due to a Brep in sales volume of tobacce products we manufactured. The dedine was mainly due to reduced demand prima-
rily attrlbuted to a dafiationary environment and a reduction in the numbar cf smokers reflecting social factors such as grow-
ing health consciousness and the aging of Japaness socfety.
—International Tobacco Business
Net sales from the international 1obacco business were ¥664.0 billion, an increase of 16.7% from the year ended March 31,
2001. This increase In net sales was primarily due 1o the effect of foreign currency Tansfation into Japsnese yen. Safes
denominarted in foreign curencies are first translated into U.S. dollars and then translated into yen at December year-end
rates, Net sales increased as 2 resul of increased demand, dug in part fo active sales promotion and improved economic con-
ditions, in our other regions geographic segment, particularly in Eastern Europe, Russia and Asia.
‘@ Pharmaceuticals Business
Net sales in the pharmacauticals business dedined 6,8% to ¥61.9 billion, due prindpally to our withdrawal in May 2001 from
the OTC drug business 1o focus our pharmaceutical business resaurces on the prescription drug segment, the expiration of the
patent in Septermber 2000 for Futhan, a drug marketad by our Torii Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., subsidiary, and a decrease in royal-
ties from our anﬁ-HN viral drug Viracept.
® Foods Business
— Net sales ffom the foods business increased by ¥10.9 hilion, o 5,29, 1o ¥221.2 billion. The increase was due mainly to
increased sales velumes of beverages and processed foods, The increase in net sales for our beverages business to ¥173.1 billion
reflected an increase in volume sold primarily as 2 result of the inclusion of & ful year's results for Reots dnd the effect of consel-
idatien of additional subsidiaries, Beverage saies valume of our products increased 10 31.2 milfion cases, or by 3.3%. Net sales

from the processed focds business increased as 2 result of steady grewth in consumer frozen foods.
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@ Others
Nat sales from other businesses decreased by 1.9% to ¥83,1 billion due primarily to a general decline in the amount of business
exceeding sales from the real estate business.

Cost of Sales
For the yesr ended,March 31, 2002, cost of sales increased by ¥27.6 billien, or 0.8%, to ¥3,598.8 billion, a5 compared 10 the
year ended March 31, 2001 as a rasuft of a comesponding increase in cost of sales assodiated with increased sales by our inter-

national tobacco business. This ingrease was partially offset by cost decreases resulting from the decling in the sales volume of

" cigarettes soid in Japan,

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

In the year ended March 31, 2002, selling, geners! and edministrative expenses decreased by ¥3.0 billion, or 1.1%, 10 ¥781.6
billion as compared to the previous fiscal year, The teerease was due primarily to the absence of the ¥11.4 billion smortization
charge for an additional pension obligation recorded in the previous year upon the merger of JT Mutal Assistance Association
into the Nationa! Weifare Pension Pian and & de¢rease in advertising and sales promotion expenses which together more than

offset an increase in research and development expenses in our pharmaceuticals business.

Operating Income

As & result of the foregoing factars, operating income increased by ¥23.8 billion, or 17.0%, 1o ¥163.8 billion. Cperating mcome
by business segment was as follows:

® Tobacco Business

Operating income in the 1obacgo business for the yeér ended March 31, 2002 increased o ¥192.1 billion, or by 15.8%, from
the previaus fiscal year, The increase was due primarily to cost reduction efforts in our domestic tabaceo business, including the
effect of decreased depreciation expenses fram using existing vending machings for & period longer than the depreciation peri-
od 2nd & decrease in advertising and sales promation expenses, Increased sales volume from the international business zlso con-
tributed to the increese in operating income. The increase was offset in part by a decline in domestic sales volume of our
tobacco products manufactured in Japan.

@ Pharmaceuticals Business X

For the year ended March 31, 2002, cperating loss increased by ¥6.2 billion, or 48.0%, te ¥19.0 billion from the previous year,
The increase in operating loss was due primarlly to an increase in research and development expenses, a deqease in Futhan
sales by aur Torli Pharmaceutica) Co., Lid. subsidiary, and a decrease in Viracept royalties, The increase in opersting loss was off-
setin part by the degrease in lesses generatad by our OTC drugs business from which we withdrew in May 2001.

M Foods BUsingE T T s e e

For the yaar anded March 31, 2002, our operating loss decreased by ¥5.5 billian, or 31.7%, 10 ¥11.5 billion as compared a the
year endad March 31, 2001, The decrease In operating loss was due primarily 1o an increase in saies volume of beverages sold
through vending machines, more efficient use of largely fiat marketing expenses and a reduction in amortization of goodwih,

& Others

For the year ended March 31, 2002, operating income decreased by ¥1.6 billion 1o ¥1.8 billion as compared to the year ended
Margh 31, 2001, The decreass in operating income is attributable primarily 10 the degrease in income from our real estate busi-
ness as compared 10 the previous year.




Other Expenses, Net

Other expenses, net, increased ¥45.4 billion to ¥65.6 billian. This incréase was due primarily 10 an expense of ¥31.4 billion for
our domestic garly retirement program, business reorganization expenses of ¥13.4 billion incurred in Germany and Puerto Rico

and an ¥8.7 billicn increase in Write-down of investment securities caused by declining share prices, particularly for bank stocks
in Japan. These lossas ware offset in part by an increase of ¥14.3 billion in gain on dispasition of property, plant and equipment.

Income before Intome Taxes and Minority Interest
As a result of the foregoing factors, income before income taxes and minerity interest daclined 1o ¥98.2 billion, or by 18.0%,

. from the.previous fiscal yzar..

Income Taxes

Income taxes for the vear enced March 31, 2002 were ¥36.7 billicn, compared to ¥70.7 billion for the year ended March 31,
2007 due 1o a decrease in income before income taxes and minarity interest. For the year ended March 31, 2002, the actal
effective tax rate was 57.7%, compared 1o 59.0% for the year ended Mareh 31, 2001, The higher effective actual tax rate com-
pared to a 41.75% normal effective statutory tax rate was dug primarily to non-deductible amortization of goodwill and a valua-
tion aliowance recognized for deferred tax assets attributable to operating losses of subsidiarias.

Incoma before Minarity Imterest
Income before minority interest decrzased o ¥41.5 billion, or by 15.5%, from the previous fiscal year. Minority interest
dacreased to ¥4,7 billion for the yaar ended March 31, 2002 frers ¥5.4 billion for the previous fiscal year.

Net Income .
As 2 result of the faregoing factors, net income for the year ended March 31, 2002 decreased ¥6.8 billion, or 15.6%, to
¥36.9 billion.

HQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

In our financial management, we strive 10 maintain a sable financial base in which capital expenditures, strategic acquisitions
and investments, and research and development activities ¢zn be conducted in a cost-efficient and effective manner to grow our
businesses without being affacgted by short-term Auctuations of revenues, We derive the funds we require’to meet our capital
requirements principally from cash fiow provided by operations, borrowings from finandal institutions and issuances of long-
term debt securities, S

CASH FLOWS
Qverview
As of March 31, 2003 and 2002, cash and cash equivalents totaled ¥602.6 biilion and ¥534.5 billion, respectively.
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_ The following table presents information about our césh flows during the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 ang 2003:

Nlons of yen

Year ended March 31, o ‘ 200 2002 2003
Net cash provided by operating acivities ¥393,958 ¥ 89,727 ¥258,057
Net cash usad In investing activities _— (50477)  €0472)  {ASTH)
Net cash used in finandng activities, (76,890)  (124,838)  {111,%48)
Effect of exchangk rate changes and gther 4,230 6,525 3,01)
Net increase {decrease) in sh and ¢ash equivalents.. e 230,741 (69,058) 68,141
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at beginning of year.,, . 372,821 603,562 534,504

Cash and ¢ash equivalents at end of Yaar ... wummnsssmssasnne e ¥B03,562  ¥534504  ¥602,645

YEAR ENDED MARCH 21, 2003 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002
Net cash provided by operating activities was ¥288,1 billion for the year endad March 31, 2003 .compared 0 ¥B8.7 billion for
the previous fiscal year. Cash provided by operating activities in the pravious yzar was reduced by a ¥152.3 billion nst decrease
in exdse t@xes payable over the period assodated with (¥) a relatively high balance of acarued but unpaid excise 1axes as of
March 21, 2001 a5 it was & bank holiday and (y) our valuntary prepayment of exdse taxes prior ¢ the end of 1he period despre
March 31. 2002 also being a bank holiday. During the year endad March 31, 2003, there was & vy billion jnaeasa in exdise
taxes payable. The increase also raflected an increase in income bafore income taxes and minority interest of ¥44.3 billion end 2
reduction jn corporate taxes paid of ¥18.4 billion. This was partially offser by 3 dacrease in other accourts payable during the
year 6f ¥31.8 billion, including lapan Tobasso in¢.'s retirement benefits payable.

Ngt ¢ash used in investing activities was ¥74.9 billion for the year enced March 31, 2003 compared 10 ¥40.5 billion for the
previous fiscal year. This increase was due to an ingréase in the purchase of property, plamt and equipment of ¥12.8 billion, a
reduction in the proceeds from the sale of property, plant and eguipment of ¥11.7 billion and an increase in purchases of short-

term investments of ¥7.6 billion. This was partially offset by an increass in the proceeds from the sales and redemprion of invest-

_mertt securites of ¥12.6 biliion.

Net cash used in financing activities was ¥112.0 billion for the year endéd March 31, 2003 compéred to ¥124.8 blllion for the
previous fiscal year. During both the year ended March 31, 2003 and the year ended March 31, 2002, we reduced long- and
short-term debt through repayment at the scheduled marurity date. The feduction in net cash used was due to the lower
amount of iong-term debt maturing dufing the period.

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 20D1

Net ;ash pmvidedr by operating activities was ¥83.7 biliion for the year ended March 31, 2002, compared 1o ¥394.0 billion for
the previous fiscal yaar, The decrease was primarily due %o the absence of accruad but unpaid tobaceo exdse taxes due to 2
bark holiday on the previcus fiscal year end, resutting in an increase in tobacco excise taxes payable of ¥128.8 billion. Although
Margh 31, 2002 was also a bank holiday, we voluntarily paid tobacca taxes in advance of the due date for the year ended
March 31, 2002 in order to avoid the risk of potential market disorder from the adoption of a new deposit insurance gystem in
Japan. The early payment resulted in a net decrease in tobagco excise Taxes payable of ¥152.3 billion for she year. The aggregate
effect of our 2dvance payment and the payment of taxes for the year endad March 31, 2001 in the next fiscal year was

wicreased cash outflaws in relation 1o 1obscco excise taxes of ¥281.1 billion during the year ended March 31, 2002, the most




significant factor in the decrease in net cash provided by opereiing activities. Cash flow from our international operations
increased significantly.

Net ¢ash used in Investing actvities was ¥40,5 billion for the year ended March 31, 2002, compared 1o ¥80.5 billion for the
previous fiscal year. Although we spent ¥31.8 billion, only sfightly tess than the previcus year, on the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, principally wobacto manufacturing-relatad machinery and equiprent, net cash used in investing activities
still decreased sighificantly dus to an increase in income from the sale of real estate and decreased purchases of secun‘ties.'

Net, cash used in financing activities was ¥124.8 billion for the year ended March 31, 2002, compared 1 ¥77.0 billion for the
previous fiscal year. The increase was due 1o the scheduled repayment of ipng-term and shortsterm dabt.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS
Qur principal capital and liquidity needis have been for capital expenditures, working caphal, strategic acquisitons and jrvest-
ments, repayment of borrowings and payment of interest and funds for payment of dividends and income taxes.

Capital Expenditures

Capitsl expenditures include purchases of praperty, plant and eguipment, 25 waell as trademarks and other assets refated to tan-
gible and intangible assets needed 10 enhance the productivity of our factories and other facilities, strengthen our competitive-
ness, and promete businesses in various fields.

The following table shows capital expenditures far the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003,

Milions of yen
Yesr cndod Margh 31, 2001 2002 2003
APl BRPEAGIIUTES . o.oevvereeeesreseeeresecrerscssers toaerra TR0 0B as s smesns et essssna b anstsecnsansssesensess ¥114,870 ¥96,527 ¥109,179

Fo.r the year ended March 31, 2003, we invested ¥109.2 billion in capital expenditures primarily to improve production capa-
bilities. For the tobacco business, we invested ¥51.0 billion in capital expendituras principally to boost the effidency and flexibili-
ty of manufacturing operations and to enhange new product development. For the pharmaceuticals businass, we invested ¥1.2
billion in capital expenditures to improve rassareh and development facilities and for other purposes. For the foads business, we
invested ¥7.3 billion in capital expenditures primarily to strengthen manufacturing facilitias. For other businesses, we invested
¥38,8 billion in capital expenditures prindpally for rzal estate development profects.

For the year ended March 21, 2002, we invested ¥96.5 billion in capital expenditures primarily to improve production capabil-

ities, For the tcbacco business, we invasted ¥79.1 bilion in ¢apital expenditures principally to boost the effidency and flexibility

*~ of manufacturing oparations and to enhance new product development, For the pharmaceuticals business, we invested ¥2.3 bil-

lion in capital expenditures to improve research and development facilities and for other purposes. For the foeds business, we
“invested ¥8.9 billion in capits! éxpenditures primarily to strengthen manufacturing faciiities. For other businases, we invested
¥18.2 billion in capital axpenditures principally for real estate development projects.

For the year ended March 31, 2001, we invested ¥114.9 billion in capital éxpenditures. For the tobacco business, we invested
¥77.3 billion in capital expenditures principally to boost the efficiency and flexibility of manufacturing operaticns and to
enhance new product develapment. For the pharmaceuticals business, we invested ¥3.7 billion in capital expenditures for
improvement of research and deveiopment faciliies and other purposes, For the foods business, we invested ¥4.2 biflion in capi-
tal gxpenditures primarily to strengthen manufacturing facifities. For other businesses, we invested ¥29.2 biflion in capital expen-

ditures, principally for reaf estate development projects.
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For e year ending March 31, 2004, we plan 10 spend approximately ¥99 billion on cpital expenditures. We plan to spend
approximstely ¥68 billion for machines for faster production of cigarettes, approximately ¥3 billion for pharmaceuﬁcal research
and development facllites, appreximately ¥9 billion for foods production faciiities and approximately ¥20 billion mainly for real
gstate development projer:&.

Working Capital
Our principal working capital requiremerits are for the purchase of raw materials, including leaf tobacco and other inventaries,
salerigs and wages, selling costs, advertising and promotian costs, taxes and résearch and development.

Dividends
We also require sufficient liquidity to make our stheduied dividend payments. In accordance with our dividend policy, we are
seeking 0 gradually Inérease divigend payouts depending upon cur financial performance and medium- 10 Jong-term outlook.

Stock Repurchases
Repurchase of our own shares, should we choose to do $o in the future, also requires cash outlays. The repurchase of up 10
100,000 shares for up to ¥75 billian was approved at gur ordinary general meeting of shareholders on June 25, 2003, We may

held the repurchased shares as treasury stock or cancel, dispose of or utilize for any purpose any repurchased treasury stack, We

‘will consider the timing, scale and manner of any such repurchase based on business needs and market trends. Repurchase of

.our own shares of the same size was approved at our ordinary generai meeting of shareholdgrs i the previous year. However,

having considered various factors such as busingss needs and markert trends, we have not repurchased any-such sharas,

CAPITAL RESOURCES

We have historically had and axpect to cominue to have significant ¢ash flow from operatnng sctivities. Cash from operating
activities was ¥258.1 biliion for the year ended March 31, 2003, ¥83.7 billion for the year enged March 31, 2002 and ¥394.0
billion for the year ended March 31, 2001. We expect 1o continue t& cover capits! expendiiures and debt servicing from cash
genarated by operating activities. For significant capital requirements relating to strategic acquisitions and investments, such as
our acquisition of the non-U.S. tobacco operations of RIR Nabisco, Inc,, we aiso sometimes utilize debt financing, primarily bor-
rowings from finencial institutions and issusnces of debt sacurities. See “"Long-Term znd Shori-term Debt” subsequently,

Equity finandng is subject o the approval of the Minister of Finance under the Japan Tebacco Inc. Law (the “JT Law™). We
wera ynable 1o use equity finsndng because the government feld two-thirds of the issued outs@anding shares, the minimum
level previously required by the IT Law, However, revisions to the JT Law effective April 19, 2002 gives us the flexibility to tssue
new equity shares with approval by the Minister of Finange so iong as the Japanese govemnment ¢ontinues to held more than
one-third of our issued shares. We may chaose 1o raise capital through equity issuances in the future, which would have the
effact of diluting existing shareholders’ interests.




LONG-TERM AND SHORT-TERM DEBT
Long-term Debt
Our lang-term liabilities consist mainly of long-term debt and accrued persion and severance costs. At March 31, 2003, long-
term debt including current portion) was ¥404,0 billion, of which ¥272.5 billion was in the farm of bonds. At March 33, 2002,
long-term debt was ¥479.2 billion, of which ¥272.5 bllion was in the form of bonds. The remaiming long-tarm debr (incluging
current pertion) consisted of loans fram banks and IHe insurance companies. Annual interest rates epplicable to yen-dencminat-
ed long-tem Bank loans outstanding at March 31, 2003 #nd 2002 ranged from 0.43% to 5.50% and 0.68% to 5.55%,
respectively, Annual interest rates rangad from 1.00% to 8.50% for long-term loans denominated in other currancies outstang-
ng 5t March 31, 2003 and ranged from 2,43% 1o 7.55% a1 March 31, 2602.

Annual maturities of long-term detst Gincluding current porton) 8t March 31, 2002 were as follows:

Yeirs ending Mareh 31, Nlions of yan
2004 ¥ 55,910
2005 . S 146,352
2006 .o e e e SkS AR A RS R SRR RS Rssaa e e 18,815
2007 ..reee h bbb bseees bbbt onn 18,263
2008 e ebeneabos etk pete b amane R e e e e SebE AR e s b e Rsen eae e rR L ae ab e Lotk e e bt 10,474
2005 and thereafter... ..., sy ey .. 152,562
TOE ewsnetrenins NPt E b s et ot s antans s stnnes nsenenansniesseosanpa sesenresnnescnnenens FAO3,BT6

As of March 31, 2003, our leng-term debt was rated as AA« by Standard & Poor's Ratings Servicas and Aa3 by Moody's
irtvestors Service, In¢. These ratings are one of the highest ratings among international tobacco companies. By maintzining high
credit ratings, we expect to be able to finance large sums of capital at relatively low Costs fram third parties from time to time.
The ability 1o maintain high ratings is influenced by a numbgr of factors such &s developments in the prindpal markets in which
we conduct our business and the succass of our business strategies, as well as some elements beyond our control such as gener-
al economic ends in Japan. The ratings are not recommendations o purchase, sefl or possess the shares. The ratings could be
withdrawn or moadified &t any time. Each rating should be evaluated distingtly from other ratings,

Under the Japan Tobacco Ing. Law, bonds issued by Japan Tobacco inc. ara secured by a statutory preferential right over the

roperty of Japan Tobacco Inc. This right gives hondholders preference to unsecured creditors in seeking repaymartt, with the
exception of national and local taxes and other statutory obligations.

in September 2002, in order to diversify our capital resources and enhance our debt financing ¢capability, we established &
medium-term note program in the euro market allowing us 10 issu2 up to $5 billion. We may issue nétes under this program,
from time toltimé, with board approval.

Short-tarm Debt
We 2150 use banks and other finandal institutions for short-term loans. Shert-term loans were ¥20.5 billion at March 31, 2003
and ¥32.5 billion at March 31, 2002, including foreign cumency~denominatad loans of ¥13.4 billion and ¥24.7 billion, respec-
tively. Annual interast ratas applicable to y=n denominated short-term bank loans outstanding at March 31, 2003 ranged from
0.45% to 1.81% and from 0.41% t¢ 1.81% at March 31, 2002. Annual interest rates ranged Trom 0.90% to 6.60% for short-
term loans denominated in other currencies outstanding at March 31, 2003 and from 2.53% to 8.60% at March 31, 2002,
These borrowings have terms ranging from three months to 12 months.

We have paid down a significant amount of the debt assumed through the acquisiton of the non-UJ.S, Tobacco operations of
RJR Nabisco, Inc., and have improved Sarrawing terms by leveraging our credit rating and cregitworthingss, From May 12, 1998,
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the date of the scquisition, 10 Decerber 31, 2002, IT International’s total shortterm and long-term debt decreased from
appraximately ¥55 billion to approximately ¥18 billion.

AS is customary in Japan, short-erm and long-term bank foans are made under general agreements which provide that under
certain circumstances, security and guarantees for present and future indebtedness will be given ugon reguest of the bank, and
that the bank shall have the right, as the obligations become due, o7 in the event of their dafau’t, to offset csh deposits agalnst
such obligatons due to the bank, We have never been raquested to provide such collatersl, As of March 31, 2003, we were
rontingently liable for guarantees of loans of unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates in the amount of ¥4.5 billion,

DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS

We are exposed to market risks principally from changes In interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity and debt security
prices, Our interest rate risk exposures primarily relate 1 financing activities. Our foreign currency exposures relate o buying,
selling and financing in currencies other than the Iocal currencies in which we opefate. In grder to reduce foraign exchange rate
risk ang intargst rate risk, we use derivativelﬁnancial instruments that include interest rate swaps, forward exchange con1racs,
currency swaps and option cantracts. We do not hedge against price fluctuzrions of,dem and equity securities.

We have risk managament policies and procedures designated to mitigats the risks arising from exposures from the use of
derivative financial instruments. We utilize derivatives solely for risk management purposes, and no derivatives are held or issued
for trading purposes. As part of our risk managament procedures, we igentify the spediic risks and transactions to be hedged
angd the appropriate hedging instruments o be used to reduce the risk, and then assess the correlation between the hedged
risks and the hedging instruments, The effectiveness of our hedging activities is assessed in accordance with our risk manage-
ment polides and pracice manual for hedging transachons.

We are also exposed 1o crecit-related risks in the event of non-performance by counterparties to derivatve finandal instru-
ments. Howevar, we strive 1o mitigate this fisk by limiting counterparties to international finangial institutions with high credi
ratings with regard 1o which wa beligve there is no significant risk of default. _

We use interest rate swaps for the purpose of managing interest rate risk relating 1o financing activities. We generaly aeate
fixed rate long-term debt obligations by entering inte miror-image receiva-variabie, pay-fixed interest rate swaps. The interest
Tate swap agreements, which qualify for hedge accounting under Japanese GAAP and meet specific matching criteria, are not
measured at market value, bt the differential to be paid or received under the swap agreements are acerued and included in

Tirerast axpenses. T o ' o o o T

We use foreign exchange forward contracts and currency swap and cption contracts for the purpose of maneging the rigk of
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates on our borrowings, bonds and forecasted wansactions in foreign currencies. Hedging con-
tracts outstanding 2s of March 31, 2003 and March 31, 2002 held by Japan Tobacco Inc. and domestic subsidiaries oualify for
hedge accounting, and gains or losses arising from change in value of these contracts are deferred 2nd recognized in the peried
in which corresponding lgsses ot gains from transacrions baing hedged by such contracts are recognized. We do not use hedge
accounting for hedging contracts asscciated with our international tobacco operations and therefore recognize changes in value
in derivative foreign exchange instruments currently in eamings. This could result in a gain or loss from fluctuations in exchange
rates related to a derivative contract being recognized in a period which may be different from the gain or loss recognized from
the undertying forecasted transagtion.




iy

For information about the comract or notional principal amount of interest rate swap contracts, foreign currency forward
. contracts and qurrency option contracts outstanding as at March 31, 2003 and 2002 that did not qualify for hedge accounting,
plaase sae Note 17 1o the consolidated finandal satements.

ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD
Finangial ststernams of JT International in conformity with U.S. GAAP are reflected in our Japansse GAAR consolidated financial
statements included in this Annual Repert. '

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Stsndards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets* (“SFAS 142‘) which establishes a new accounting standsrd for goodwill and other
intangible assets. SFAS 142 continues to require recognition of goodwill as an asset but does not permit amartization of good-
will g5 previously required by Accbunting Principles Board Opinions No. 17, "Intangible Assets.”" Instead of being amortized,
goodwill needs to be tested for impairment at laast annually using & two-step process that begins with én estimation of the fair
value of a reporting wnit. SFAS 142 also estabiishes a new standard for intangible assets other than goodwill. All ather intangi-
ble assets are required 10 be ¢lassified as either having finite or indefinite useful lives, and other intangible assets having ingef-
nite useful iives are not amortized and are subject To an impairment test in accordance wah SFAS 142, Other mtangible assets
determined to have finite useful lives are subject to amortization and an impairment test should be performed in accordance

~with SFAS No: 121, "Acceunting for she Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets o be Disposed Qf,“
" replaczd by SFAS No. 144, " Accounting for the Impairment of Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” as previously-required. 7

JT internationa! adopted SFAS 142 and SFAS 142 effective from the fiscal year beginning cn January 1, 2002. Accordingly,
starting from that fiscal year, amortization of goodwill on the balance shegt of JT international ceased, while trademarks on such
balance sheet were dassified as other intangible assets with finite useful livas, and are being amortized substantially over 40
years. The unamortized balance of goedwill on the consolidated balance sheet of JT International in the aggregate was $3.1 hil-
lion, wnich Tanslated into ¥373.5 billion as of December 31, 2002, Amortization of the goodwill recognized in the consolidated

taments of income of JT Intemnational was $86 million, or ¥11 billion for its fiscal yrar ended December 31, 2001, As & result
of adopting the new accounting siandard, income befare income taxes and minority interest of JT Internationa! for the year
ended December 31, 2002 increased by $83.5 million, or ¥10.5 billion, 25 compared 10 the previous method. After condycting
the impairment 1est, o impairment losses were recognized for the year ended December 31, 2002. However, the situation

could change and a2n impairment foss could be recognized in the future.

Japan fobaceo loc. @ Annuval Repart 2003
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Japan Tabaceo ine. and Consolidated Subsidmries’/ March 31, 2002 snd 2003

Milbcns of yon

Witllans of U.5 dellars

MNow )

Assets . 2002

2003

2003

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents U 534,504
Short-term investments (Note 4)...... 16,214
Trage notes and acccunts recelvaple 131,823
INventories (NOE 5)...ceerecerecsesmsisimmienes coeee w 524,165
Other currant 88Se1S (NOTE 7) -ecruneriecence e essrisstrneeesscrsastrsssaesesmrarnsenes 97,806

" Allowanca for doubtful BCEOUNTS v........ovmmsssssieeeeconnerestereee devresntesenns (2,358)

¥ 602,645
20,903
133,324
492,177
99,324
(2,008)

$ 5014
174
1,109
4,085
826
(17)

Total CUMTent B556TS .....cocvsirenrereccreerenrens oot eeereerrteeast s same e s et . 1,302,154

Property, plant and eguipment (Note 6):

BUIlGINGS BNT STIULIUTES covvev oo srrrsstresene onarsisr e oo cossibsttoceceneonsevasns 709,951
Machinary, equipment 300 VENICIES ... oremmsieeeeceersmrsrsicesrescrnraerenses 586,644
Tools... 242,686
COnStruCthn in progress 32,758

1,346,365

172,674
710,479
569,080
242,194

41,231

11,201

1,478
5N
4,734
2,015

343

TOTBL e vt e e rsra e et et s sn e e 1,747,059
Accumulated depraciation ..o seeeeecenraressseiessseseressinnnenenes 41,003,347)

1,740,658
{1.007,344)

14,481
(8,380)

Net property, plant and SQUIPMEN wvoewwsueceermsmnencceenncanrnne 743,712

Investments and other assets:

Investment securities (NGTE 4) . denere e 97,893
Investments in and agvances 10 unconsohdated subauuanas

and 3550CIEtEd COMPANIBS. .1vvviireceeeeeeur srrrstibesesesrirrrtbessseseeeraasensisns 9,034
Trademarks... 331,821
Googwill... 431,503
Deferred {ax assets (Note 7) 71,034
Other assets 86,663
Allowance for doutstful ac:ounts ettt et bR rmeene {6,725}
Allowance for loss on investments.............. {4,112)

733,314

63,829

10,516
288,514
381,602

64,524

76,689

(5,895)

(1,793)

6,701

531

a7
2,400
2,175
537
638
(49)
(15)

Total investments and other assets..

1,017,211

877,986

7,304

Total .o s ¥3,063,077

¥2,957,665

§24,606

Sez notes 10 Consolidmed hinancial statemams,
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Miflans of US. dolars

MItions of yan INeR 2)
Liabllities and Shareholders’ Equity 2002 2003 2003
Currant liabilities:
Short-term Bank Ioans (NOTZ 8) 1evesosisnce e inivirmmeremnnnnes ¥ 32,521 ¥ 20,523 s 17
Current portion of Iong-term debt (NOT& B)......cccccvmrveeemsvesssmmmmnenniions 79,672 55,910 465
Tobacco excise taxes payabie (NOE 8) v v ccreeer et st anes 175,526 180,040 1,498
" Trade notes and accounts payable ....... 106,992 108,043 899
Other accounts Payabl e 102,745 67,918 565
Income taxes payable (NOL2 7) vucciuneeenieen 22,234 38,584 31
Accrued employees’ BONUSES v iiere oo consirsscessresssenseenrans v, 24,200 27,905 232
- Consumption taXe5 PBYABIE ......cvcieee e evseresssrarsosrsserssbssresrressbavnnseeenen 20,307 20,387 245
Other current iZblities (NOI® 7). cvreecemmicrmimsiscrssertsammasnmmaemesscssnsssrens 89,006 66,432 552
Total current ligbifities ..o rrssesinens P ——— §63.204 594,742 4,948
Nan-current fiabilities:
LONG-term Gl (NOLE B) ...cverrrrrmreresrriesersssarsnssstecsenceeseesesensssrasenas 399,545 343,066 2,896
Liabilities for emplayees’ retirement bengfits (NOTE 9uvervunicsnecicemecnnees, 224,961 230,245 1,916
Deferred tax lizbithies (NOIE 7) ourirerns oot eresreenssrsnrons 54,994 48,910 407
Other non-current liabilities....oeeoreee.... 57,680 61,876 518
Total non-currant liabilities........... 737,180 689,197 5734
Minority Interest ...t e v 49,588 51,072 425
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 14)
Sharsholders® equity (Notes 11 and 18)
Comman stock:
Authorized=—8,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding—2,000,000 shares..........oveienreremisessiverenne 100,000 100,000 832
CBPIA] SUTBIUS 1usevee e ete et e cene s rrenssesr e v st sesba st s s 726,400 736,400 6,126
Retained earnings ..., 731.835 789,912 6,571
Unreafized gain on avaflable-for-sale securities ... 1,405 2,632 22
Foreign cufrency transiation adjustmants..... 43 465 (6,290) {52)
Total shareholders’ equity ...v.vui.. 1,613,105 1,622,654 13,499
] ¥3.063.077 524,606

¥2,957.665

Japan Tabacco inc. 9 Annual Reporl 2003
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Japan Tovaceo Inc and Consolidated Subsidiaries / Years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

Milliom of US. dollam
Milons of yon {Nota ¥
) 2001 2002 2003 2003
N SAIES it it e ¥4,507,70%  ¥4,544,175  ¥4,492,264 £37.373
Cost of sales (Note 8)........ wone 3,571,153 3,588,796 3,569,394 29,695
GIOSS PIOMIT vrvvreenccrnceercenmeaesrsesssersssassromeceseneenns 930,548 945,379 922,870 7,678
Seliing, general and administrative expenses
{NOtES 10 2N8 12} ccrvivivercrrorncrereeceeemeerersesessssrerstsaassosnens 790,583 781,574 733,907 6,106
Operating iNCOME .cueuressreseses ieeaesrarerses e, 139,965 163,805 188,963 1.572
Other incorne (expenses):
interest and dividend INCOME ... veviiinerniemiensee e erens 6.586 4,697 3,742 31
Gain on disposition of praperty, plant
and SQUIDMENt=NEY .....ociiiisissararanseeasecesccmenre R 3,445 17,762 2,967 25
Interest expense (NOE 6) vy reereeseemie e reneers (12,160) (10,268) (8,553) {71
Other—net (Note 13). e (18,062) (77,753) {44,621) (371)
Other eXPenses—nEL ... .o vsuimesnsssesterovncmecssenenes (20,181) {65,562) {46,465) (386)
Income before income taxes
and MiNQKtY INTErest..........c..ccommmmmrossissrsnmsenncens 119,784 98,243 142,498 1,188
Income taxes (Note 7):
CUrent...ocvvvrreen et et as e anessmensasn e manen e et e R et AT et er e 58,397 54,945 50,006 500
DEIEITEG 1o vtitvciire oo cees e b sarssssisesar e san e snreras 2.272 1,785 1,808 15
income before minority iNterest. .., 49,115 41,513 80,684 671
IVINOIIRY FEETESE oo seessseserrssereoes e 5,428 4,663 5,382 45
NELINOOME ..o rirssritimeen o ¥ 43,687 ¥ 36,850 ¥ 75,302 $ 626
.S, dollars
Yan (N 2}
2001 2002 2003 2003
Amounts per share:
NET INCOME e reraperrrarersrenssbemmtensnesseescaesns ¥ 21,843 ¥ 18425 ¥ 37,586 s 313
Cash dividends apnlicable to the year ............ccooe 8,000 8,000 10,000 83

Se8 Aoles ¥ consoldmted financal salaments.




w

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Jopan Tobaceo Ing. and Consolidated Subsidlaries / Years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

lepan Tobarco Inc. e Annual Reporl 2003

Thausands Miloes of yen
Nunber of Unreallzgd Foreign
shares of qsinon currency
common  Common  Capital Retained  avallable-for-  Tanslation
fyiead stock surplus gamings  sale securities  adjustments
Batance, April 1, 2000 vecercrcenireonnne 2,000 ¥100,000  ¥736,400 ¥690,183 Y o~ ¥y -
INEE INCOMBatirseemsrcereervararbsstbsecenseseesserrarvesse — - — 43,687 —_ -
Adjustments to retained earnings
for change in scope of consalidation ............. - - — {3,159) — -
Approprigtions;
Cash dividends paid (¥8,000 per shate) ........ — — —  {16,000) - -
Bonusss to dirscors and corporate auditors ... — —_ — (317 - —
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale
securities (Notz 3).. - —_ — — — 2,962 —
Transfer of fnrelgn currency frangiation
~adjustmants (NSt 3).......cvremmmsseneccceeraes — — — —_ — (39,910
Balance, March 31, 20014 .. 2.000 100,000 736,400 714,354 2,962 {39,910
Net income.... - - - 36,850 -_ —
Adjustments 0 retalned eammgs
for change in scope of consolidation ............. - —_ — 579 — -
Minimum penston Jiability ad)ustment
of foreign consolidatad subsidiaries......u..... - — — (2.622) —_ -
Appropfiations:
Cash dividends paid (¥8,500 per share}........ - — - (17.000) - -
Bonuses to directors and corporate audiors . — — — (366) — -
Nat decease in unrealized gain
on available-for-sale saeurities .uvnmnnnee — - - — (1,557) —
Net increase in foreign currancy
translation agjUSTIEATS ......ovcerrervierersenecnes — -_ — — — 83,378
Balanre, March 34,2002 2,000 100,000 736,400 731,835 1,405 43,485
Net income.,, —_ -— — 75,302 — —
Adjusiments 1o fetained Earnlngs
for change in scope of consolidation ............ — — — 219 — —
Minimum pension lisbility adjustment
of foreign consolidated subsidiaries ... e - — — 1,172) —_ -
Appropriations;
Cash dividends paid (¥8,000 per sharg}........ - — — (16,000} - -
Boniuses to drectors and corporate audHors ... - — - (272) —_ -
Net increase in unrealized qain
on available-for-sale SECURMias ...ooiiiveaeae — — — — 1,227 —
Net dacrease in foreign currency
1ranstation agiUSIMENEs ... .operverernrrieceneneene — - — - —_ (49,755)
Balance, March 34, 2003 _.......cc..coioenon 2,000 ¥100,000 ¥736,400 ¥789,912  ¥2,632 ¥ (6,290)
Miltions of U.S. dale
{Now 2)
Unreallzed Foreign
gzin on currency
Commen Capital Retained avallable—for~ translation
stack surplus carnings  sale securities adiustments
Balance, Mareh 29, 2002 ......cccoemceeeeeceesraensenns IR 3832 56,126 $6,088 §12 $362
Net incame .. — o~ 626 —_— -
Adjustments to retamed earm gs
for ehange in scope of (onsohdabon..........,...................... - — 2 —_ -_
Minimugm gension liability adjustment
of foreign consolidated subSIIaNes ...........ccoovmververnsrenn —_ - (10} - —
Appropriations:
Cash dividends paid (S67 per share)........... . — — (133) — —
Bonuses to directors sind COPORIT aUARDNS....ccorevereerecannae - — {2) — -
Net increase in unrealized gain
on available-forsale securitiss .. —_ —~ — 10, —
Net increass in forgign currency ranslation aa@stmen:s - - — — {(414)
Balance, Marth 31, 2003 ....... eorarars et e semrensaansetor s r e £832 %6,126 56,571 522 $(52)

See nows 15 consolidated rsncal sumemns
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Japan Tabaces Inc. and Consolidated Subsidianas / Years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

Mibions of US. doligrs
WMilieons of yen Nt 2
2001 2002 2002 2003
Operating activities:
Incorme before income taxes and minarity inferest.........—oe..- w ¥119,784 ¥ UB,243 ¥142,498 S 1,186
Adjustmenzs for:
INCOME 18XES PAI 1usrrsraraeemeewsersemessmrsssssatesscumssncnsroerssarsssessons (69,818) (61,876)  (43,517) (362)
Depreciation and amortization other than googwill.............. 180,414 148,086 136,534 1,136
Amortization of GEoAWll w.s e eccnemsraninseanecnnes . 21,666 22,218 11,799 98
Gain on dispasiticn of property, plant and equzpment " (3,445) (17.782) (2,367) (25)
Write-town of investment SECURTES ..umeeeevrercemsssassessns 4,212 12,887 11,108 82
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase in trada notes and accounts receivable.. ... (6.236)  {15,641) (3,809} (32)
Decrease in INVENTONES .....covmversisiene 38,169 12,741 25,573 213
Increase (decrease) in tobaccn excise taxes payable 128,767  (152,311) 3,751 31
Increase (dacrease) in trade notes and accounts payable.... (2.226) (9,078) 3,197 27
Increase (decrease) in other accounts payakie...ceees 15,981 18,737 (31.802) (265)
Increase {decraase) in other current [iBbiites.........cvireenes (843) 10,198 (1,024) {3
Increase (decreass) in liabilities for
. employees’ retirement benefits ... e (14,377) (9,815) 1,390 12
Increase (decrease) in other non-current Itabnlmes .............. 13,954 8,861 {602) (s)
Decrease in contribution 1o
JT Mutual Assistance AsSOCIELION ,.eweee e eeressseesens 11,433 - - _—
OthETmTET wurrirseiennsvearmrirsrirererns reraereeses it e s At e e e s ren {13,323) 24,229 5,928 50
Total adjustments ., erveeeennens 274,174 (8.516) 115,559 961
Net cash prowded by operatmg ac‘tmtnes ...... . 393,858 89,727 258,057 2,47
Investing activities:
Purchasges of short-1erm INVESEMENTS,,.ceierrraemrcorvimmseciennssenns (59,746)  (10,446)  (18,090) (150)
Proceads from sales and redemption of
short-term investments ... 34,273 19,295 13,522 12
Purchases of investment securmbs e {16,796) (6,863) {1,623) {13)
Proceeds from sales and redemptron of mvestment securmes 27,218 8,158 21,722 181
Purchases of proparty, plant and equipment ... novnnnens (35,683} {81,351} (104,311) {868}
Rroceeds from sales of property, plant and equtpment 20,689 35,148 23,479 195
Purchases of trademarks and other assets .o e (10,633) (6,162} (4.381} (41)
Acquisition of shares of subsidiaries ........., —_ - (3.594) (30)
Other—net ... . 10,211 10,949 (1,101) (9)
Net Caah used in mvestmg aCtivities. .. (90,477) {40,472} (74,877) (623)
Financing activities:
Net increasa (decrease) in short-term bank 10ans. ..o ecvirvannn 3,374 (11,768  (14,673) {122)
Proceeds from issuance of longsterm BOrrowings ... " 9,899 3,293 4,980 At
Repayments of lang-term bOrowWings . ..o . (74,446) (94,512)  (83,493) {695}
REPaYMENTS OF DONGS wueveerserercoreorememsvcessesinsorecescas emasevenessessns (906) (200} — —
Dividends paid ... (16,000)  (17,000) (16,000} (133)
Dividends pald to rmnonty shareholders ...... (3,688) (2,589 (1.967) (16)
Other—net ... eeree et syt e Yot AR e b ars e rasanspessaaba P A Ab AR s e 4,757 {(2,052) (820) (¥4)
Net cash used in ﬁnancxng activities.,. wrmmmseereenee(76,980)  (124,838)  (111,968) {932)
Cash and cash equivalents of nawly mnsohdated '
subsidiaries, baginning of year.............eevicnniecnens 775 2,383 239 2
Foreign currency translation adjustments on ‘
cash and cash eqUIVAIBNLS .....c..ccovvveereiinmseen e creeeraemevenen 3.475 4,136 (3,310) (27)
Nat increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents........ 230,741 (69,058) 68,141 567
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year .................... 372,821 603,562 534,504 4,447
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year...........c.cccceuveene...  ¥603,562  ¥534,504  ¥6D2,645 $ 5,014

Sea newes 10 conselidated fnancwl stvements




1)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Japan Tobaeeo Inc. and Cansoligated Subtidiaries

1. Businass

Japan Tobaceo Ine, (*JT*) is a joint stock corporation fkabushiki kaisha) incorporated under the Commercial Code of Japan (the
*Code”) pursuant 1o the Japan Tabageo inc, Law (the “IT Law”}. T is primanly engaged in the manufacure and sale of tohacco prod-
vets irr the domestic and Intemational markets as ane of the largest producers of tobacco products in the world.

In the domagtic tabacco market, JT manufactures and sells its tobacco products to retail stores 8l over the courtry, as provided by
the Tobateo Business Law, The Tabacco Business Law provides that (1) JT shall be the sole manufacturer of tobacco products in Japan
and that (2) the maximum wholesale price of each tobacco product manufactured and soid and the ratail price of every produrt sold In
Japan, as well as any changes in these prices, shall he approved by the Minister of Fingnce, The products are transported from its factor
rigs to its distibution bases and depows by its logistic subsidisnies and outside distributers and then distribuled to the retail siores
through its five distribution service subsidiaries, incluging Tokyo Tobacee Senvies Co., Ltd., except in Okinawa Frefecture. These dustri-
bution subsidianes also purchase and sell Tobacco products of foreign tebacca manufacurers to retall stores as wholesalers in the
domestic market. :

IT greatly expanded s international tobacee business through the acquisition of the nom-LL.S. tabacco pperations of RIR Nabisco,
Inc. (*RJR Nabis¢o™) on May 12, 1999. In cornection with this, IT paid $5.0 billion to purchase the net assets o the non-U.S. tobaceo
business of RIR Nabisco, which resulted in 53,3 billion of goodwill, gnd JT also acquired non-U.S. tobscco-related trademarks and intel
lectual property for £2.7 billion and other assets for $0.1 billion, The acquisition, totaling $7.8 billion, was financed by a syndicate Joan
of 35,0 billion, which was refinanced through domestic and foreign bond issuss and ieng-term loans from banks and Insurance com=
panies, and 52.8 billion in cash. As a resuft of this acquisition, JT obiained expanded access to overseas markets, especially in Eurppe
and Russiz, and the rights in substantially all countnes outside the United States to intemationally recognized wademarks such as
Camel, Winston and Saiem, which cutrently comprise JT's global flagship brands along with Mild Seven, which JT developed. JT
Intarnational S.4. ("JTISA*) and other cansoligated subsidiades of JT intemational Holding B.v. (“IT intemational*), which 15 @ wholiy-
owned subsidiary of JT, manufacture and sell tobacco products all over the world,

In addition to the tobacco business, JT and its consolidated subsidianes (the “Company”) have diversified into and are developing
othar business segments in the areas of pharmaceurticals and foods primarily through acouisitions, investments and licensing arrange-
mens.

in the pharmaceutical business, the Company focuses an the research and development of prescription drugs in-house or jointy
with other domestic and overseas corporations. In the domestic markes, Torii Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.. 2 majority of whose outstand-
ing shares IT acquired for ¥42 billion in Decemibser 1998, manufactures and sells prescription drugs using Hs wide marketing network.
In the overseas market, the Company principally receives royalties from licensing arrangemants of an anti-HV drug.

In the foods businass, the Comparny principally manufactures and sells beverages and processed foods in the domestic market. JT's
presence in this marker was substantially expanded through the acquisitiort af a majeriy of the outstanding shases of Unimat
Corporation, a nationwide operator of soft drink vending machines, since renamed Japan Beverage Inc., for ¥23 blllen In April and
Sepiember 1938, Additianally, ST acquired the foods business of Asahi Kasei Corporation for ¥24 billion in july 1993,

According 1o the JT Law, JT shall obtain authorization from the Ministar of Flnange for :;ertain marters, such as (1) the issuance of
new shares (as well as subseription rigins for new shares (shinkabu-yoyakuken) and bonds with subseription rights for new shares) and
(2) the resoiution of sharzholtiers mestings for any amendments to the Artides of Incorporation ang aperopriations of retained earme
ings. According to JT's register of shareholdars, £6.73% of JT's shares were held by the Mimster of Finance at March 31, 2003,
Pursuant to the JT Law, the Japanase govemment is required ta hold ane-half or mare of JT's shares which were anginally ssued upon
the establishment of JT in 1988.

Prior to an amendment 1o the JT Law enacted in Apil 2002, two-thirds of JT's cutstanding shares ware reguired to be held by the
Ministet of Finance. As 3 result of the amendment, the two-third threshold was remeved. The amended JT Law permits JT o issue naw
shares 1o the extent that the number of shares held by the Minister of Finance continues to account for more than one-third of the
outstanding shares, .

2, Basis of Presenting Conselidated Financial Statements

The accomparying consolidated financial statemants have been prepared in conformity with acgounting prinoples and pradices gener-
ally accepred in Japan and in accardance with the provisions set forth in the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan and fts refated
accounting regulations {collectively, the "Securities Law™”}, which are different in certain respects from application and disciosure
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requirements of (nternational Financial Reporting Standards. The ¢onsolidated finandal statements are not intended to present the
finangisl position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and pragtices generally accepted in
courtries and jurisdictions other than Japan. In the cse of most foreign consolidated subsidiaries, their financial statements are pre-
pared In conformity with accounting principtes generally accepted in the United States of America (see Note 3. 1) Fareign Consolidsted
Subsidianies) and are induded in the consolidated financlal statements on that basis. ‘

In preparing thete consolidated financial stataments, certain reclzssifications and rearrarigemants have been made to the consofidat-
ed finangial statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is more familiar to readers qutside Japan. In addr
uon, the notes 1o the conselldated finandal statements indude information which is. not requred uncar aceounting principles and
practices generally accepted in Japan but s presented hereln as additional Information. Certain redassifications of previously reported
amounts have been made 10 Conform with dassifications for the ygar ended March 31, 2003.

The consolidated finandal statements are stated in Japarese yen, the currency of the country in which JT & incomorated and oper-
ates. The tranglations of Japangse yen asmounts into U.S. dellar amounts arg included solely for the conveniance of readers outside Japan
and have been made at the rate of ¥120.20 10 $1, the rate of exchange at March 31, 2003. Such translations should not be construed
as representations that the Japanese yen 2mounts could be canverted into U.S, doliars at that or any other rate.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Cansolidation

The consoligated financial statements as of March 31, 2003 include the accourts of JT and its 158 significant (148 in 2001 and 155 in 2002)
subsidiaries. Consolidation of the remaining subsidisries would not have had & matenal ffzct on the accompamyng consofidated finandal
statements, Most foreign consoligated subsidiaries have & December 31 fiscal year=end, which differs from the March 31 fiscal year-end
of IT. Any necessary adjustmens for the three-manth period are made for consalidation purposes.

Investrents in four companies (three im 2001 and 2002 respectively) it which the Company owns 20% to 50% are accounted for by
the equity methed. The eguity method is not applied to account for the investments in unconsolidated subsidiarles and the remaining
ssogjated companies, in which the Company owns 20% te 50%, since the effect on the aczempanying consolidaied finandal state-
ments would not have been material. Investments in the unconsolidated subsickaries and the remaining associated companies are Stated
at cost (see @) Allowance for Loss on investments).

Al significant intercompany balances and wansactions have baen eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized gains resulung
from intercompany transactions have bean eliminated.

The excess of the ¢ost of the Company’s investments 1n consolidated subsidiaries and associated eempanies accounted for by the
equity method Over it equity in or the fair value of the net assets purchased at the date of scquisition is recorded as goodwill, Goodwil!
except for goodwlll arising from the acauired forelgn subsidiaries of RIR Nabisco (see n) Foreign Conseiidatad Subsidiatias) is amortized
on a straight-line bass over five years. Such amertization expense i included in " Selling, General nd Adrinistratve Expenses;” howevs
er, insignificant goodwili is charged to income when incurrad.

) Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are all sher-term, highly Lquid investments that are convertible o known amounts of cash and that have origina!
maturities of three months or less.

©) Securitias

Effective April 1, 2000, IT and its domesu¢ subsidiaries adopted a new accounting s@ndard for finarxial instruments, under which al
the Company’'s marketable securitles are classified a3 availablefor-sale and are reporied at fair velue with unreslzed gains and losses,
net of applicable taxes, reported in a separate ¢omponent of shareholders’ aquity. The cost of marketable securities sold is determined
based on the moving-average method. As s result of adopting the new accounting standard of finangial instruments which relates 1o
securitles, income before indome taxes and minority interes) for the year ended March 31, 2001 increased by ¥2,723 million as com-
pared to the previous methcd. As a result of reclassificstion, short-term investmants included in current assets decreased by ¥108,794
million, and investment securities increased by the same amount as of April 1, 2000.

Prior to April 1, 2000, listed marketable securities were stated at the Jower of cost or market snd other securities were stated at cost.

Non-marketsble available-for-sale securities are stated at cost determinad by the moving-average method,

For Significant impaimment in valug which is judged not to be recoverable, markerable and non-marketabls avsilable-for-sale securites

_are reduced to fair valpe, with a resulting tharge to income.

1—-——



d) inventories
irvertories are sttéd principally at the average cost, exaapt far leaf tobaces held by JT, which & subject to devaluation (see Ncte 5).

In accordance with generally recognized praciices, leaf tobacoo is classified as a current asset, although pant of such inventories, due

to the durzton ¢f the aging process, ordinarily will not be put into praguction within ong year,

e) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipmént are stated at ¢ost. Under certain conditions, such as exchanges of similar fixed assets sales, and purchas-
es resulting from expropriation and acquisitions made with the benefit of 3 government subsidy, Japanese tax laws parmit companies t0
defer the profit arising from such transactions by redudng the ost of the assets scquired or by providing a special reserve in sharehald-
ers' equity. The pravision and the reversal of the spedial reserve are made through appropriation of retained eamings, The costs of the
acquired assets resulting from expropriation for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 were reduced by ¥100 milion,
¥17,310 million and ¥22,038 million (§225 million), respectively, Government subsigies thart reduced the recorded cost of acguired
assets totaled ¥378 million (§3 million) as of March 31, 2003. Depredation is generally computed using the dedining-balanes methed
while the straight-line method is applietl to buildings acquired after Aprll 1, 1988, The useful lives of buildings and structures and
machinery, equipmeant and vehicles are principally from 38 to 50 years and elght years, respectively.

f} Intangible Assets

Tsademarks are carvied at cost jess aceumnulated emortization, which is calculated by the straight-line method over 10 years.

g) Allowanre for Loss on Investments

An allowance for lass on investments is recorged to pravide for the loss an investments in non-marketable squity securities and is deter-
mined based on the respective finangial condition of the investees,

h) income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included in the consolicated statements of income. The asset
ang ligbility approach is used 10 recognize deferred tax assets anc liabilities for the expected futura tax conseguences of temporary dit-
farences between the camying amaunts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities, and tax operaung loss and other credit carmyforwards,
Deferred taxes are measured by applying curently enacted tax laws to the temparary differences, tax operating logs and cther credit
carryforwards. A valuation zllowance is provided fer any portion of the deferred 1ax assets whers it is considered more likely than not
that they will not be realized,

{) Retirement Benefits

JT has an ynfunded severance indemnities plan partially provided for by a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan (the *Pension
Pian*) which covers substantially all of its eEnp)oyees (including executive officers who are not directors). ]

Effective April 1, 2000, IT and its domestic consolidated subsidismes adopted 2 new accounting standard for employees’ retiremant
benefits, ynder which liabilitizs for retirement benefits are stated basad on actuarially estimated retiremant benafit obligations, consider-
ing the estimated fair value of plan assets at each balance sheet date. Certain consolidated subsidiaries apply a simpiifiad method, under
which retirement benefit obligations are recordad based on the amourit requirad if all employees terminated their employment as of the
halance sheet date. Certain domestic consoliciated subsidiaries maintain 3 portion of a National Welfare Pension Plan sponsored by the
Japanese government, the related liabilities far which are included in liabilities for employess' retrement benefits.

Prior to April 1, 2000, the annual provision for employaes’ retirement benefits was calculated to state the llability st 70% of the
ampunt that would be requirzd if all employaes veluntarily (Deginning April §, 1997, parually imveluntarily) terminated their services with
IT at each balance sheet date. The remaining 30% of the retirement benefits was 1o be covered by the Pension Plan, which was imple-
mented in 1990. The pension cost for the Pensicn Plan, ingluding prior service ¢osl, was charged 10 expenses as contributions were
made. In addition, unrecagnized prior service casts of JT°5 Pension Plan as of March 31, 1999, which represent the differenca between
the pension liability measured by using a 3.5% discount rate and the fair value of the plan assets were amorized over three years or
the dediining-baiance method etfective April 1, 1998. The annual provisions for employees” retiremert benefits of most domestic tonsok
idated subsidisries were calculsted to sate the lisbility at the amount that would be required if all employees voluntarily terminated
their services with such companies at each balance sheet date.

The transitional obligation of ¥19,501 million, determined as of April 1, 2000, was prindpally amortized over threg years and the annual
amortizzhon was induded in *Other—net® of “Other income (expensas)” in the consolidated statements of incame. As 8 result, net period-
i retiremerm benefit costs, a5 compared with the previous method, increased by ¥945 million, and income bafare income taxes and minor-
1y Interest decreased by ¥1,287 million for the year ended March 31, 2001.
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Ligbilities for retirement banefits to directors and corparate audhors are provided at the amount which would be required if all direc-

Tors and corporate auditors retired at each balance sheet dave,

J) Leases

Alf leases are actounted far as operating leases, Under Japanese accounting smndards for leases, finance leases that deem to have
uansfermed ownership of the leased property to the lessee are 10 be capitalized, while other finange leases are permitted to be a¢court-
_ed for a5 operating lease transactions if cenzin “as if capitalized” information is disdosed in the notes to the lessee’s financial state
ments, - '

k) Appropriations of Retained Earnings

Appropnations of retained earnings are reflected in the financial staternents for the year upan shareholders’ approval.

{) Foreign Currency Transactions

Effective April 1, 2000, JT and s domestic subsidiaries adapred a revised accaunting standard for forgign cumency transactions. In
accordance With the revised standard, all short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables denominated in foreign cumens
des are renslated imto Japanese yen at the exchange rates prevailing at each balance sheet date. As 3 result of adopting the revised
accounting standard for foreign currency transactions, Income bafore income taxes and minarity interest for the yaar endeq March 31,
2001 decreased by Y163 million, as compared 10 the previous methed,

Priar 4o Aprit 1, 2000, foreign qurency-denominated short-term receivables and payables of IT and its domestic subsidianes ware transk-
ed into Japanese yen ot the curent exchangs retes prevailing at each balance sheet dawe. Foreigr currency-denominated long-term receivs
ables and payables ef JT and rts domestic subsidiarias were 1ransiated into Japanasé yen at historical rates.

The foreign exchange gains and losses from transiation are recognized in the consalidated statemnents of income 10 the extent that
hedaing derivative financial instrumems for foreign currency transactions do not qualify for hedge accaunting (see m) Dervatives).

The balance sheet accounts of the comsolicated foreign subsidianes are transiated into jspanese yen at the rates of axehange in effec
5t each subsidiary's respactive fiscal year end, except for shareholders’ equrty, which & transiated at the historical rate.

Differances arising from such transiation are presented as “Foreign currency translation adjustments” in a separate component of
shareholders’ equity. As described below in “p) Actounting Change, 7. Change in sccounting policies” effecove April 1, 2002, the
Company ¢hanged hs accounting holicy for zransiation of revenue and expense accounts of consolidsted foreign subsidiaries. Reverue
and expense accounts of consoildated foreign subsidiaries are now transiated imto Japanese yen at the average rate of exchange
effect during each subsidiary's respective fiscal year,

m) Derivatives i

Effective April 1, 2000, JT and fs domestic subsidlaries adopted 3 new accounting standard for derivative financial instruments and 8

revised accaunting standarg for foreign currency Transactions. These standards require that 2) all derivatives be recognlzed as either

assexs or fiabilities and measured at fair value, and gains or losses on derivative transactions arg recognized in the consolidated state-

ments of income snd b) for derivatives which qualify for hedge accounung because of high correlation and effectiveness between the
'hedging instruments and the hedged items, gains or 10sses on derivatives arg deferred-until the corresponding hedged item is recog-

nized in earnings. - )

Pror to April 1, 2000, the axchinge gains and losses arising érom foreign exchange forward comracts and swap agreements were
deterred and charged to income rstably over the term of tha contract period

In accardance with the above-destribed new accountlng standards for derivatives, JT's vade payables denaminated in foreign curren-
des hedged by foreign exchange forward contracts and the 6.75% U.S. doflar bonds due 2004 hedgad by a foreign currency swep
agreement quallfy for hedge accounting and are transiated at the foreign exchange fate stipulated in the comtracts,

Interest rate swaps that qualify for hedge a¢counting and meet specific matching riteria are not remeasured at market value, but the
differential 1o be paid or receved under the swap agreements are accrued and included in interest expense or income,

As a3 result of adopting the new accounting standarsds for derivatives, in¢come before income taxes and }nmomy interest for the year
ended March 31, 2001 decreased by ¥31 million, as campared to the previous methed.




(N

n) Foreign Cansolidated Subsidiaries A
M54 and other foreign consclidated subsidiaries principally maintain their accounting records in conformity with accounting principles and prac-
ficas generafly accepted in the Unfred States of America. The significant acemring policies, which are different from JT's policies, are a8 follows:
1. inventories
Inventories are generily sEted at the lower of cost or market, cost being determinad by the first-in, firgt-out method or the aver-
age cost ’
2. Froperty, plant and equipment
Depreciation of propery, plant and equipment is generally compued using the straight-ine method gver the estmated useful lves
of the respective 35sets.
. Goodwill and intenglble assets

[

Prior 10 January 1, 2002, goodwifl and wadermarks acquired through the acguisiucn of the non-U.S. tobacco operations of RIR
Nabisco and racorded at T Imtemnational had been amortized using the straight-line method over 40 years. Amortization of ather
intangible assets was generally computed using {he straight-ling method over the estimated useful fives of the assets.

Under a new accounting standard (Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 142, “Goodwill and Cther Intangible
Assers™), effective from the subsidiary's fis¢a! year beginning on January 1, 2002, goadwill and other intangible 2ssets, including
certain trademarks, with indeflnite useful Ives are no longer subject to 3mortization but are required 4o be tested for Impaimment at
least annually. Based on tha transitional impairment tests performed ypon the adaption of the new accounting standard, e
Impairment Josses were recognized. Intangible assats with finite lives sre amortized over their estimated useful lves, which are over
40 years (See “g) Accounting Change, 2. The adoption of new acgounting standsrds™).

4. Retirement benefit pension pian

If the lisbility for retirement benefits already recognized is less than the unfunded sceumulsted benefit obligation, an additional
minimum liability is recognized. The amount additionally recognized, to the extent that éxceeds unregognized priof service cost, nei
of any t2x benefits, {(minimum pension liability adjustments), is directly charged to retained eamings.

5, Derlvatives

- All derivatives are used to hedge foreign exchange fisk and are recognized as either assets o liabilities 1n the balance sheet and
measured at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are récarded in current eamings for each fiscal year,
0) Per Share Information
The computatlen of net income per share 15 based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock outsianding dunng
each yaar, The weighted average number of common shares used in the cornputation was 2,000,003 shares for each of the three years
in the period ended March 31, 2003.

Cash dividends per share presented in the consolidated statements of income are gividands applicable 10 the respective years includ-
ing dividends 10 be paid after the end of the year, As destribed in “p) Accounting Change, 2. Adoption of new accounting standsres, ©
efiective April 1, 2002, the Company adopted the new accounting standard for per share information.

p} Accounting Change
1. CHange in accounting policies

Effective Apeil 1, 2002, the Company ¢hanged 15 accounting policy for anslating revenue and éxpense accounts of foreign ¢on-
solitiated subsidiaries into Japanase yen 10 present more appropriately the results of operations of forelgn consolidated subsidiaries
as the significance of the forelgn consolidated subsidiaries continued to increase. Consequently, revenue and expense accounts of
the foreign consolidated subsidiaries are now translated into Japanese yen st the average exchange rates during each subsidiary’s
respestive fiscal year. Frior to April 1, 2002, they hag been transiated into Japanese yen at the rates of exchange in effect a1 each
subsldiary's respective fiscal year end, As a result of this change, income befere income taxes and mincrity Interest for the year
ended March 31, 2003, Increased ¥968 million (58 million), as compared 1o the previous method. The effecs of this a¢counting
change on segment Information are disdosed in Note 16, “Segment information.

2. The adoption of new accounting standards

Treasury Stock and Reversal of legal Reserve—in February 2002, the Accounting Standards Board of Japan ("ASB)") 1ssued
Accounting Stsndard No. 1, *Accounting Standard ior Treasury Stack and Reversal of Legal Reserve."” The Company adopted this
new standard effective Aprl 1, 2002, This new standard had no effect on net income of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2003.
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Fer Share Information—in September 2002, ASBJ issued Acoounting Standard No. 2, “Accounting Standard for Earnings per
Share™ and Accounting Standard implementation Guidance No. 4, “impiementation Guldance on Finangial Accounting Standard
for Eamings per Share,”” The Company adopted both of these effective April 1, 2002, The effects of the new standard and imples
mentation guldance on net incame per share of the Comparny for the yezr ended March 31, 2003, were not material.

Accounting for Goodwill Recognized by Fereign Consalldated Subsidiaries—Prior 10 January 1, 2002, goodwill acquired through
the acquisition of the non .S, tobacco operations of AJR Nabisco had been amortized using the straight-line method over 40
years. In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued the Statement of Financlal Accounting Standards (“SFAS™)
No. 142, “Goadwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which was effective from JT Intemational's fiscal year beginning on Jenuary 1,
2002. Under SFAS No. 142, the googwill is no longer subject 10 amortization bud is reauired to be tested for impairment at lsast
annually, Based on the transitiona] impairment tests parfarmed upon the adoptian of SFAS No. 142, no impairment losses were
recognized. As a result of adopring this new accounting standard, incame before income taxes and mingrity interest for the year
ended March 31, 2003, Increased by ¥10,454 million (387 million), &s ¢compared to {he previous methed,

4. Short-term Investments and Invastment Securities
Short-term investments and investment securities 3t Margh 31, 2002 and 2003 consisted of the following:

Milions of yen Milions of U5, dohar

. 2002 2003 2003

Short<tarm invesments:
Time daposits... .. ¥ 1,367 ¥ 1,048 L]
Government and COrporate DONAS ... ...evueecrecerasriinrosienieneens 10320 18,981 158
Trust fund iNVeSTIRMES BN GTNRT. .o st sri e esre e srt s eme e snrtaies 4,527 874 7
Total., et srtverrs e e ¥16214 ¥20,903 $171

Investment securities:

EQUItY SREUMLES .otvisesssensccnsrecrrmmmtthatessssesiesessermatasssemecremsessmspnnassttesnsssascssecrsrsarstsniones $97,078 ¥45,781 $381
Government and corporate bonds . 22,324 12,347 103
Trust fund investments and other,...... 17,891 5,701 a7
Total...ccniinn e ereenee et abene e ¥97,883 ¥63,829 5531

Information ragarding markatable available-for-sale securitiag at March 31, 2002 and 2003 was as follows:

Millions of yen
2002
Unrealized Unreslizad Fair
Cast ¢an foss value
EQUItY SEOUIES. ..o cer s comrasnr s . ¥47.226  Y11,135 ¥4.014 ¥ 54,337
Government and corporate BONds....cer e 32,211 437 267 32,381
Trust fund iINVESIMENES BN OINRT vy wcetitebemreee e rettr et teaer s erecane b a s s e senens 22,259 10 4,902 17,387
TOBL v rirtitasi et ancoere ot stransessceenserssrasabtcsnessesesscos e taraarsnseecececeesremennne ¥101,836 ¥11.572 ¥3,183 ¥104,085
Miliions af yen
2003
Unrezizad Unrealzed Fawr
Cost gain lngs value
Equity securttias,....: we  ¥35,181 ¥7,333 ¥1,805 ¥41,669
Govemment end corporats bonds..... i 1B714 373 3 19,084
Trust fund Investments and other 6,714 12 1,160 5,566

TOTB! evrvieae ¥61,569 ¥7,718 ¥2,968 ¥66,319




Millore of US. doliars

2003
Unrealized Untealized Fair
Cott gain los value
Equity securities, $30% £61 $15 5347
Government and Corporate bonds.......c-wveervameanen. " . 156 3 1] 159
Trust fund irvestmens and ather ... L1 0 9 46
Towal..... $512 $64 524 §552

The carrying amounts of non-marketable available-for-sale securities at March 33, 2002 and 2003 were as follows;

Mifkons of yen Millions of U.S, doka
‘ 2002 2003 2003
Equity seQurities ... ¥3i341 ¥ 4112 § 34
Govarnment and COTPOrate DONDS.... i eees ermssemsrsnecsesesiemirissans . 253 12,244 102
Trust fund investments and other.... . 5081 1,009 8
Jouwl...... Fetteasranae e ee et anries e e € et rn et s SaeeE St mees et neeon . ¥BBSS  ¥17,365 5144

Proceeds from sales of avalizbie-for-sale securities and ralated gross realized gains and losses on those sales, compured pn the moving
sverage cost bagis for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 were as follows: ’

: Milliors-of yen Milions of U.S. dolirs
2001 2002 2003 2603
Praceats frCM SAES ..ooruriiireese s rsrssssterneseseers s sesrnn s snsssesssconmnisnnenneeeee. $30, 884 ¥5,891  ¥W11,97C 5100
Gross 18HZE GRINS .. ovevererererrseseressenrires e ¥ 3,963 ¥ 337 ¥ 789 S 6
Gross TEANZET FOS5E5 1u..vvnveereerervrreraeseoseescesontonse 27) @5 (5.290) (44)
NEt rEEHZE0 QAN (OS] . curueremrccrcrescsensrmamrcereareasstsminnan anscorces reetsmommsesmeemeenenenee. § 5,738 ¥ 242 ¥(4,521) 5(38)

The amaunts of securities classified as available-for-sale at March 31, 2003, based on their contractual maturity dates, were
as follows:

Millioas of yen Millions of U.S. dotan

Duye WITthin O YEaT .....coveereerisiniccns v ¥15,868 £165
Dus after ane year through five years 15,840 130
Due after five years through ten years.......,... . 1.902 18
DUt AfLEE BN YBAIS (. irsisr st sttt st o pa e e son st seeees " 102 1
Total.. seitenierares e masrersseseeneee ¥37,914 §312
5. Inventories
inventories at March 31, 2002 arid 2003 consisted of the following:
Milhons of yen Milhons of U.S. dollars
2002 2003 2003
Leaf tobacco.......... oo, ¥380,298  ¥354,400 §2,349
Finished products....... worecossrsms s 52,118 52,297 435
{1 (3T SOOI . 86,749 85,480 m
TOMB vecrrecrsconramsersemertaestesse sresse ererssstsesten saasossssess st ghsttssssnresmssessenrensrstsnsameneermnninnunnes 924,185 ¥492,177 $4,095
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JT leaf Yobacco inventory in excess of the minimum amount necessary for future production is subject to annval devalustion. The net
effect of the change in the devaluation was credied 16 cost of sales as follows;

Millons of yen Mdons of L.5. dolers
2001 2002 2003 2003
Net effect of the change in devalUation Tedit......usieeemonmvenisensimmemsenense ¥4, 148 ¥1,098 ¥118 <6

6. Short-term Bank Loans and Long-term Debt
Short-term bank !oans as of March 31, 2002 and 2003 consisted of the following:

Mitlions of yen Milions £f U.5. dallas
002 2003 2003
Yen loans with intargst rates of 0.41%t01.81%
gt March 21, 2002 and of 0.45% 10 1.81% &t March 31, 2003 .vcee e vrvcsssivsirnenees ¥ 7,786 ¥ 7141 3 60
Foreign currency loans with Interest rates of 2.53% 10 B.6%
at March 31, 2002 and of 0.9% t0 6.6% at March 31, 2003 .....cccovcceervenccmvencsenenas 284,738 13,382 111
Toral [R5 4 | ¥20,523 $171
Long-term debt &t March 31, 2002 and 2003 comprised the following:
Milkons of yan Mlions of U.S. doiars
2002 2003 2003
1.98% ven ponds, BUE 2000 ..o s $190,000 ¥150,000 €1,248
6.75% U.S. dollar bonds, dug 2004 ... cvieceernicinncaecneen 122,000 122,000 1,015
Secured yen bonds of a subsidiary, due 2003 With 3.0% v cecccemnmsnimns - 500 500 4
Long=tarm bank 10an$ gue through 2018, ciervcsmecormiamiscassemssmmsommainsecsosssseeene 208,717 131,478 1,094
TOMA ..t e emtsnsirsseranee . i " 479,217 403,976 3,381
Less current porticR {79.672) {55,310) {465)
Long-tarrm debt, 1855 CUMTEIL PORION cov.voreee v corsruenasimmaninceresnmnissemsnsemcorsormimennrnrenee £399,545  ¥348,066 $2,896

T has entered into gurrency swap agreements 1o fix Japanese yen cash flows on principal and interest paymants of 6.75% U.S. dollar
bonds due in 2004, under whlch JT pays 1.546% Japanese yen interest in exchanga for 6.75% U.5. dollar intarest. JT and certain
domestic consolidated subsidiaries have alse entered into interest rate swap agreements to fix variable rate interest payments of
Japanese yen loans. The effective imerest rates for yen denominated long-term loans outstanding 8t March 37, 2002 and 2003, &fter
giving effect 10 such swap agreements, were 0.68% 10 5.55% and 0.43% 1 5.50%. respectively. Annual Interest rates appliceble w
iong-term lozns danominated In foreign currencies outstanding at March 31, 2002 and 2003 ranged from 2.43% to 7.55% and 1.00%
10 8.60%, respectively.

Annug! maturities of fong-tenmn debt at March 31, 2003 were as Tollows.

‘Yaar Gnding Mardh 31, Milions of yon Mallions of U.S. deliars
2005 .. 146,852 1,223
2006... 18,815 165
2007 -vvvvenrenn eneeren v e . 18.263 . 1m
2008... . PPV . 10,474 g7
2008 A0 HNEIEBIAT 1111vireimeeeeeseeeerrarersoeecessmesserets sastascaessrea g s ababtt seeasnes s eee AR TS s ssssesrsenpranbtatbstsasannras 152,562 1,268
Totai wrrmrternenarseenianne ¥603,976 $3,361

Under the IT Law, obligations ¢reated by the bonds issued by JT (all bends listed above except for secured yen bonds of 3 subsidiary)
are secured by a statutory preferential right over the property of JT, This right entitles the holdars thereof 1o claim satisfaction in prefer-
ence 10 unsecured craditars (with the exception of national and iocal 1axes and certain other statutery obligations).




Substantially a of the short-term bank loans and long-temm delr ara unsecurad. Secured loans and debt of eertain consolidated sub-
sitilaries at March 31, 2003 were as follows;

Mitmrs of yen Mikeas of U.5. dolrs

Long-term bank loans o ¥2.4598 L¥3
Others, pringipally short-term bank leans and bonds 1,533 12
Total ¥4,031 $34

The carying amounts of assets pledged as collateral for the dbove secured loans and debt at March 31, 2003 were as follows:

Milkens of yeg Mifians of U5, dellas

Mathinery, equipment and vehides . rrreestaes e saie . ¥3,28¢ 527
Others - 1,616 14
Total " cerenee ¥4,880 L %3}

General ggreements with respective banks provide, as is customary in Japan, that additional coliateral must be provided under certain
drcumstances if requested by such banks and that cerlain banks have the right 1o offset cash deposited with them against any long-
125 o shortsterm debt or other debt payable zo the banks. JT has never been requested to provide additional collateral,

7. income Taxas -
T and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries are subject to fapanese corporate 1ax, inhabitants 12x and enterprise tax based on income
which, in-the aggragate, resulted in a normal effective Statutory tax rate of appraximately 41.75% for the years ended March 31, 2001,
2002 and 2003. Foreign consolidated subsigiaries are subject w0 incorﬁe taxes of the countries in which they operate.

The tax affacts of significant temporary differances and loss carryforwards which resuited in defarred tax assets and lishilities at March
31, 2002 and 2002 were s foligws:

Mithoas of yen Millons of U,$, dollan

2002 2003 2003
Deferred tax assets:
Liabilities for employess’ retirement benefits . ¥ 72631 ¥ 74315 $ 619
Net operating 1955 CAMYTOMWETES . ....ccueecraniuiesrecnseesstpibmseisseesesss st tommmcesimscrssncison e 19,194 21,125 175
DPTBE et vrrststit e se e e car e 18t neeaer e s rer b aseer s spee b Ebe e scre s e PR AR LR S bonerrens rntbE g 58,182 52,899 440
Less valuavion allowance.......... (22,594) (22,159) {134)
Total rerrtrtean e e 127445 126,240 1,050
Deferred tax lisbiliies:
Deferred gain on sales of fixed AsSets for INCOME 3K PUIPOSES .vuimrvinervrereercemssrersyseeenn 31,353 25,530 295
Basks differences in assets acquired and liabilities assumed upon acquisition 45,071 40,263 335
0,11 . 16,128 14,898 124
TOB! et ctresms s e eanr it 03,552 80,691 754
Net deferrad tax assets " ¥ 33,892 ¥ 35549 5 29

Net deferred tax-assets at March 31, 2002 and 2003 were reflectad on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets under the fol-
lowing captions;

Mikions of yen Millons of U.S, doMans
2002 2003 003
Other ¢urrent assats . e ¥17,960 ¥19,977 §166
DETRITEH LK BSSBIS ovvvvcnermenrcomertsreumesiesrecssmsrsssstsoseeesos nscosinsisisssosssnsonssessatpssossnaossssessuesss 11,034 64,524 537
QOther current fiabilities , TR o [ v (42) (@
Deferred X HaBIIES 1uev.eee e v essesneeescreeesssrsatseeen. s (54,904} (48,910) (407
Nert deferred tax gsgets o............ . e ¥33,803 ¥35,549 §296
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A recondiiation batween the nommal effective staturory tax 1ates for the years ended March 21, 2001 and 2002 and the actual effec-
tive tax rates reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of income was as follows:

2001 2002
Normal effactive statutory iax rate e 417896 41.75%
Amortization of goodwill net tax-dedustible : 8.55 8.75
Tax bengfits not recognized on operating losses of subsidlaries 5,61 454
" Other—net “ s e 309 1.70
Actuz) effective tax rate SO 50.00%  57.7d%

As the difference between the nomal effective statutory tax rate (41.75%) and the actusl effecive tax rate (43.38%) for tha year
ended Margh 31, 2003 wes less than 5% of the normal effactive statutory tax rate (2.09%), no reconciliation is required.

The Law 1o Amend 3 Part of Local Tax Laws (the “Laws'*) was promulgated on March 31, 2003, which raduced entarprise tax rates
alpng with the introduction of nonsincome based taxes, The Laws are to be applied to fiscal years beginning on or zfter April 1, 2004, in
connection with this, deferred 1ax assets and labilities which will be realized or settled after April 1, 2004 were adjusted for the effect of
the change in tax rates. As a result of the adjustments, deferred tax assets and [labilities were decreased by ¥3,282 million {327 million)
#nd ¥1,465 million (312 million), raspectively as of March 31, 2003. ,

8. Tobacro Excise Taxes

T 15 subject 10 national and local wobaco extise w@xes (par unit tax) on its tobacgw products soid in the domestic markat. ST's five
domestic diswribution service subsidiaries ara also subject to the local Tobagco exdse tax (per unit tax) on their wholesale of foreign hrand
wbacco products purchased from foreign tobacco manyfaciurers through irmponiers, while the national 1obateo excise tax is paid and
charged to thase subsidiaries by imporers. At March 31, 2003, subjact to a few minor exceptions, the national tobacco excise Tax, the
local tobacco excise 1ax and the nauonal tobacco special excise 1ax on dgarettes are ¥2,7'16 per thousand units, ¥3,536 per thousand
units and ¥820 per thousand units, respectively, for a 1otal Tobacco exdse tax of ¥7,072 per thousand units. Foreign subsidiaries are aiso
subject to excise txes,on cigarattes sold in thelr domiciias. The aggragate amount of such tobacco excise taxes induded in cost of sales
for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 were ¥2,505,029 million, ¥2,502,205 miliion and ¥2,484,727 million (520,672
million), respectively, including national tobacco excise taxes pald by importers of ¥283,249 million, ¥285,928 million and ¥290,788 mil-
lion (52,419 milion), raspectively.

9, Liabilitles for Retirament Benefits

IT and most of s domestic subsidiarles have unfunded severance indemnities plans and/or trusteed non-contributory defined beneft
pension plans covering substantially all of their employses. The plans provide benefits based upen the rate of pay st the dme of termina
tion, yaars of service and certain other factors. Such retirement benefits are mage in the form of a fump-sum severance payment from JT
aor from certain conselideted subsidiaries and a lump-sum payment or anaurty payments from a3 trustee. Under the plans, employess are
entitied 1o receive larger payments in certain circumstanges such as involunzary ermination, retirement at the mandatory retirement
age, voluntary termination &t certain specific ages prior to the mandatory retiremen age of dasth.

During the year ended March 31, 2002, IT and ¢ertain domestic subsidiaries sponsored a8 volyntary eady retirement program for full-
time white-coljar employees whereby the applicents were entitled to an addivional retirement benefit. The additional retirement benefiy,
1ogether with the unrecognized actuarial net loss and unrecognized prior setvices cost atributable o the applicants, in the emount
of ¥31,380 million was charged to income as other expenses for the year ended March 39, 2002. JT also made an amengdment to
thae unfunded severance indemnhies plan which resulted in additionaf unrecognized priar service cost.

JT ¢eased opetations of three domesdc cigarstte manufacturing factorias sn March 31, 2003 and certain domestic subsdlaries spon-
sored a voluntary early retirement program.The additiona! retirement benefits resulting from these restructufings in the amount of
¥5,580 milion (546 million) was charged 19 income as other expenses and recorded ag ¢ther accaunts paysble for the year ended
March 81, 2003.

Foreign subsidiaries prncipally sponsor non-contriburory defined benefit pension plans covenng most of their employees. Plans cover-
ing regulsr full-ume employses provide pension benefits based on credits, determined by age, years of service and fina! average tom-
pensation befere retirement.




The liabllities for employees’ retirement benafns at March 31, 2002 and 2003 consisted of the following:

Mibons of yen Mibions ef LS. dolars
2002 2003 2003
Projected benefit obllgations Y(448,347) ¥(450,862) $(3,751)
FIF VAIUE QF PIAN BETRTS... e cerirrssatemerermseesennsrsrntasessssnsunssesossoessseseres seavstses sesserasmseerasessentes 150,209 141,391 1,181
Fundad status v (298,138)‘ {308,971) {2.570)
Unrecognlzed transitional obligation 6,042 — -
Unrecognized actuarial net loss 51,382° 65,976 557
Unrecognizad prior service cost 19,157 17,478 145
Net amount recognized —........oeoionnne . (221,557 (224,517) {1.868)
Minimum pension liability BAIUSIMEMS ....euvuecsereesceoeenscomrimarssstestsrasesessonsesesssasspoimne (3.21%) (5.220) {43)
Prepald pension cost (189} (608) {5
Ligbilities for employees’ retirement BRRGHS vuum...e v crerisssssammssimsessearseanasiesseans e ¥(224961)  ¥(230,345) 5(1,916)
The compenents of net periodic retirement benafit cost for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 wera 3s follows:
Milhens of yen wilions of U.S. doltae
200 2002 2002 2003
Service CoRt..mu ¥16,842 ¥17,804 ¥18,673 §155
ITETRST COSLouveevivusasstnne oeeereceesesssassssttsasssssnaressesssensssussns nssssuss s 14,61 15,685 13,034 108
Exgected etUrN ON Plan G55ET5 counrueeeeeverirrvsisarsassremsseressererresrserrirsmessvenns AS1275) {6.681) (4,8%3) {40}
Amortization of transitional ebligatien..... 7.702 8,176 6,042 50
Recognized actuarial {gain) 1055 .....c..ccooers 3s) PAVY 5,006 a2
Amortizatlon of prior service COS ... — 4,209 2,101 18
Net pericdic retirement BENRT COSE .- ...vvvuiiiceicrieree st ¥32,845 ¥39,334 ¥4D,043 §333

Significant assumptions primarily usad for the yezrs ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 were set forth as follows:

00 2002 2003
DISCOUIME TBLE....cerssarass s s sem b 8 mesb o s P s e 3.5% 25% 2.5%
Expicted r2te OF TTUMN OF PIAM B550T0 ... vvvreeiveiesee e e eceecans rasesassessscassnasssere s bbb b s sasnsa 4.0 4.0 20

The amortlzation period for the transitional abligation, calculated upon the initiai application of the new accounting standard for
employees’ retirement benefits 15 principally three years. Actuarial gains or losses that result from changes in plan experience and actuar-
ial assumptions are principally amortized over ten years. The amomization period for the prigr service cost that resulted from retrcacuve
application of & plan amendment is prindpally ten years. The retirement benefit attributable 10 each year is calculated by assigning the
same amount of pension benefits 1 each year of servite.

Certain domestic-conselidated subsidiaries partcipate in muli-employer contributory pension plans, the required contriburions 1o
which are recognized a3 net pension cost for the yaar. Plan assets alipcated based on amounts contriuted as of March 31, 2002 and
2003 were ¥3,857 million and ¥3,71S million (831 million), respectivaly.

Certain foreign consolidated subsidiaries also provide certain health angd life insurance benefits for retired employses and their
deperidents.

The retirernent benafits paid to directors and corporate 2udhtors are subject To approval by resolution at the shareholders mesting
The Company’s labilities for retirement benefits for dwectors and corparate auditors as of March 31, 2002 and 2003 were ¥1,286 mi-
lion and ¥1,284 million (311 millior), respectively.

10, Japan Tobacep Inc, Mirtual Assistance Jnsurance Association
Employees of JT and its predecessor, Japan Tobaces and Salt Public Corporation, as members of the Japan Tobacto Inc. Muwal
Assistange Insurance Assodiation (the *JT Mutual Assistance Assodation®), established in 1356, ware entitled to receive benefits under
the definad benefit pension plan in accordance with the Public Gfficial Mutual Assistance Association Law.

in accordance with 3 faw passed by the Diet In June 1996, the /T Mutual Assistance Assodation ang Two other mutual assistance
assodations merged with the National Welare Pension Plan sponsored by the Japarese govemnment. Pursuant to the law, IT, as the
emplayer af the benefidaries of the JT Mutual Assistance Assoction, was required to contribute cash to the associstion to fund
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¥57,164 miffion of beneit abligations at the time of the merger, excluding the benefit abligations for the services rendered up 1o July 1,
1956, which are required to be separately funded by JT on an annuity payment-basis (see Note 18. Subsequent Evend. JT smortized the
expenses equally over § five-year period ending with the year ended March 31, 2001. As such, ¥11,433 million was charged to *3elling,
general and admipistrative expenses” for the year ended March 31, 2001.

11. Shareholders’ Equity
Japanese companias ars subject 1o the Code, to which certain amendments became effective from October 1, 2001.

Pricr ¢ October 1, 2003, the Code required #t least 50% of the issue price of new shares, with a minimum of the par value thereof,
10 be designated as stated capral &5 detarmingd by resolubion of the Beard of Difectors. Proceeds in excess of amounts designated as
stated capital were credited 10 additional paid-in capital. Effective October 1, 2001, the Code was revised and comman stock par vaiues
were eliminatad, resulting In all shares being recorded with no par value.

Prior to October 1, 2001, the Code also provided that an amount at lgast equal 1o 10% of the aggregate amount of @sh dividends
and cerain other cash payments which are made as an appropristion of ratalned earnings applicable to each fiscal period shali be
appropriated and set aide s a legal reserve until such reserve equals 25% of stated capital. Effective Ociober 1, 2001, the revised Code
allaws for such appropriations to be set asite a5 a lega! reserve until the total additional paid-in capital and legal reserve equals 25% of
stated cepital. The amount of total additional paid-in capital and legal reserve which exceeds 25% of stated capital can be ransfamed to
retained earnings by a resalution of the shareholders’ mesting, and may be available for dividends. JT's legai reserve amount, which is
induded in retained earnings, sotals ¥18,776 million and ¥18,776 milion ($156 million) as of March 31, 2002 and 2003, respectively.
Under the Code, companies may 1ssué new common shares to existng shareholtlers without consideration as a stock spin pursuantto a
resolunon of the Board of Diractors, The issuance ef such shares generzlly does not give risa to changes within sharsholders’ equity

Prior to October 1, 2001, the amount calculated by dividing the total amount of shareholtiers’ equrty by the number of outstanding
shares after the stock split cauld not be fess than ¥50,000. The revised Code eliminated this restricion.

Prior to October 1, 2001, the Code Imposed certain restrictions on the repurchase snd use of teasury stock. Effective October 1,
2001, the Code eliminated these restrictions and aliows a company 1o repurchase its own stock, if approved by a resolution of the
sharehelders at the general shareholders’ meeting, until the subsequent general shareholdars” meeung and to dispose of such weasury
stock by a resolution of the Board of Directors after March 31, 2002, The amount of treasury stock acquired cannot exceed the amount
available for future dividend plus amount of stated capital, additional paid=in capital and legal reserve to be raduced n the case where
such reduction was resolved at the general shareholders' meeting.

The Code permits companies w transfer 3 partion of acditlonal paid-in capital and legal reserve 1o stated cavital by 2 resclution of
the 8oard of Directers. The Code also permits cormpanies 10 trarsfer a portion of unappropriated retwined earnings, available for ¢iv-
dends, to stated capital by a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting,

Dividands are approved by the shareholders at a meeting held subsequent 1o the fiscal year w which the dividands ire applicable.
Semiannual interim dividends may also be pald upon a resolution ¢f the Board of Directors, subject to centain limitations imposed by
the Code.

Under the Code, the amount available for dividends is basad on retained earnings as recorded on JT's books. At March 31, 2003, the
smiount of retamed eamings recorded on JT's books wag ¥777,009 miliion (36,464 million) which was available for future dividends sub-
Ject to the approval of the shareholders and legal reserve requirements as well as the JT Law.

The Speas! Taxation Measures Law in Japan permis companies to take as tax deductions certain reserves if provided through an
appropriation of retained eamings. Under Japanese tax laws, these reserves must be reversed to income in future years. The deferred
gain on sales of fixed assets included in “Retained eamings” provided under the Special Taxation Measures Law at March 31, 2002 and
2003 were ¥43,674 million and ¥54,338 million (5452 million), respectively.

12. Res=arch and Davelopment Costs and Advertising Costs
Research and development costs charged 1o expense as incurred for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 were ¥47,083
million, ¥52,702 million and ¥44,512 million (5370 million), respectively.

Advertising cosTs are charged to expenges as incurred and toraled ¥210,834 million, ¥195,497 million and-¥177,810 millon (51,479
rmillion) for the yzsrs ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.




o

13. Lease Transactions

The Company, as 3 lessee, leases certain structures, vehicles, vending machings and other assets. Total rental expenses undar the abave
ieases for the years ended Merch 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 were ¥4,793 milfion, ¥5,483 million and ¥5,581 millian {546 million),
respectively. '

Pro forma information of leased proparty, such as acquisition cost, accurnulated dapreciation and abligations under finance leases
that ¢io not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee on an *as If ¢apitalized” basis at March 31, 2002 and 2003 was &5
follpws:

Mikionz of ygn Mithons of U.S. dalkars
2002 2003 2003
Acguisition cost
Machinery, equipment and vehides. revrneee ¥ 5677 ¥ 6,136 551
TOOIS ceorrirrrne . erinerninee 40,827 20,112 167
Total AqUISHION COSL...ccovvvemcernreammainens e, 26,504 26,248 218
Acgumulated depraciation .t e eermecreerins [RNOURURI & X -1 | 13313 M
Nat (23528 PIOREMY oovoeoevvmrerssrs e e reresssntes ¥13,453 ¥12,935 $107
The above acauisition cost Ingludes related interest expenses.
Mibens of yen Mifians of 11,3, dolizn
. 2002 2003 2003
Obligations under financa leases ,
Due within one year . . . . ¥ 4873 ¥ 4,953 S 2
DIUE BFET ONE YOAL.,..1vibsteereseerenecsaescemareasnrstasss sesseres s aseeresrsens 0 PiEotbR R e sassesasinemsine 8,480 7,982 66
L1 OO ORIV UITUUUITOTUPRSTVPUVRUPURRTOT. | & X L E: | ¥12,933 5107

The zbove obligations under finance leases include related interest expenses.
Pro forma depradation sxpenses for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, which have not been reflected in the accom-

panying consolidated statements of income, computad by the straight-line method, were ¥4.793 milllon, ¥5,483 million and ¥%,581

million (346 million), respectively,
The Company, 35 a lessor, leases cartain compurer equipment and other assets. Teta! fease revenue under the above feases for the

_years anded Margh 31, 2001, 2002 ang 2003 was ¥1,589 million, ¥1,175 million and ¥1,001 milllan ($8 million), respectively.

information of leased property inicluded In the accompanying financial statements, such as acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation
and ciaims under finance leases that do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee, at March 31, 2002 and 2003 was as
follows:

Milkons of yen Mifians of U.5. duilsn
2002 003 2003
Argquisition cogt:
Machinery, equipment and vehides .........cocceenmimiismniimi e erreeomsecessnmiene e $1,042 ¥1,604 413
TOOIS . e e vt et s sas e et bk w 3,942 1,765 15
Total acqUISTon €8t wuersernen sereveeriorrsatonsnsseenenes 4,986 3,369 28
Accumulated deprecation ... e 3,440 2,393 20
Net leasad Propemty......o.eeeee e e ¥1,544 ¥ 978 £8
Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars
2602 2003 2003
Claims under finance leases;
Due within BN YBaT...w e cereriecaeians e ¥ 856 ¥ 534 §5
Due sfter orte year 822 832 S
Total. 1,778 ¥1,166 510

The above dsims under finange leases indutle related interest income.
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V‘Eepredaﬂ‘qr} exgenses for the years anded March 37, 2001, 2002 and 2003 which kigve been reflected in the accompanying consali-
dated statements of income were ¥1,378 million, ¥1,044 miliion snd ¥804 million (§7 million), respectively.

14, Cammitments and Contingencies

JT has been manufacturing and selling Mariboro brand cigarettes in Japan under a license amangernent from Fhilip Morris Produets S.A
since 1973. The arrangement has been renewed several times and the curent srrangement expires In April 2005 wnless renewed by
mutual agreement of the parties. .

The Tobacta Business Law and refated requistions govern JT's dornestic feaf tobacco procurement, The Tobacco Business Law
requires JT t0 emmer into advance gurchase contracts annually with each domestic tabaccs grower who intends 1o ¢ultivate lesf wbacco
for saie 19 J7, These contracts specify the total cultivation area for each variety of leaf tobacco and the pricas of leaf whaceo by varisty
and grade, JT is obliged 10 purchase all leaf tobacco produced pursuant to these centracs which is suitable for the manufacture of
tobacco products. .

Before contlusion of the contracrs, JT is required to consult with the Leaf Tobacco Deliberstive Council (Hatabako shings kad, 2 dellb-
erative body organized under the Tobacoo Busingss Law 1o provide their opinion to IT as 1o the aggregate cuttivation area for each vari
ety of leaf tobacco and the prices for leaf tobacco by vanety and orade, JT s legally required to respact the opinion of the coundil, The
coundil Is charged with examining and dellberatng important matters re/ating 0 the produgtion and purchase of domestically preduced
leat tobaceo, The council consists of members appointed by ST with the approva! of the Minister of Finance from amang representatives
of damestic leaf tobacco-grawers and variouws aczdemic appointses. The coundl is obliged to provide its opimon as to the appropriate
prices of leaf Tobacco based on the 'avel which would allow continued doméstic produgtion of leaf 1ebacco, by taking into actount eco-
nomic conditions such as production costs and commodity pnges.

Domestic tobacco growers typically entrust the Japan Tobacco Growers Assotiation Zenkoky tabako kosaky Kumiai chuo ka) with
negotiation of the fundamental temms of their contracts with JT, including the purchase price of tobaece, JT enters into a8 common
agreement with the association regarding fundamental contractual terms. The common agreemant 2lso includes disaster relief provi-
sions which require IT 1o pay monay to domestic tobacco growers whas tobacco plants or crops suffer from natural disaszars. Pursuant
Yo these provisions and based on the degree cf damages, JT pays s maximum of 50% of the higure calculated by multiplying each cutt-
vator's agraed Cultivation area for the dissster year ty their average procurement price per acreage fof the previous years.

At March 31, 2003, the Company was contingently fiable for tuarantees af joans provided o unconsolidated subsidiaries and #ssoc-
ated companies in the ameunt of ¥4,530 million ($38 million).

In Novernber 2000, the European Union fthe “EU”) brought 2 lawsult against JT in the United States daiming that JT had conspired
with other major tobacce companies to smuggle 40bacco products and thus caused reduced tax revenues and harmed other EU eco-
nomic interests, The federal district court dismissed this cass in July 2001, In January 2002, the EU and its tan member states brought
hefore the same Gourt another lawsuit agsinst JT alleging similar claims, Although the cour dismissed the case, the plaintiffs have sub-
sequently appealed tha case.

Canadian government brought @ lawsuit in the United States against JT-Macdonsld, Inc., JT's operating subsidiary in Canada, alleg
ing that it avoided the imposition of certain excise and retail taxas and duty payments Dy iflegally impbrting into Canada tobacco prod-
ucts ariginally embarkad for export from Canada. In November 2002, U.S. Supreme Court dismissed this case on the basis that U.S,
courts are nat to be used by foreign governments to collect tax revenues,

In July 2007, the EU issued Directive 2001737, whith includes provisions to prohibit the wse of terms such as "mild” in relation ©
Tobaeeo producdts. in arder to assert our right tb use the Mild Seven trademark in the EU, JT jaunched a set of legal challenges against
the Directive. In the case which JT requested annuiment of Artide 7 of EU Directive 2001/37, the Court of First instance of the EU dis-
missed the se without gomng into the substance of IT's particutar case in September 2002. In a similar case which JT joined in UK, the
Eurepean Cour of Justice, which was regquested by UK court to rule on validity of EU Directve 2001/37, issued & judgement stating that
it should be valid, in December 2002.




15. Other Expensas
*Other—net” inchuded in ather Income (expenses) for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 consisted of the foliowing:

Milions of yon Miliens of U.. dokars
2001 2002 2003 2003
Financial support for domestic tobaceo growers (See Note 14) e ¥ (1387) ¥ (857) ¥ (714) $ (6 '
Foreign exchange gain (ossi—net 926 54 (6700 {56)
Amortization of transitional obligation of
employees’ retirement benefits (See Note 9) et et eeneas e rp e bas (7,702 {6,176) (6,042) (50)
Wrrte-gown of investment SeCUMEs ..c.....vvsmeereeeens 4,212) {12,887} (11,108} (92)
Gain (loss) on sales of iNvastment SECUMTIES—r8t vusveeer.vvenroes 3,736 242 (4.521) {38)
Provision for the employees’ errly retirement program (See Note 9} ........... — (31,380) — -
BuSiNgss restrutiuning COSTS ..o v vmistcemenseiesenans " — (13,413) (11,414) (95)
Loss on discontinued businesses...... -~ {1,550} (2,813} {15}
Compensation for contract canceliztion ................ — (5,000) - —
Others—net .. j— “ e . (8,423) (6,750) (2,307) (19)
Total ., ARt r e r e R (AR b net e ceneaane ¥(18,062) W(77,753) ¥(43,621) $(371)

16. Segment infarmation
The Company's business is divided into the Tobacco, phammaceuticals, foods and ether mdustry segments. The tobacco segment consists
of the manufacture and sale of wbacce preducts, primarlly dgaretres, in Japan and overseas. The pharmaceutical segment is concerned
with the development, manufacture and sale of prescription drugs. The foods segment Invoives the manufacture and sale of beverages
2nd processed foods. Other segments inzlude the real estate business, agribusiness, engineering business and ether gperarions.
Information about operations by industry, by geographic area and sales to foreign custamers is required to be disclosed under the
Securities Law on consolidated financial statemens.
(1) Industry Segments
Information about the industry segmens of the Company for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 was a5 follows:
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Milkon &f yen
200
Elmination/

Tobacta Pharmagauticals Foods Cthers Total Corporate Consolidaed
Sales to customers.......  ¥4,140,270 ¥ 66414 ¥210,332 ¥ 84685  ¥4,501,707 ¥ — ¥4,501,701
Intersegment sales ,...... 6,755 1,253 398 £1,215 88,724 {(59.721) -
Total sales. ..o 4,147,025 67,767 210,730 135.800 4,561,422 (59,721) 4,501,701
Operating expensss ..... 3,981,102 80,554 248,092 132472 4,422,260 (60,524) 4,361,736
Onerating income
(0S5} veveerririsrevermee. ¥ 165,923 ¥(12,827) ¥{17,362) ¥ 3428 ¥ 139182 ¥ 803 ¥ 135985
Assets, depredation
end amorthation and
capital expenditures:
ASSEE ... pvrsrrrireniieee W2,452,741 ¥129,959 ¥133,878 ¥198,117  ¥2,914,695  ¥273,535 ¥3,188,230
Depreciation-ang
amortizaton other
than goodwil........... 120,714 5,079 7,672 16,293 145,758 656 150,414
Amortization of
GOOGWAN.. .o veermrinaone 9,681 4,643 7,030 N2 21,666 — 21,666

Capital expenditures .... 77.304 3,659 4,229 29,249 114,441 429 114,870
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Milvons of yen

2002
Eliminano
Tebacmn Pharmageinicaks Foods Others Total Comorate Consolidated
Salss to customess ... ¥4,178,034 ¥ 61,868 ¥221,197 Y 83,076  ¥4544,175 ¥ — ¥4,544,175
Inersegment sales....... 5,478 49 1,087 44,672 52,286 {52,285) -
- - — - 4184512 61,817 222284 127,748 4586461 ©  (S12B6Y 4,544,175
Operating axpenses ..., 3992398 7 80,902 234,144 125,951 4,433,395 (53,025 4,380,370
Openating income
1135 N ¥ 192,144 ¥{18,985) ¥(11,B60y ¥ 1,797 ¥ 163066 ¥ 739 ¥ 163,805
Assets, depradation
and amortization and
¢apital expenditures:
ASSELS ...cvereereressrns . ¥2,309,509 ¥125,208 ¥133.244 ¥190,130 ¥2,758,782  ¥304,895 ¥3,063,077
Deprecaton and
amortization other
than goedwill............ 117,566 5,823 8,242 17,411 149,042 (546) 148,098
Amertization of
goodwill........ - 11,288 4,643 5,877 209 22,218 — 22,218
Capital expandiiures .... 73,086 2,276 6,936 18,186 97,484 (957} 86,527
Milions of yen
2003
Eliminadary
Tobacco Pharmaceubeals Foods Others Total Comorate Consoligated
Sales 0 CUSIOMErs...... ¥4,134,466 ¥ 53,927 ¥232,404 ¥ 71,487 ¥4,492,264 ¥ -_— ¥4,492,264
Intersegment sakes........ 6,575 - 857 36,920 44,352 (44,352} -
Total sakes...oonne 4,143,041 53,927 233,261 108,387 4,536,616 (44,352) 4,492,264
Dperating expansss ..... 3,927,699 67,782 246,428 107,455 4,349,365 {46,064) 4,303,301
Operatng jncome
(1888} s tns v ermerenrienernas ¥ 213,342 ¥({13,855) ¥(13,168) ¥ 9832 ¥ 187,251 ¥ 1LM2 ¥ 188,983
Assets, depreciation
and amortization and
capital expenditures:
AR oot ¥2,153,081 ¥114,726 ¥135.317 ¥236,525 ¥2,639,649 ¥318,016 ¥2,957,665
Depreciation and
amortization other
than gootwill...mi... 108,504 4,102 €,168 1B,705 137.47% (945) 136,534
Amgrtization of
googwill.....ccnevenis 427) 4,643 1,546 37 11,799 - 11,799
Capital expenditures ... 60,975 1,161 7275 38,803 108,214 965 109,179




Miling of U.S, doflars

2003
Elminatlon/
Tabatgo Pharmaceuticals Foods Others Total Comotate Consolidated
Salss to customers ... 534,395 5449 §1,933 5 585 537,373 § — $37.373
Intersagment sales ... 55 — 7 307 369 {369) -
Tota! salt.me e, 34,451 449 1,940 502 37,742 {389) 37,373

Operating expensss ..... 32,676 564 2,050 894 , 36,134 {383) 35,801
Operauny income

{1031 JR $ 1775 5{115) $ (10) $ E $ 1,588 $ 1 5 1,572
Assets, depreciation

ang smortization and

capital expenditures:
AZEE e $17,912 $ 954 §1,126 $1,968 521,960 $2,64% 524,606
Deprecistion and

amortization other

than goodwdl............ 903 34 51 156 1,144 (8) 1,136
Amortization of

[o10 T D &) EL] 63 ] 98 - %
Capital expenditures .... 507 10 3] 322 500 8 908

Operating expenses represent the aggregate amount of the cost of saigs and selling, general and administrative expenses Capizal
expendityres include leng-term prepaid expenses and expensed amounts of the fong-term prepaid expenses are included in depredaticn

and arnortization.

As deseribed in “Note 3. p) Accounting Change, 1) Change in accounting policies,* effective Aprl 1, 2002, the Company translates
revenue and expense accounts of foreign consolidated subsidiaries inte Japanese yen at the average exchange rates during each sub-
sidiary’s respectve fiscal yaar. As a result of this change, sales 1o customers and operating income of the 1obacto segment for the year
ended Mar¢h 31, 2003 increased by ¥29,160 million (3243 million) ang ¥1,372 millicn {$ 11 million), respactively, as tompared 1o the

previous method. The effects of this accounting change on pharmaceuticals, foods, and others segmerts were mingr,

{2) Geographical Segments
The gaographicat segments of the Company for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 were summarized as follows:
Millons of yen
2001
Western Elimmmatan/

Japan Eurcpe Others Tota! Comorate Consolidated
$31E5 10 CUSTOME i e, ¥3,830,624 ¥320,920  ¥250,348  ¥4.501,701 v -— ¥4,501,701
Imersegment 52les.......ccuene SO 29,360 104,831 11,883 146,174 {146,174) -

- Joral sales 3,859,984 425,860 262,031 4,647,875 (146,174) 4,501,701
Operating expenses 3.816,574 458,158 234,353 4,508,086 (147,350) 4361,736
Operating Incorme (058 eeerececcvevnen. ¥ 143,410 ¥(32,208) ¥ 27678 ¥ 138788 ¥ 1,176 ¥ 139,965
Asgets ....... ¥2,690,012 ¥576,819  ¥143205  ¥2910,036  ¥278,194 ¥3,188,230

Japan Tobaccao Inc. e Annuat Reporl 2003
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Miioes of yan

2002
Western Ebminationy
Japan Europe Cthers Totst Corporate Consaligated
Sales to customers........, s ¥3,873,643 ¥302,812 ¥367,620 454175 ¥ - ¥4,54£,175
INtErsegment SHIES. v e ccrcerrires e 39,885 128,782 25,138 193,805 {193,806) -
TOT3] 23188 . svcrararenramemeemrsseresrsaresonees 3,013,528 431,695 392,758 4,737,981 {183,806) 4,544,175
Operating.exXPensEs..u.comermmens v 3,759,033 . 476,214 338,739 4,574,986 (194,616) 4,380,370
QOperating income (J085}......cverenenr e ¥ 154,485 ¥id4,518) ¥ 53,018 Y 162,995 Yy Bio v 163,805
ASSEts . ¥1,B28,501 ¥717,247  ¥189,823  ¥2,735.37 ¥327,706 ¥3,083,077
Milborns of yen
2003
westetn Eliminatiory
Japan Europe Others Totl Comorsie Consofitlated
Sales 10 CUSIOMETE. ..o vrsncemcrercr e ¥3,794,323 ¥316,992  %380,948 ¥4,492,264 ¥ - ¥4,492,264
Intergegment sales.......,.. JET—— 39,717 121,364 21,128 182,206  (182,206) -
Total 53185 sremrerreccereriniiracs 3,834,040 438,356 402,074 4,674,470 (182,208) 4,452,254
Operating expenses......... 3,679,052 460,290 347,295 4,486,637 {183,336) 4,303,301
Operating income (los§)....oonmmmimseeee. ¥ 154,988 ¥(21.934) ¥ 54,772 ¥ 187,833 ¥ 1,330 ¥ 188,983
AS5ELS oo ¥1,745,501 ¥681,909  ¥167,770  ¥2,555,1R0 ¥362,485 ¥2,957,665
Mibicns of .5, dollars
2003
western Ehmination/
Japan Europz Others Taw! Comporae Consolidated
Sales to Customers.....vv... 531,567 $2,637 $3,169 £37.373 5 — 537,313
Intersegment sales....... 330 1,010 176 1,516 {1,515) —
Tatal sales....... 31,897 3,647 3,345 38,889 {1.516) 37,373
Operating expenses 30,608 3,829 2889 37,326 (1,525} 35,801
Operating income (1088)...ununimcrees 1,289 5 (182) $ 456 § 1,563 $ 9 $ 1,572
Assers R $14,522 55,673 51,396 £21,591 $3,015 §24,606

“Westem Europe® mainly includas Switzerland, France and Germany and *Qthers” mainly indude Canada, Russia and Malaysia.

Operating expenses represent the aggregate amount of the cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expanses.

As desaibed m “Note 3, p Accounting Change, 1) Change in accounting policies* effecuve April 1, 2002, the Company translates
revenue and expense accounts of the foreign consaliaated subsidiaries into Japanese yen at the average exchange rates gduring each
subsidiary's respective fiscal year. As 3 result of this change, net salgs to customers of the Western Europe and others segments for the
year ended March 31, 2003, increased by ¥13,370 million {£111 millior} and ¥15,648 million (3130 million), respectively, as cempared
10 the previous method. Alse, for the year ended March 31, 2003, operating logs of the Western Europe segment decreased by ¥936
million ($8 miliion} and operating income of the othars segment increassd by ¥2,278 milken ($19 million). This accounting change had

no effect on the Japan segment,

(3) Sales to Foreign Customers

Sakes to foreign customers for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 amounted 10 ¥584,975 million, ¥684,030 mifiien
and ¥708,085 milllon (35,89 millon), respectively.
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17. Derivatives

JT and certam consolidated subsitiaries use derivative finandlal instruments (“derivatives”), Including forergn currency forward contracts,
cumency swaps and curency eptions, 10 hedge foraign exchange risk assodated with certain assets and fiabilities denommated in for-
eign currencies. JT and certain consolidsted subsidiaries aiso emter inte interest rate swaps as a means of managing thelr interest rate
expasure. Interest rate swaps effectively corvert certain floating rete debts to a fixed rate basis.

Detivatives are subject 10 market rigk ang credit risk. Market risk is the expasure ested by potential fluctustons in market condi-
tions, including interest or foreign exchange rates, Credit risk is the possibllity that a oss may result from a counterpary’s failure 10 per-
form according to the terms and conditions of the contract,

JT and these consolidated subsidiaries to not hold or issue derivatives for trading purposes, The objective of using derivatives is 10
hedge the Company’s exposure to vadability in expeqed future cash flows associated with certain future interest receipts on variable-
rate debr securities, certain interest payments on variabla-rate barrowings and forecasted foreign cumency-denommnated transactions,
such g5 peyments for purchase of imported leaf tobace. The effectivenass of the hedging insruments is assessed in acgordance with

. the Risk Management, Policy and Practice Manual for financial instruments of JT and these consolidated subsidianes by ¢omparing ihe

accumulated amount of changes in hedging instruments with hedge ftems, Nedging instruments and hedged items are summarzed as
follows:

Hedglng instwuments Hedged aems

Foreign currency forward contracts Forecasted foreign currency transactions
Cusrency aptions Forecasted foreign currency transactions
Currgncy swaps Foreign cumency~genominated bonds
Interest rate swaps Borrowings

Because the ¢ounterparties to such derivatives are limited to major laternational fimancial insthtutions, the Cempany does not antici-
pate any losses arising from credit risk.

The Comnpany had the following derivatives contracts that do not qualify for hedga accounting and are outstanding at March 31,
2002 and 2003:

Mihons of yen Mikons of yen
2002 2003
Convrac/ Contracy
Notionat Fair Narignal Fair Gan
Amount Value Loss Amount Value (Loss)
Foreign turrency forward contratts;
Buying.......oe.ovene e ¥11,718 ¥11,687 ¥(21) ¥ 6613 ¥ 6552 ¥329
SOING oot an e 19,038 14,620 419 26,178 26,783  (605)
Currency option:
BUYING svarstssmeneerememssarten sesmssseeiasssssersssssssesecassssanmesescassissponeenenees 3,924 233 233 22,989 (189) (189)
Interest rate swap contract:
Firzd rate payable and floating rate receivable.......c.ceeieeecencinane 7,443 (29) 29} - -— -
Total cvvveeerrerenen ¥602 ¥(465)
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"Milicns of L1.S, dotiars
2003

Comrec/
Nomonal  Fav Gamn
amount  value floss)

~ Foreign corrency forward contrscts:

Buying.... . b remes s epR eSS §5 §5% 53
Selling " 218 223 (s)
Currency option:
Interest rate swap contract:
Fixed rate payable and fioating rate receivable..im a.. . . —_ -—
TOUBL oo eeeevscrsmvssssrspsebassesb e e e eres e et B RSO b s e b s e sseebanst e on 5(4)

The contract or notipnal amounts at derivatives which are shown in the above table do not represent the amounts exchanged by the
parties and tio not measure the Company's exposure 10 credit or market risks.

18. Subseguent Event
Pursuant 10 a resolution of the meeting of the Beard of Directors held on May 7, 2003, the Company dedded to changs ts actounting
policy for centain obligations for 2nnuity payments of the government-sponsered defined benefit pension plans. The Company's annuity-
basis obligations which are subject to the accounting change relzte to pansion benefits to which beneficiaries are entitled for the servic-
es thay rendered up to July 1, 1956, as prescribed by the Public Officlal Mutual Assistance Association Law. This accourting change
recognizes this liabily as part of the Company’s liability for retirement benefits in light of the actusrislly determined computation meth-
ods prescribed under the Revised Accoumting Standards for Ingependent Administrative institution, This standard presaibes accounting
for annuny obligations for gavernment-sponsored pension plans and became effecive en April 1, 2003, Prior wo the change, annuity-
basis contriburions had been recorded as expenses when paid,
" The aggregate impact of this accounting change i to-fully. recagnlze this liability as an extraordinary charge of approximately
¥185,000 miliion, as well as to decrease net income by approximately ¥102.000 million, et of tax effeqts, for the year ending March
31, 2004. This change in accounting will have no effect on the Company’s cash fiows for the year then ending and themafter,

- -The following approprigtions of retained aamings at March 31, 2003 were approved at the shareholders’ meeting of JT held on June
25,2003,

Milions of yen Milans of U.S dallam

Year-and cash dividends, ¥6,000 {(550) Per SNBER..vimiimunieieisis e e esrsmssaran ¥12,000 5100
Bonuses 10 directors and ¢orporate auditors 118 1
eparess e 1R RSO 1 st as s e s e TR R D ¥12,118 5101

A the genera stareholders’ meeung held on June 25, 2003, IT's shareholders speroved JT's proposal of repurchace up to 100,000
shares of JT's common stock for up to an aggregate amount of ¥75 billion.




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Tohmattu & Co.
M5 Shibaura Buiidmg
13+23, Shibaura 4-hame,

.Mmatomku, Tokyo 108-8530, Japan

Tel $81+3-3457-732)
Faw +81.3.3457-1682

oy Deloitte
| Touche
Tohmatsu

Ta the Bosrd of Direcors of Japan Tobacto inc.:

We have audited the accampanying consolldated balance sheets of Japan Tobacco Inc. and consolidated subsidiaries &s of March 31,
2002 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders' eguity, and cash flows for esch of the three years in
the penod ended March 31, 2003, all expressed in Japanese yen. These consolidated finangial statements are the responsibilily of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is 10 express an opinian on these congolidated finanaal statements based on Qur audits.

Wa conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards, procedures and practices generally accepted and applied in Japan.
Those standards require that we pian ang perform the audir 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finangial statemants are
free of material misstaterment. An audit includes examining, on a3 tesL basis, evidence supporung the amounts and disclosures in the
fingncial statements, An audit aiso includes assessing the accaunting prinoples used and significant estmates msde by management, as
well as evaluating the avers!l financial statement preséntatlon. We believe that our audits provide & reasonable basis for our opinion.

Im our opinion, the consolidatad financial statements referred ta above present falrly, in alt material raspects, the consolidated finandal
position of Japan Tobacco In¢. and consolidated subsidiaries 2s of March 31, 2002 and 2003, and the ¢onsolidated results of their oper-
ations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the penod ended March 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting pringiples
and practices generally accepied in Japan.

As discussed in Note 3 10 the consolicated fimancisl statements, effective April 1, 2002, the Company changed its method of accounting
for the transiation into Japanese yen ¢f the revenue and expense accounts of foreign consalidated subsidiaries.

As discussed in Note 2 10 the consolidated financial stetements, effective April 1, 2000, the ¢onsolidated finandal statements have been
prepared in ageordance with new accountng stantiards for finandial instruments, forgign currenty wransactions and employees’ renre-
ment benefits. Also, as discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated finandal stataments, effective from January 1. 2002, goodwill and other
intangible 2ssets of certain foreign consolidated subsidiary have been accounted tor in accordance with new accourting standards.

As tiiscussed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial Statements, pursuant to & resofution of the megting of the Board of Directors held
on May 7, 2003, the Cornpany changad its method of accounting for ¢ertain obligations for annuity payments of the govemment span-
sored defined benetr pension plans, effective for the year ending March 31, 2004.

Our audit 2lso comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.5, dollar amounts and, in aur opinion, such translation
has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Nate 2. Such U.S. dellar amourms are presented solely for the convenience of read-
ers outside Japan,

Oeoitle Tonede TblomaZin

Tokye, japan
June 25, 2003
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

(As of March 31, 2003)

COMMON 5TDGK COMPOSITION OF SHAREHOLDERS

Authorized: 8,000,000 Other insthutions Foreign nstituuons and others
112 " . 3

lssued: 2,000,000 % (22.354) 11.71% (234,208)

Number of shareholders: 68,360

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

Securies companies

0.41% (8.122)

mgividuals and others
831% (124,215

Izpanese governmen!
€6.73% (1,334,663)

Financiat institutions
Numberof| ~ '382% 076437
Name Shares '
: TRANSFER AGENT
The Minister of Finance 1,334,663
- Grate Street Bank and Trust Company 30,592

Japan Trustee Serviees Bank, Lid. (Trust Account) 40,070

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

Govemment of Singapore investment

The Mitsubishi Trust and Banking Corporation
4-5, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

35,000 STOCK EXCHANGE LISTINGS

_| Cerporauen Pte Ld. 22,013
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, L1d. 28,027
JT Empioyee Sharehalding Association 21,031

Boston Ssfe Deposit BSDT Treaty Slients Omnibus 12,697

The Mitsubighi Trust and Banking

First Sections of Tokyo Stock Exchange,
Osaka Securities Exchange, and Nagoya Stock Exchange;
Fukuoka Stock Exchange; Sapporo Securities Exchange

For further information, please contact:
Media & Investor Relatons Division,

Comm_ﬁm ﬁ.mn Account) 12,001 Corporate Communications Group
The Norinchukin Bank 12000 | phong: (81) 355724227  Fax: (B1) 3-5572-1441
CORPORATE DATA
(As of March 31, 2003)
HEAD OFFICE DOMESTIC SALES OFFICES OVERSEAS SUBSIDIARIES
2-1, Toranomon 2-chome, Sappore {Hokkaido) JT Internationa! 5.A.
Minato-ku, Tekye 105-8422, Japan Sendai (Miyagi) 14, Chemin Rieu, CH-1211
Tel: (81) 3-3582-3111 Tokyo (Tokyo) Gengve 17, Swirerland
Fax: (81) 3.5572-1441 Nagoyz (Aichi) Tel: (41) 22-703C-777
Osaka (Osaka) Fax: (41) 22-7030-789
DATE QF ESTABUSHMENT Hiroshima (Hiroshima)
April 1, 1985 Takamatsu (Kagawa) JT America int.
Fukuoka (Fukucka) 375 Park Avenue, Sulte 1307,
FAD-IN CAPITAL 23 other sales offices New York, NY 10152, US.A.
-~ Tel: {1) 212-319-8990
¥100 biflion DOMESTIC FACTORES Fax: (1) 212-315-8993
NUMEER OF EMPLOYEES TK"C:;K;';:O (T:higi) T (U0 Lsd
okai (Shizucka) : .
14,172 Kansai (Kyoto) Washingten House, 40-41 Conduit Street,
Kita-Kyushu {Fukuoka) tondon W1S 2YQ, UK.
20 other factories Tel: (44) 20-7534-1634
fax: (44) 20-7534-1649
OOMESTIC LABORATORIES
. AKROS PHARMA INC,
Tebacco Science Research Laboratory 302 Carnegie Center, Suite 300,
(Kanagawa) Princetan, NJ 08540, U.S.A.
Central Pharmaceutica! Research Tel: (1) 609-919-9570
Institute (Osaka) '

Two other Izborataries

Fax: (1) 609-919-8575
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1. RESULTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR

April 1, 2002 to March 31, 2003
Amouns are rounded down to the naarest ¥ 1 million.

o (Millions of yen uriess otherwise indicated)
FINANCIAL Year ended
RESULTS Marck 31,
2002 2003
Net Sales ¥ 4,544,174 ¥ 4492263
Operating Income 163,805 188,963
Reeurring Profit 136,679 173,231
Net Income 36,850 75,301
Net Income per Shere (Yen) 18,425.17 37,586.21
Dilured Net Income per Share (Ven) - -
Retun on Equity (%) (Net Income / Shareholders’ Equity) 2.4 47
Return on Asset (%) (Recwrring Profit / Total Assets) 5.0 5.8
* Return on Sales (%) (Recurring Profit / Net Sales) 34 39
NOTES:;
1. EQUITY IN EARNINGS (LOSS) OF ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
¥ 93 million for the year ended March 31, 2003
¥ (32) million for the year ended March 31, 2002
2. AVERAGE OUTSTANDING SHARES FOR THE FISCAL YEARS
2,000,000 shares for the year ended March 31, 2003
2,000,000 shares for the year ended March 31, 2002
3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
Translation of profits and losses of overseas subsidiaries.
B 4 7 (Millions of yen wnless otherwise indicated)
- FINANCIAL e e T - For the year anded
CONDITIONS T Mareh3l
2002 2003
Total Assets ¥ 3,063,076 ¥ 2,957,665
Shareho]ders’ Equity 1,613,104 1,622,654
Ratio of Shareholders’ Equity (%) 52 549
Shareholders’ Equity per Share (Yen) 806,552.47 811,262.55

NOTE: OUTSTANDING SHARES AT THE END OF FISCAL YEARS

2,000,000 shares as of March 31, 2003
2,000,000 shaves as of March 31, 2002




L

@) N (Millions of yen)

CASHFLOW For the year snded
... RESULTS v Mareh 31,
' 2002 2003

Cash Flows from Operating Activities ¥ 189,726 ¥ 258,056
Cash Flows from Investing Activities (40,472) (74,876)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities (124,837) (111,967)
Cash and Cash Equivelents, End of Year 534,503 602,644

(4)

MATTERS RELATING TO THE SCOFE OF CONSOLIDATION AND APPLICATION OF THE EQUITY METHOD
Number of Consolidated Subsidianes: 156
‘Number of Non-censolidated Subsidiaries accounted for by the equity method: 0
Number of Associated Companies accounted for by the equity methed: 4

()

CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION AND APPLICATION OF THE EQUITY METHOD
(i) New Consolidated Companies; 5
(i3) Exclusion from Consolidation: 4
(iii) New Application of the Bquity Metbod: 2
(iv) Exclusion from Application of the Equity Method: 1

2. FORECAST OF THE BUSINESS RESULTS FOR THE NEXT FISCAL YEAR
* Please refer to the Forward Looking Statements on page 12.

April 1, 2003 to March 31, 2004

(Millions of yen)

Year ending
Mareh 31,

‘ 2004
Nex Sales 4,580,000
Recurring Profit 174,000
Net Loss 20,000

Additional Information:
Forecasted Annual Net Loss per Share: ¥ 10,000.00




1. SUMMARY OF JAPAN TOBACCO INC. AND ITS GROUP COMPANIES

Tho main business activities of Japan Tobaceo Ins, (the "Company” or "JT'), its 156 consolidated subsidiaries and four

affiliated companies accounted for by the equity method (collectively, the "Group”), and the relationship of each company to
. the Group’s business activities are stated below.

The four categories identified below are the same categories used to present information by business segment as shown in the

"Notes to Consolidated Finaneial Statements."

Tobaeco

The tfobacco business ¢onsists of the manufacture and sale of tobaeco products.

In the domestic market, the Company manufactures and sells tobacco products, and five subsidiaries including Tokyo Tobacco
Service Co., Ltd., distribute tobaceo products and collect payments. Japan Filter Technology, Ltd., manufactures materials,
and Tokai Plant Service Co., Ltd and other subsidiaries carry out the maintenance of factories.

Uni Tobacco Service Co., Ltd. and five other subsidiaries including Tokyo Tobacco Service Co., Ltd. also import, sell and
distribute tobacco products.

In the overseas tobacco business, JT Intemational S.A., as the core company, controls the manufacture and sale of tobacco
products.

The main subsidiaries and affiliated companies
Tokyo Tobacco Serviee Co., Ltd., Kansai Tobacco Service Co., Ltd, Chubu Tobacco Service Co., Ltd,, Kyushu Tobacco

Service Co., Ltd., Hokkaido Tobacca- Service Co., Ltd., Uni Tobacco Service Co. Ltd, JT Logistics Co. Ltd,, Japan Tobaceo
Imex Co., Ltd., Japen Filter Techoology Ltd., Fuji Flavor Co., Ltd., JT Engineering Inc,, Tokai Plant Service Co. Ltd., Yachivo
Sangyo, Inc., Kyushn Technical Service Co. Ltd., Plant Service Co., Ltd., Kanto Plant Service Co., Ltd., Tohoku Plant Service
Corporation, JTSP Inc., JT Voet Co. Ltd, Japan Metallizing Co., Ltd., JT Proserve Inc., JT International S.A, JTI-Macdonald
Cotp., ZAO JT International Markedng and Sales, ZAQ Petro, JT International Germany GmbH, JT loternational Thtlin
Urunleri Sanayi A.S.

Pharmacenticals

The Group's activiies in the area of phammaceuticals invalve the research and development, manufacture and sale of
prescription drugs.

JT concentrates on R&D and manufacturing, while Torii Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., & subsidiary, mannfactures and promotes
sales of drugs.

The main subsidiaries and affilisted companies
Torii Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (listed on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange), Akros Pharma Inc., IT Pharma

Alliance Co., Ltd.
Foods

The Group's eperations in the foods business include the mapufacture and sale of beverages and processed foods. JT's
beverage products are sold through JT Beverage Corporation. Japan Beverage Inc. and certain other subsidiaries sell JT's and
ather companies’ beverages thraugh vending machines. JT Foods Co., Ltd. and certain other subsidiaries handle frozen fouds,
seasonings and other foods products.

Also, the Group transferred 51.5% out of its 64% shareholding in JT Canning Corporation, which changed its company name
to Nishinibon Canpack Co., Ltd. in April 2002, to the Nihon Canpack Ce., Ltd. in April 2002.

JT Foods Co., Ltd., our processed foods sales subsidiary, and JT Beverage Corporation, our beverages sales subsidiary, were
merged in April 2003 to srengthen sales and raise operational efficiency. JT Foeds Co., Ltd. is the surviving company.

The main subsidiaries and affiliated companies
JT Beverage Corporation, Japan Beverage Ine., Japan Beverage Shinetsu Inec., Japan Beverage Shikoku Inc., JT A- Star Co.,

L., JT Foods Co., Ltd,, Nihon Shokuzai Kako Co., Ltd., Sunburg Co., Ltd., lipingsyang Foods Corporation, Asahi Sholcuzai
Co,, Ltd, JT Dining Service Co, Ltd., Hans Continental Smallgoods Pty. Ltd, Thai Foods International Co., Ltd
"”‘Smnt-Germmn CoLtdi —--- -

Other Busmesses

The Group's other businesses include agribusiness operations which focuses on the disaibution of vegetables, ete. The Group's
real estate business focuses on rental operations of real estate praperties. In addition, there are subsidiaries that manufacture
and sell a variety of products and provide services to the Group.




1)

The main subsidiaries and affiliated companies

T Agris Corporation, JT Rea! Bstate Inc., JT Tokushima Prinee Hotel Inc., JT Pros Print Co., Ltd., Tokkyoshiki Co., Lid, JT
Okaxura Corporation, JT Toshi Tnc., JTS Wiring Systems Corporation, Shikoku JTS Wiring Systems Corporation, JT Nifco
Corporation, Nitto Kogyo Co. Ltd., JT Financial Service Co., Ltd. IT Creative Service Co., Ltd, Kyushu JT Nifco
Corporation, Toranomot Energy Service Co.Ltd., JT Capital Management Inc., JT America Inc,, JT (UK) Ltd,, T Capital
(UK.)PLC.
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The relationships among business operations
are as follows:
=

c Japan Tobacco Inc. >

Note: Consolidated Subsidiaries

JT America Inc.
IT(UK) Lid.

cte.

o Tobacco 2! Jopm Tobacey Imex Co, Lid.

[ JapanFilter Technology, L Jay o ————63] IT Logistics Co., Lid B
Fuji Flavor Ca., Ltd. 3> i " A
Japan Metalliziog Co., Ltd. —————»{ JT-Vuet Co., Ltd 1

2 *R 5 ;
JT Engineering Inc. [—-} Tokyo Tobaceo Service Co., Lid.
L = - r—‘g—) Kansxi Tobaceo Service Ca., [4d,
Tokai Plant Scrvice Co,, Lid. Chuts Tobaceo Serviee Ce., Lid.
Yachiyo Sangyo [ve. 1) Ui Tobacco Service || KyushuTobaces ServiceCo., L.
Kyushu Techinical Service Co,, Lid. —> | Co. Ltd, Hokkzido Tobacco Servies Co., L1g.
Plant Service Co., Ltd. Tam
Kanto Plant Servier Co., Lid > -
Toholu Plant Servics Coporation L] 7T Jmermational 5.4
* JTI-Macdonald Corp.
L TSP ine. —> 2A0JT Intemations] Marketing and Sales
ZAO Petro
IT Intemetional Germany GmbH
IT Internationa! Titir Unumleri Sanayi A.S.
ete.
12 3! JT Proserve Inc. JJ
== === Pharmaceuticals ==
"3
———>{ Torii Pharmacewrical Co, Ltd. |
*14
————)l Akros Pharma Inc. W
l JT Pharma Alliance Co., Lid. J
_ )
[E— = Foods == ——
WTEBwemge Corporadon*
1§ Japan Beverage Inc.
Japan Beverage Shinetsu Inc.
Nion Sholuzai Keko Ca, Lid s Tapsn Beverags Shikoi Inc.
Sunburg Co., L1d. 3> IT A-Star Co,, Ltd.
Tipingshang Foods Corporation
Asahi Shokuzai Co., Ltd.
Thei Foods Itemational Co., Ltd. —=772L_IT Foods Co,, Ltd.* ]
JT Dining Service Iac.
Hars Cortinental Smifleoods Py, Lid
Saint-Germein Co., Ltd.
| JT Real Estate lac. }--—) QOther Busginess | __ﬂ)rn‘ Agris Corporation 1
18
JT Pros Peint Co, Ltd. > 29 JT Tokushims Priace Hotel Ino. |
Tt iki Co., Ltd, q
oickyoshild Co, L JT Okamure Corporation
- - - *19 1T Toshi Inc.
L JT Creatve Service Co., Ltd. }"'———) JTS Wiring Systeats Corporstion
Shikoku JTS Winng Systems Coeporation
-2 JT Nifeo Corporation
i Nitto Kogyo Co., Ltd.
| Toranomon Boergy Service Cold. | Kyushu JTNifoo Comoration

[ JT Financial Service Co., Ltd. j

|

] JT Capital Management

TT Capital (UX.) PLC

*JT Foods Co. Ltd., our provessed foods sales subsidiary, and JT Beverags Corporation, our beverages sales subsidiary,

were merged in April 2003.
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Purchese of materials

Purchase of machines

Maintenance of factories and related work

Purchase of tools for tobacea sales promotion

Imports of Jeaf tobacco

Overland transport of general cargo

Support for the operarion of tobacco vending machines
Distribution of tobacco products

Tmports end sales of tobacco products

Sales of tobacco products through registered importers
Sales of tohaceo products

Oumsource of purchase function

Sales of products

Research and development

Purchasc of products

Sales of praducts

Sales of products

Development, planing, design and exceution of construction work
Purchase of printed products

Sales of products

Management of real estate

Purchase of electricity for JT headquarters
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2. MANAGEMENT POLICY

(1) Corporate strategy

JT, which bas identified the current period as the time to establish a pew foundation for long-term success, has formulated a
pew corparate stratsgy called the “JT Branding Declaration.” As part of the JT branding strategy, in each business segment
and all corporats activities, we seek to setisfy our shareholders and other stakeholders by providing unique value added
products aud services that bring delight to and exceed the expectations of our customers. This strategy will enable JT to
become a truly excellent company.

While implementing the JT Branding Declaranon, JT wili continue to strive to maximize cash flow, enbance corporate
valies and maintatn the trust of its shaveholders and other stakeholders.

(2) Medium- to long-term strategies

The Company formulated its mid-term management plan, “Plan 20047, for the three yesr period from April 2002 to March
2003, to further srengthen the Company, focusing an profit growth. The plan speeds up end enhances management measures
previously introduced. It also identifies the three~year fiscal period as a time to 1sy & solid foundation for the next ten years,

‘While maintaining steady cash flow in its domestic tobacca business, JT i3 strengthening its intemational tobaceo business
as the driving foree for profit growth within the JT Group. The Company is also establishing its phanmacenticals and foods
businesses as key sources of future cash flow,

The 154th ordinary session of the Diet partially revised the Japan Tobacco Inc. Law, which provides the Company with
greater freedom in the management of its capital by reducing the number of shares required to be held by the government The
amendment was legislated and put ioto effect in April 2002. In response to this change, JT will now work toward further
growth.

In order to respond swiftly to our changing business environment, and to give management greater flexibility in decision
making, we will continue to take measures that enable us to repurchase our own stock. Whether the repurchase is actually
impleraented or nat, es well as its scale, timing and method will be decided in a timely and appropriate manner in light of
company needs and market conditions,

Tobacco

Total demand in the Japanese market continued to trend downward due to domestic sacial factors, including continued
aging ofthe population and consumers' growing concern about the mpact of smoking on health, as well as the prolonged
stagnation of the Japanese economy. Amid such conditions, in March 2003, the 156th ordinary session of the Diet enacted a
law to raise the tobacco excise tax starting in July 2003, We believe it is necessary to shift the increased burden of this tax to
our products, which will make our business epvironment even more difficult. We will minimize the impact of this tax increase
by raising our unit price and maintaining market share to secure net sales through enhancement of our existing brands and
development of value-added products. Also, we will continue to improve profitability through corporate rationalization.
Moreover, we will support smokers by developing 2 suitable smoking environment, such as providing comfortable smokisg
public spaces.

In our internztional tobacco husiness, we will sccelerate the growth of sales valume by enhancing GFB* growth
accompanied by unis-prics increases and continue to reduce costs. In January 2003, we established the China Division vnder
our Tobacco Headquarters. The division centralizes two fimctions: the formation of key relationships in the Chinese market
through technical support and other activities, which had been handled by JT, and the acrual marketing of tobacco, which had
been handled by our subsidiary, JT International S.A. The aim of this reorganization is to strengthen our medlum- and
long-term activities in the Chinese market, in view of its entry into the WTO.

Alse, we will continue to take appropriate measures regarding tobaceo-related regulations of the WHO, EU and various
countrics.
GFB(*): GFB is the abbreviation for Global Flagship Brands, namely, Camel, Winston, Mild Seven and Salem.

Ehasmacentieals

In our pharmaceuticals business, we are developing our R&D capabilities, introducing potential new products into the
clinical development pipeline and hastening the process of product development. We are also parmering with Group
companies including Torii Phermaceutical Co., Ltd to stwenpthen owr pharmaceuticals business platform and create a
selfsustaining operation.

Foods

" In owr foods business, we are developing products with increased added valve and establishing new business models 0
expand business scale, We are also working to maintain stable income.

Beverages operations will be focused on developing new products and strengthening sales through the vending machine
channel. We are concentrating our processed foods business on frozen foods, bakery products and seasonings.
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Other businesses

We are continving to strengthen operations in other businesses and will make fimdamental changes in businesses not
expected to be self-sustaining,

In October 2002, we decided to discontinue agribusiness operations effective from June 30, 2003.

(3) Basic view and current situstion of carporats governance

(Basic view)

We are proactively enbancing our corporate governance. We recognize that timely, accurate decision-making and execution
are crueial to increase our corporate value and respond appropriately to our changing business and $ocial environments.

(Current situation)

To strengthen our corporate governance, we optimized the siza of our board of directors and introduced an executive officer
system. Also, we established an advisory committee comprised of outside experts to provide us with important advice about
our management and medium- to long-term direction,

Also, we have posttioned the improvement and enhancement of our complignce system as a significant management issue,
as part of fulfilling our responsibility as & highly ethical corporate citizen and to realize corporate governance in a smooth and
appropriate manner. In October 2000, we established a compliance committee whose membership includes outside experts and
which reports directly to the board of directors. The committes mests approximately once a month to discuss relevant issues
that impact our business. Also, the commirtes sets comphance goals each year, based upon which action is taken. Also, under
the recognition that coexistence with the natural environment is the basis for corporate existence, we sctively pursue the
development of products with Jow environmental impact,

(4) Dividend policy

Growth in our corporate value over the medium- to long-termt will determine the Company’s attractiveness to sharcholders.
We intend to increase dividends gradually, depending on our ability 1o meet the management targets in owr Plan 2004 end our
medium- and long-term prefit forecasts.

We will use our retained eamings to strengthen our foundation over the medium- to long-term, aiming to raise our corporate
value by investing in strategic business lines and operational efficiency, as well as R&D.

(5) Lowering the Company’s stock trading unit
JT recognizes the importance of maintaining an active interest in the Company among all shareholders, including
individuals, and as such, the Company actively conducts inveator relations to enbance communication with jts sharcholders.
We will continue to evalnate changing our stock wrading nnit based on stock market trends and the composmon of pur
shareholders,

3, RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

(1) Results of Operations
The Japanese economy remained stagnant, although there were signs of some improvcment. Also, the recovery of the global

-economy slowed, due to growing concerns about the future of the U.S, and other economies.

Under these circurstances, the JT Group (JT and its consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies accounted for by the
equity method) steadily implemented measures in accordance with Plan 2004 announced in Aptil 2002,

As aresult, net sales decreased to JPY 4,492.2 billion, down 1.]% from the previous fiscal year, and operating ineore rose
to JPY 188.9 billion, up 15.4%, owing to improved profitability from reduced costs in domestic tobaceo operations, increased
sales volume for international GFBs, and the adoption of g new accounting standard for goodwil] amortization of our averseas
subsidiaries. Recwrring prafit grew to JPY 173.2 billion, up 10.6%, due to decreased interest expenses on borrowings, offset in
part by increases in foreign exchange losses. Nst income rose to JPY 75.3 billion, up 104.3%, due to a decrease in one-time
extraordinary losses, such as special retirement payments for JT employees and special expenditures to enhance business
structures of our international tobacco business, ete., in the previous fiscal year.

The year-end dividend per share is planned to be JPY 6,000, up JPY 2,000 over the previous fiscal year, which reflects our
intention to increase returns to our shareholders. This brings the total dividend for the fiscal year to JPY 16,000, including the
JPY 4,000 interim dividend.

Results by business segment are as follows:
Tobacea

In the domestic market, we worked to strengthen our main brands, and also to develop #nd introduce new products to meet
the diversifying preferences of our customers. We also implemented ageressive and efficient marketing activities tailored to
the unique features of the Japanese market, Regarding our major brand Mild Seven, we laupched "Mild Seven One" in March
2003, Also, in respanse to diversifying preferences for taste, we launched "Icene Super Cooling Menthol” in the prefectures of
Shizuoka, Aichi, Gifu and Mie of the Tokai region in August 2002, The product will go on sale nstionwide in May 2003, Also,
we began selling "Lucia Citrus Fresh Menthol," featuring reduced smell and sidestream smoke, in the Tokyo ares in February
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2003. Moreover, we decided to close sight tobaceo manufacturing factories by the end of fiscal year ending March 2005, Of
these, we have already stopped manufacturing operations in our Sendai, Nagoya and Hashimoto factories to strengthen cost
competitiveness. Domestic cigarette sales volume, however, declined by 8.1 billion cigarettes to 229.0 billion cigarettes, down
3.5% from the previous fiscal year due to declining trend of total volume. Ouwr domestic market share declined by 1.0% to
73.3%. Net sales per thousand cigarettes increased by 6 yen to 10,863 yen. )

In international markets, JT International $.A., the core of our international operations, aggressively pursued suswmined
growth through effective marketing activities. We improved the taste and packaging of "Camel," one of our GFBs, and
intraduced this upgraded product first in Buropean markets and then to other regions. Also, we continued to enhance ouwr
business structure and operations to improve owr profitability. As a result, international cigarette sales volume decreased by
7.2 billion cigarettes to 207.8 billion cigarettes, down 3.4%, but GFBs showed steady growth. GFB sales volums increased by
4.6 billion cigarettes to 112.4 billion cigarettes, up 4.3% from the previous fiscal year,

Consequently, net sales totaled JPY 4,134.4 billion, down 1.0% from the previous fiscal year. Net sales of international
tobacco rose by the. increased sales volume of GFBs. However, the rise in net sales of infernational fobaceo counld not
compensate for the decline in domestic tobaceo due to decreased sales volume. Operating income grew to JPY 213.3 billion,
up 11.0%, owing to improved profitability accompsnied by reduced costs in domestic tobacco operations and increased sales
volume for international GFBs, ag well as adoption of 2 new accounting standard for goodwill amortization of our overseas
subsidiaries.

Cigarette production volume amounted to 407.5 billion cigarettes, down 4.7%.

Pharmaceuticals

In our pharmaceuticals business, we continued to improve its in-house R&D capabilities asd conducted R&D with
independent overseas corporations, Development activities during the fiscal yesar included transition to the clinical
development phase for two drugs, a cure for hepatitis C and hyperlipidemia. At present, we have eight drugs in the clinjcal
devejopmenn pipeline. In October 2002, we terminated development of a drug to cure diabetes, which had completed the
second phase of clinical testing in Japan. The development and marketing rights for thiz drug have been licensed overseas,
except in South Korea, since June 1998. However, it has been decided to terminate clinical development at Pharmacia
Corparation, a licensed contractor in the United States. '

Royalty revenue from our "Viracept” anti-HIV drug declined due to increased competition. We developed the drug with
Agouron Pharmaceuticals, Inc. of the United States and if is sold in the U.S., Europe, Japan and elsewhere. Torii
Pharmaceutical’s sales decreased dus to revision of pharmaceutical price regulation, effective from April 2002, and decreased
sales of Futhan, an injectable protease inhibitor, due to the introduction of generic drugs.

Net sales amounted to JPY 53.9 billion, down 12.8%, due to reduced sales of our arti-HIV drug and a decline in sales &t
Torii Pharmaceutical. The operating loss shrank to JPY 13.8 billion, down 27.0%, due 1o decreased seiling, general and
administrative expenses, resulting principally from a decline in R&D expenditure.

Foods

Our foeds business was aggressively expanded by developing and introducing new products, as well as acquiring new and
strengthening existing sales channels,

In our beverages business, the sales volume of JT-brand products increased only slightly, We enriched the lineup of our
"Roots" canned coffes, and launched "SENOBY," a calcium-enriched health drink with MBP (milk basic pretein). Sales of
these products were favorable. Also, we actively launched products in the sugarless teas market, the largest domestic segment
for soft beverages. Specifically, we started selling "Shibucha," 2 green-tea beverage that uses 100% domestic tea leaves, and
"Ake Oolong," which uses only highly fermented colong tea leaves, Both products do not contain any added fragrances or
flavors, From April 2003, we began selling "Twinings" beverages, one of the world's major brands of black tea. Also, we
steadily expanded vending machine channels through Japan Beverage Inc., our vending-machine operations subsidiary,

We expanded our processed food business by adding new products to the “Dai-ninki!” line of frozen food. To further
expand our bakery operations by utilizing our own R&D know-how, we acquired 100% of the shares of Saint-Germain Co.,
Ltd,, the former bakery and retail subsidiary of Tokyu Department Store Co., Ltd., i May 2002,

Net sales came to JPY 232.4 billion, up 5.1%, due to expansion of our vending machine sales network for beverapes, and
expanded business with processed foods. Despite efforts toward more flexibility and responsiveness to the market
environment, we incurred an operating loss of JPY 13.7 biilion, up 11.0%. This was due partly to increased goodwill
smortization incurred from business acquisftion.

JTFoods Co., Ltd., our processed foods sales subsidiary, and JT Beverage Corporation, our beverages sales subsidiary,
were merged on April 1, 2003 to strengthen sales and raise operational efficiency. JT Foods Co., Ltd. is the surviving
company,

Other buginesses

- We operated other business in a aggressive and efficient manner.
~--Net sales by other businesses decreased 14.0% to JPY 71.4 billion. Operating income fell to JPY 0.9 billion, down 48.1%

from the previous fiscal year.
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Annual results by geographic segments are as follows:

Japan
Net sales in Japan came to JPY 3,754.3 billion, down 2.0% from the previous fiscal year, due mainly to decreased tobacco

sales, although our foods business expanded. Operating income increased to JPY 154.9 billion, up 0.3%, because operating
expenses were lowered by reduced costs and expenses in our tobacco operations.

Western Europe
Net sales in Western Europe totaled JPY 316.9 billion, up 4.6% from the previous fiscal year, because net saleg inereased as

GFB sales volume remained stable and unit prices increased. Operating loss decreased to JPY 21.9 billion, down 50.7%,
reflecting the sales growth and the change in the accounting standard regarding goodwill amortization of our overseas
subsidiaries.

QOthers
Net sales in other regions totaled JPY 380.9 billion, up 3.6% from the previous fiscal year, due to favorsbie tobacco sales in
Russia and Taiwan. Operating income amounted to JP'Y 54.7 billion, up 3.3%.

(2) Changes in accounting methods for mutnal aid pension scheme

The Company decided to change its accounting policy for certain obligations for annuity payments of the government
sponsored defined: benefit pension plans ip order to improve the Company’s financial strength. The Company’s annuity-basis
obligations which- are subject 10 the accounting change relate to pension benefits entitled to beneficiaries for their services
rendered up to July 1, 1956, as prescribed by the Public Official Mintual Assistance Association Law. This accounting change
recagnizes this liability as part of the Company’s liability for retitement benefits considering the actuarially determined
computation methods prescribed by the Revised Accounting Standards for Independent Administrative Institutions. This
standard preseribes’ accotinting for annujty obligations for government sponsored pension plans and became effective from

"~ 7 April 1;2003. Prior to the change, annuity-basis conu'ibution; bhad been recorded as expenses when paid.

The aggregate impact of this accounting change is to fully recognize this {iability and JT will recopnize a one-time
extraordinary loss of approximately JPY 185 billion and 1o decrease net income by approximately JPY 102 billion, net of tax
effects, for the year ending March 31, 2004. This change in accomting will have no effect on the Company’s cash flows for
the year then ending and thereafter.

{3) Outlook for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2004 ,

Globally, the Asian economy is slowly expanding, and the U.3. economy continues to recover, but the pace of recovery is
slowing, In Japan, the economy is expected to move closer toward recovery, but uncertainty still exists under severe
employment conditions.

Projected consolidated financial results for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2004 are as follows:

Net sales: JPY 4,580.0 billion
Recurring profit: IPY 174.0 billion
Net loss: JPY 20.0 billion

Note; The above figures are based on judgments, evaluations, factual understandings, policies, and other factors made in
sccordance with information available to the management. They are also based upon certain assumptions required to
formulate forward-looking statements as well as information already confirmed to be factusl. Actval figures may differ from
those forecast, depending on uncertainties inherent in such forecasts, as well as possible ¢chaoges in the company’s operations
and economic environment, including domestic avd foreign stock markets. Please refer to the Notes Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements below, before using the information provided in our forward-looking staterments.

(4) Financial Condition
Cash and cash equivalents totaled JEY 602.6 billion, up 12.7% from the previous fiscal year. This reflects the fact that the
solid operating revenue more than offset the decrease in funds through repayment of interest-bearing debt.

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash flows provided by operating activities increased to JPY 258.0 billiom, up 187.6% from the previous fisca) year,

Domestic tobacco operations generated stable cash flow.

Cash flows from investing activities
Net cash flows used in investing activities rose to JPY 74.8 billion, up 85.0% from the previous fiscal year This was due

primarily to the purchase of property, plant and equipment, including tobacco manufacturing facilities and buildings for our
Shinagawa development project.
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Cash flows from financing activities
Net cash flows used in financing activities was JPY 111.9 billion, down 10.3% from the previous fiscal year, due to the

repayment of interest-bearing debt.

_ Forward Looking Statements

This material contains forward-leoking staternents ebout our industry, basiness, plans and objectives, financial condition and
results of operations that are based on our current expectations, assumprions, estimates and projections. Thesz statements
discuss future expectations, identify strategies, discuss market trends, contain projections of results of operations or of our
financial condition, or state ather forward-looking information. These forward-looking statements are subject to various
known and unkmown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those
suggested by any forward-looking staternent. We assume no duty or obligation to update any forward-looking statement or to
advise of any change in the assumptions and factors on which they are based.

Risks, uncertainties or other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any

forward-locking statement include, without limitation:

1 health concemns relating to the use of tobacco products; :

2. legal or regulatory developments and changes, including, without limitation, tax increases and restrictions on the sale,

. .. marksting and usage of tobaceo products, and governmental investigations and privarely imposed smoking resrictions;
litigatiop in Japen and elsewbere;

~4,——our-ability to further diversify our business beyond the tobacco industry;.

our ability to successfully expand internationally and make investments-outside of Japan;
competition and changing consumer preferences;

the impact of any acquisitions or similar transactions;

local and global economie conditions; and

fluctuations in foreipn exchange rates and the costs of raw materials.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Jopan Tobaceo Ine. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
- .March 31, 2002 and 2003

Millions of ven
March 31, March 31, Increase/
2002 2003 (deerease)
compoeirion compositiom
ASSETS rarip (Unandited) rafio
JPY % JPY % JPY
CURRENT ASSETS: 1,302,154 42.5 1,346,364 45.5 44,210
Cash and deposits 255,435 317,960 62,525
Trade notes and accounts receivable 131,822 133,324 1,501
Marketable securities 205282 305,587 10,304
Inventories 524,165 492,176 ( 31,988 )
Deferred tax assets 17,959 19,977 2,017
Other currept assets 79,246 79,346 { 499 )
Allowance for doubtful accounts { 2358 ) { 2,008 349
FIXED ASSETS: 1,760,870 57.5 1,611,281 545 ( 149,389 )
Property, plaot and equipment: 743,712 243 733,313 248 ( 10,398 )
Buildings and structures 317,694 311,367 ( 6326 )
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 161,532 . 148,958 ( 123574 )
Tools 56,707 54,082 ( 2.624 )
Land 175,019 177,673 2,654
Construction in progress 32,758 41,230 8,472
Intangible assets: 814,435 26.6 712,126 2417 ( 102,306 )
Goodwill 431,502 381,601 ( 49900 )
Trademarks 331,920 288,514 ( 43,406 )
Other 51,012 42,013 { 8998 )
7 “nvestments apd other assets: 202,722 6.6 165,838 56 ( 36883 )
Investment securities ~ ~ 104,433 . 70,148 (34285 ).
Long-term loans 2,882 5,994 3,112
Deferred tax assets 71,033 64,524 { 6509 )
Other assets 35,209 32,859 ( 235 )
Allowance for doubtful accounts ( 6,725 ) ( 5,895 829
Allowance for loss on investments { 411 ) ( 1,792 2,319
DEFERRED ASSETS 52 0.0 18 0.0 ( 33 )
JPY JPY JPY
TOTALASSETS 3,063,076 1000 2,957,665 1000  ( 105411 )
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Millions of yen
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EQUITY

March 31, Mareh 31, Increase/
2002 2003 (decreose)
LIABILITIES coﬁmn (Unaudited) cmgmm
JPY Y JPY % JPY
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 663,203 21.6 594,742 20.1 ( 68,461 )
Trade potes and accounts payable 106,992 108,042 1,050
Short-term bank loans 32,521 20,522 { 11,998
Current portion of long-term borrowings 79,671 55,410 { 24261 )
Other accounts payable 102,745 67,918 ( 34826 )
National tobaceo excise taxes payable 72,016 79,440 7,423
National tobrcco special excise taxes 14,758 14,830 ”
payable
Local tobaceo excise taxes payable 88,751 85,769 ( 2,982 )
Income taxes payable 22,233 38,583 16,349
Consumption tax payable 30,306 29,386 { 919 )
Deferred tax Habilities 107 41 ( 65 )
Accrued employees’ bopuses 24,200 27,905 3,704
Other allowances 2,884 3,343 459
Other current liabilities 86,014 63,545 { 22,468 )
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES: 737,180 24.1 689,196 23.3 ( 47,983
Bonds 272,500 272,000 ( 500
Long-term borrowings 127,045 76,065 ( 50,979
Deferred tax lisbilities 54,993 48,910 { 6,083
Liabilities for retirement benefits 224,961 230,344 5,383
~ Lishilities for retirement benefits far
directors and corporate auditors 1,286 1,294 8
Other non-current liabilitites 56,393 60,581 4,187
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,400,383 45.7 1,283,938 43.4 ( 116,444 )
MINORITY INTERESTS:
MINORITY INTERESTS 49,588 1.6 51,071 1.7 1,483
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
COMMON STOCK 100,000 3.3 100,000 34 -
CAPITAL SURPLUS 736,400 24.0 736,400 24.9 -
RETAINED EARNINGS 731,834 23.9 789,912 26.7 58,077
R e LA LA 1,404 01 2,632 0.1 1,227
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
ADJUSTMENTS 43,465 14 ( 6,290 ) (02) ( 49,735 )
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 1,613,104 52.7 1,622,654 54.9 9,549
. TOTAL LIABILITIES, MINORITY IPY PY JPY
b
INTERESTS AND SHAREHOLDERS 3,063,076 100.0 2,957,665 100.0 ( 105411 )




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Japan Tobaceo inc, and Consolldated Substdiaries
Years ended March 31, 2002 and 2003

)

Millians of yen
For the year ended Increase/ Comparison to
March 31, March 31, (decreass) previous
2002 2003 Siscal yaar
{Unaudited) %
JPY % JPY % JPY
NET SALES 4544174 1000 4492263 1000  ( 51,910 ) 98.9
COST OF SALES 3,598,795 792 3569393  79.5 ( 29,401 ) 99.2
Gross profit _ ) 945,379 20.8 922,869 20,5  ( 22,509 ) 7.6
SELLING, GENERALAND 781,573 172 733,906 163 ( 47,667 ) 93.9
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Operating income 163,805 3.6 188,963 4.2 25,157 115.4
NON-CPERATING INCOME: 11,235 0.2 9,340 0.2 ( 1,895 ) 83.1
Interest income 3,015 2,038 ( 976 )
Dividend income 1,682 1,702 20
Other 6,538 5,598 ( 939 )
NON -OPERATING EXPENSES: 18,361 0.4 25,072 0.5 6,710 136.5
Interest expense 10,268 8,553 { 1,714 )
Foreign exchange loss - 6,700 6,700
Fgﬁggé%] ;ugggg t;or domestic leaf 897 713 (18 )
Other 7,196 9,104 1,908
Recurring profit 156,679 34 173,231 3.9 16,552 110.6
EXTRAORDINARY PROFIT: 30,092 0.7 18,347 0.4 ( 11,745 ) 61.0
Gain on sale of property, plant and
ot property, p 28,203 15478 ( 12,725 )
Otber 1,888 2,868 980
EXTRAORDINARY LOSS: 88,528 1.9 49,080 11 { 39447 ) 55.4
Loss on sale of property, plant and
equipment 2208 2,690 482
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 9,362 9,835 473
Special retirement payments 31,380 - ( 31,380 )
Business structure enhencement costs 13,419 11,414 ( 2,005 )
Write-down of investment securities 12,887 11,107 1,779 )
Loss on sale of invesiment securities 7 5,290 5,282
Amartization of unrecagnized obligation at
- guized ooligath 6,176 6,042 ( 134)
Compensation for contract cancellation 5,000 - ( 5000 )
Other 8,036 2,699 ( 5386 )
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES
AND MINORITY INTERESTS 98,243 22 142,493 3.2 44254 145.0
INCOME TAXES 54,944 1.2 60,006 1.3 5,062 109.2
INCOME TAX - DEFERRED 1,785 0.1 1,808 0.1 23 101.3
MINORITY INTERESTS 4,663 0.1 5,381 0.1 718 1154
JPY JPY JPY
NET INCOME 36850 03 75301 17 38,451 2043

* Fipancial support for domestic Jeaf tobacco growers who incur losses due to abnormal weather conditions or calamities.
** Amortization of unrecognized net obligations existing at the date of initial application of new accounting standards for
employees’ retirement benefits.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITAL SURPLUS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2002 and 2003

Millions of yen
For the year endzd
Mkl March 31, é;‘:;“;ee/ )
— 2002 2003
. (Uneudited)

) CAPITAL SURPLUS: - B JPY JPY JPY
Capital surplus, beginning of year 736,400 736,400 -
Capital surplus, end of year 736,400 736,400 -

RETAINED EARNINGS :
Retained earnings, beginning of year 714,393 731,834 17,441
Increase: 37,707 75,521 37,814
et income for the year 36,850 75,301 . 38,451
Adjustments to retained earnings for ¢hange in .
consolidation scope 856 219 ( 637 )
Pecrease: 20,265 17,443 ( 2,821 )
Cach dividends paid 17,000 16,000 ( 1,000 )
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 366 272 ( 94 )
(Bonuses to corporate auditors) ( 37 31 ) )
Adjustments to retained eamings for chenge in
cgnsolidation scope & = 277 ) ( 277 )
Minimum pension Jjability adjustment” 2,621 L1711 ( 1,449 )
. . JPY JPY JPY
Retained earnings, end of year 731,834 789,912 58,077

* Adjusiment to appropriete minimum pension fability by consolidated overseas subsidienies applyng accounting principles
generally accepted in the Unites States of America (“u.s. GAAPT).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Japan Tobacco Ine. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2002 and 2003

Millicns of yer
For the year ended Increase/
e Mareh 31,2002 March 31,2003 (decrease)
. e T o (Unaydited) -
OPERATING ACTIVITIES: B
Income before income taxes and minority interests JPY 98,243 IPY 142,498 JpY 44,254
Depreciation and amortization . 148,095 136,534 ( 1,561 )
Gain on sale end disposal of property, plant znd
squipment ( 12,761 ) { 2,967 ) 14,794
Amortizntion of goodwill 22,217 11,799 { 10,418 )
Increase (decrease) in Jiabilines for retirement benefits ( 9815 ) 1,389 11,204
Interest income and dividend income ( 4,697 ) ( 3,740 ) 9356
Interest expense 10,268 8,553 { 1,714 )
Increase in trade notes and accounts receivable { 15640 ) { 3,809 ) 11,831
Decrease in inventories 12,740 25,572 12,831
Increase {decrease) in trade notes and accounts payable ( 9078 ) 3,197 12,275
Increase (decrease) in other accounts payable 18,736 { 31,801 ) ( 50,538 )
Increase (decrease) in tobacco excise taxes (152,310 ) 3,751 156,061
payeble
Write-down of investment securities 12,887 11,107 ( 1,779 )
Other, net 43,501 4,510 ( 38%9% )
Sub-totai of net cash provided by operating activities 157,387 306,595 149,208
Interest and dividend received 4,765 3,730 { 1,034 )
Interest paid { 10,549 ) ( 8,753 ) 1,796
Income taxes paid ( 61,876 ) ( 43,516 ) 18,359
Net cash provided by operating activities ' 89,726 258,056 168,329
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of marketable securities ( 10,446 ) { 18,000 ) { 7643 )
Pﬂ;z:fisﬁ cf;mm sale and redemption of marketable 19,294 13,521 ¢ 5772 )
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ( 91,550 ). ( 104310.) ( 12,759 )
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 35,148 23,479 ( 11,668 )
Purchases of intangible assets { 6,161 ) { 4381 ) 1,280
Purchases of investment securitics { 6,863 ) ( 1,622 ) 5,240
Prc:ec:s:iiii:;mm sale and redemption of investrment 9157 21,72 12,564
Purehase of shares of 2 newly consalidsred subsidiary, nct of
czsh soquired s - ( 3,593 ) ( 3,593 )
Other, net 10,548 { 1,101 ) { 12,050 )
Net cash used in investing activities { 40472 ) ( 74,876 ) ( 34404 )
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:;
Net deeresse in shor-term bank loans ( 11,768 ) { 14,673 ) ( 2,905 }
... .Proceeds from issuance of lonp-term borrowings 3,293 4,980 1,687
Repayment of long-term borrowings ' ( 94511 ) ( 83,493 ) 11,018
Repayment of bond ( 200 ) - 200
Dividends paid { 17,000 ) ( 16,000 ) 1,000
Dividends paid to minority shareholders { 2,598 ) { 1961 ) 637
Other, net L ( 2,051 ) ( 820 ) 1,231
Net cash used in Snancing activities ( 124,837 ) (111,967 ) 12,869
EFFECT OF BRCBANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,136 { 3,310 } { 7446 )
NET INCREASE {DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS ( 7,447 ) 67,901 139,349
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
BEGINNING OF YEAR , 603,561 534,503 { 69,057 )
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OF NEW
CONSOLIDATED SUBRSIDIARIES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2389 238 { 2,150 )
JrY JeY JryY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR
- CASHAND CASHEQ 534,503 602,644 68,140




BASIS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUTING POLICIES

" 1. SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

The number of cansolidated subsidiaries is 156.

The main consolidated subsidiaries are JT International S.A., Tokyo Tobacco Services Co., Ltd., Torii Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd., Japan Beverage Inc., and JT Real Estate Inc.

Tokyo Tobacco Shoji Co., Ltd., Saint-Gretmain Co., Ltd,, and JT Capital (U.K.) PLC and two other subsidiaries have
been copsolidated from this fiscal year, Saint-Germain Co., Ltd. has been consolidated for the ten-month peried from
the date of stock acquisition to the fiscal year end. The Manchester Tobacco Co. Ltd., JT International Burope Ltd., and
apother, which were former consolidated subsidiaries, have been liquidated. Also, Nishinihon Canpack Co, Ltd. (former
JT Canning Corporation) has been excluded from consolidation because of the partial sale of its shares,

Certain small subsidiaries have been excluded from the scops of consolidation since the sggregate smounts of their total
assets, net sales, equity in net income, and equity in retained eamings are not considered material to the consolidated
financial statements, as 4 whole,

2. APPLICATION OF THE EQUITY METBOD

{1) Associated companies accounted for by the equity method.

Four companiss, including JT CMX Corporation and NTT Data Wave Corporation.

(2) Certain unconsolidated subsidiaries (JB Tech Co., Ltd. and JB Mart Inc., etc.) and associated companies (GB One
Printing Co., Ltd and JT Kokubu, etc.) are not accounted for by the equity method since the apsounts of et income or
Joss and retained earnings of these companies are not considered material individually and in the aggregate io the
consolidated financisl statements.

(3) Among compsnies accounted for by the equity method, those with fiscal pericds different from the Company, the fiseal
results of such companies are used in consolidation.

3. FISCAL YEAR OF CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

The fiscal years of consolidated overseas subsidiaries generally end December 31.

The ascounts of these subsidiaries have been included on the basis of their fiscal years snd necessary adjustments have
been made to reconcile significant transactions that occurred during the intervening period between their fiseal year
ends and the Company's fiscal year end. :

The fiscal years of the Company and consolidated domestic subsidiaries end March 31,

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Valuation of signifieant assets
1) Securities
Marketable securities and marketable investment securities are stated at market value as of the fiscal year end. (Net
unrealized holding gains or losses are included in a component of shareholders' equity, and cost of securities sold is
determined based on the moving-average cost.)
Non-marketable securities are stated at the moving-average cost.

b) Derivatives
Derivatives are accounted for by the fair value method. See Iem 4.(6).

¢) Inventories
Inventories are stated principally at the average cost, except for leaf tobacco held by the Cormpany, which is subject to

... devaluation.

- {2) Depreciation and smortization

_ &) Property, plant and equipment

... Propenty, plant and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation is generally computed using the declining-balance
method axcept for assets of certain domestic cousolidated subsidiaries, which have been computed wing the
straight-line method. Depreciation of buildings, which were scquired on or after April I, 1998, except annexed
structures, is computed using the straight-line method. ’
Useful lives applisd for depreciativn of major property, plant and equipment are principally as follows:
Buildings and structures 38-50 years
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 8§ years
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b) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are amortized principally using the straight-line method.
Useful lives applied for amortization of major intangible assets are principally as follows:
Trademarks 10 years

(3) Allowances and other lisbilities
a) Allowance for doubtful sccounts
An sllowance for doubtful accounts is established to provide for possible future Josses. The allowance for other tha
doubtful receivables are estimsated based on the Company’s past credit loss experience.

b) Allowance for loss on investments
An allowance for loss on investments is recorded to provide for the loss on jovestments in certain non-marketable eguity
securities and is determined based on the respective financia) condition of the investees.

¢} Acerued employees’ bonuses
Bomus payments to employees (including corporate officers who are not board membcrs) is accrued based on the
amounts expected to be paid.

" 'd) Liabilities for retirement bepefits
Lisbilities for retirement benefits for employees (including corporate officers who are not board members) were stated
based on an estimated retirement benefits obligation and fair value of plan assets at the fiscal year end.
Unrecognized net obligations existing at the date of initial application of the new accounting stendards for employees’
retirement benefits, amounting to JPY 19,920 million, ere principally being amortized on a straight-line basis over 3
years.
Unrecognized prior service cost has been amortized using the straight-line method over employees® average ramaining
service period or shorter period (generally 10 years).
Unrecognized net sctuarial loss has been amortized using the straight-line method over employees’ average remaining
service period or shorter period (generally 10 years) from the year following the fiscal year in which the actuarial
difference oceurs,

e) Liabilities for retirement benefits for directors and corporate auditors
The liabilities for retirement benefits for directors and corporate auditors are provided for the amount that would be
required to.be paid if all directors and corporate auditors retired at the fiscal year end.

(4) Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency denominated receivables and payables are wanslated into Japanese yen at the current exchange rate
prevailing at the fiscal year end, Exchange gains and losses are charged to income.
Assets and labilities of consolidated overseas subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the current exchange rate
prevailing at the fiscal year end of individual subsidiaries, whereas profits and losses are translated using the average
exchange rate of the fiscal year The difference is included it shersholders' equity as "FOREIGN CURRENCY
TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS".
(Change in sccounting policy)
Effective from this fiscal year, the Group changed its accounting policy for wanslation of profits and losses of
consolidated overseas subsidiaries. Prior to April 1, 2002, profits and losses of consolidated overseas subsidisries are
translated into Japanese yen st the current exchange rate prevailing at each subsidiary’s fiscel year end. Effective April 1,
2002, the average exchange rate has been used. As the significance of overseas subsidiaries increased, the Group
- ---ghanged the accounting policy to more appmpnately translate profits and losses that accumulate over the fiscal year, As
T~ aresult-of this accounting change, recwring profit and income-before income taxes and mmonty interests for this fiscal
year increased by JPY 1,234 million and JPY 968 million, respecﬁvely, as compared to the previous method. The effects
of this accounting change on segment information are disclosed in SBEGMENT INFORMATION section. ' :

(5) Lense transactions
Finance lenses, except for leases that are deemed to transfer ownership of the leased property, are accounwd for as
operating leases.

(6) Hedge accoumting
a) A gain or loss on derivative tustruments designated as 2 hedge, is deferred until hedged items are settled. Xf foreign
exchange forward contracts, foreign currency swaps and foreige currency options meet certain hedge accounting
criteria, they are not required to be separately sccounted for. In such instances, foreign currency denomiusted assets
and linbilifies that are considered as hedged items are translated at the foreign exchange rate stipulated in the contract,




Interest rate swaps which quslify for hedge accounting and mest specific matching criteria are not re-measured at
market value, but the differential to be paid or received under the swap agreements are accrued end mcluded in
interest expenss or income on hedged items.

b) Hedging instruments and hedged items

Hedging instruments Hedeed items

Fareign exchange forward contracts Forecasted foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency options Forecasted foreign currency transactions
_.Foreign curréncy swaps Foreign eurtency denominated bonds

Interest rate swaps™ -~ - - . Rorrowings
¢) Hedging policy N

Derivative transactions are entered into in accordance with the Risk Management Policy and Practice Manual for
financial instruments. The abjective is to bedge the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows associated
with foreign-currency-denominated transactions, certain future interest received on variable-rate debt securities and
certain future intérest payments on varishle-rate borrowiags.

d) Asseszment of hedge effectiveness
In general, effectiveness is assessed by comparing the accumulated amount of changes in fair valves of hedging
{nstruments with that of hedged items. As to certain foreign exchange forward contracts and interest swaps that
meet specific criteria, the assessment of effectiveness i omitted since it is not required.

(7) Accounting policies for consolidated overseas subsidiaries
JT International S.A. end other conzolidated overseas subsidiaries principally maintain their accounting records in
conformity with U.S. GAAP. The accounting policies, which are diﬂ'erent from the Company’s policies, are principally
as follows:
a) Inventories
Inventories are generally stated at the Jower of cost or market, cost being determined by the firsi-in, first-out method

or the average cost.

b) Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment is geperally computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated vseful lives of the respective assets,
Trademarks are penerally amortized using the straight-line methed over 40 years, Amortization of other intengibles
‘assets is generally computed using the straighi-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

¢) Accounting for retirement bepefits
If the lizbility for retirement benefits already recognized is less than the unfunded accumulated benefit abligation, am
additional minimum lisbility is recognized. The amount addmona]]y recognized, to the extent that exceeds
. unrecognized pncnr service cost, net of any tax benefits, (minimum pension lisbility adjustments), is dxrecﬂy charged
to retained earnings,

d) Accounting for derivatives
‘Currency related derivatives are entered into for hedging purposes. All derivatives are recognized on the balance
sheets as assets or liabilities and measured at fair value. The change in fair value is recognized in earnings when
incurred.

(8) Other sigpificant accounting policies
a) Consumption Tax
National consumption tax and local consumption tax are accounted for separately from the related transactions.

b} Treasury Stock and Reversal of Legal Reserve
Effective from this fiscal year, the Group adopted the Finencial Accounting Standard No.1, “Accounting Siwandard for
Treaswy Stock and Reversal of Legal Reserve™, This new standard had no effect on profit and loss of the Group for
this fiscal year.

¢) Per Share Informsation

Effective from this fiscal year, the Group adopted tbe Financial Accounting Standard No.2, “Accounting Standard for
Bamings per Shave” and the Fipancial Accounting Standard Implementetion Guidance Nod, “Implementation
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Guidence oo Financial Accounting Standard for Eamnings per Share”, The effects of these new standards and
implementation guidance on shareholders’ equity per share and et income per share of the Group for this fiscal year
were minar.

-~ ——____d)Accowiting Standsrd for Goodwill Recognized by Consolidated Overseas Subsidiaries

Goodwill recognized by constlidated overseas subsidiaries had been amortized using the straight-line method over 40
years. Under a new accounting standard (the Statement of Financial Accounting Stzndard No.142 “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets”), effective from the overseas subsidiaries’ fiscal year beginning on January 1, 2002, the
amortizatiop of the goodwill ceased and the goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually. As a result of this
change, recurring profit and income before income taxes and minority interests for this fiscal year increased by JPY
10,454 million, a5 compared to the previous method.

5. VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF NEWLY CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Assets and liabilities of newly consolidated subsidiaries are measured at fair value upon acquisition.

6. AMORTIZATION OF GOODWILL .
Goodwill is amortized on a stralght-line basis over five years, Immaterial amounts of poodwill are charged to income
when incurred. Goodwill recognized by consolidated overseas subsidiaries is no longer amortized but instead tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if impairment indicators arise.

7. APPROPRIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
The consolidated statements of retained earnings are prepared based en the appropriation of retained earnings which
were approved during the fiscal year by the shareholders’ meetings.

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PRESENTED IN CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Cash and cash equivalents presented in the consolidated statements of cash flows are cash on hand, depesits which are

withdrawable at apytime without notice, and highly liquid short term investments that ere convertible to known amounts
of cash with insignificant risk of changes in value and that have original maturities of three months or less,

NOTES
Notes to consolidated balance shests as of Mareh 31, 2002 and 2003
Millions of yen
Mareh 31, 2002 March 31, 2003
1. Accumulated depreciation of propery,
plant and equipment 1,003,347 1,007,343
2. The total amount of the Company’s
guarantees to loans 5,179 4,529




Notes.to consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2003

1. Major components of “SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES”

Millions of yen
For the years ended
March 31, 2002 Mareh 31, 2003
Advertising and geperal publicity 40,201 35,717
Sales promotion 155,295 142,032
Compensation, sglaries and allowances 140,688 127,425
Provision for retirement benefits 15,022 - 17,645
Legal welfare 32,340 . 31,568
Employee bonuses 22,787 22,393
Accrual of employee bonuses 11,942 10,738
Depreciation 59,506 56,781
Research and development 52,684 44,509

7. Business stracture enhancement costs incurred for the reinforcement of the strueture of domestic and/or overseas
businesses and consisted mainly of additiona! retirement benefits and estimated losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended March 31, 2002

For the year ended March 31, 2003

1. RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ON THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH
FLOWS '

1. RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ON THE BALANCE SHEET TQ THE STATEMENTS OF CASH
FLOWS

Millions of ven Millions of yen
Mareh 31, March 31,
2002 2003

Cash and deposits : 255,435 Cash and deposits 317,960
Time deposits with original maturity dve Time deposits with original maturity due
aver three months (1,367) over three months (1,048)
Securities with original maturity due Securities with originel maturity due
within three months which ere readily within three months which are readily
convertible to known amount of cash convertible to known amount of cash
with insienificant risk of changes in value 280,435 with insipnificant rigk of changes in value 285,732
Cash and cash eguivalents 534,503 Cash and cash eguivalents 602,644




LEASE TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended March 31, 2002 For the year ended March 31, 2003
Finance leases except for leases that deem to transfer | Finance leases except for leases that deem to transfer
ownership of the leased property ownership of the leased property

(Lessee)
1. ACQUISITION COST, ACCUMULATED DEFRECIATION
AND NET LEASED PROPERTY

Millions of yen

(Lessee)
1. ACQUISITION COST, ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND NET LEASED PROPERTY

Millions of yen

Acquation | Accumulsted | Nat leased Acquisition | Accomulsted | Net leased
, cost | depreciation | property com_ | depreciation | property
Machinery, squipment and Vehicles 5,677 2,375 1 3301 Machinery, equipment and Velseles 6,136 2,919 3216
Tools 20,827 ¢ 10,6751 10,151 Tools 20,111 | 10393) 9.717
Total 26,504 1 13,051 | 13,452 Total 26247 | 13312 12,934 |
The above acquistion cost includes the related interest | The above acquisition cost includes the related interest
expenses, expenses,
2. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES 2. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES
Due within one year ¥ 4,973 million Due within one year ¥ 4,952 willion
Due after one year ¥ 8 479 million Due after one year ¥ 7,982 million
Tota) ¥13,452 million Total ¥12,934 million ‘
The ebove obligations under finance leases include related | The above obligations under finance leasés intiude related
interest expenges. interest expenses.
3. LEASE PAYMENTS AND DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 3. LEASE PAYMENTS AND DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
Lease payments ¥ 5,483 million Lease payments ¥ 5,580 million
Depreciation expense ¥ 5,483 million Depreciation expense ¥ 5,580 million

4. CALCULATION METHOD OF DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
Acquisition costs (No residual valve is considered) are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the life of the
lease.
{Lessor)
1. ACQUISITION COST, ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND NET LEASED PROPERTY

Millions of yen

4. CALCULATION METHOD OF DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
Acquisition costs (No residual value is considered) are
depreciated using the straight-lice method aver the life of the

lease.

(Lessor)
1. ACQUISITION COST, ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND NET LEASED PROPERTY

Millions of yen

Acquisition | Accumulued | NetJeased Acquisition | Accumulated | Net leased
cost | depreciation | goptrly tost deprecierion | propeny
Machiery, equipment and Vehicles 1,042 740 301 Machinery, equipment and Vehicles 1,603 1,198 405
Tools 3,941 2,699 1,241 Tools 1,765 1,194 570
Total 4083 | 3440 | 1,545 Total 73,369 | 2,393 975
2. CLAIMS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 2. CLAIMS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
Due within one year ¥ 956 million Due within one year ¥533 million
Due after one year ¥ 821 million | Due after one year ¥ 631 million
Total ¥ 1,777 million Total ¥ 1,165 million
The above claims wnder finance leases include related interest | The above claims under finance leases include related interest
Tevenue. revenue.
3. LEASE REVENUE AND DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 3. LEASE REVENUE AND DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
Lease revenue ¥ 1,175 million Lease revenue ¥ 1,001 million
Depreciation expense ¥ 1,043 million Depreciation expense ¥ 203 million




FAIR VALUE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES

1. MARKETABLE SECURITIES AND MARKETBLE INVESTMENT SECURITIES

(AS OF MARCH 31, 2002)
Millions of yen
Carrying anount on
Type Acquisition cost the consolidated Difference
balance sheet
Equity securities 20,555 31,680 11,125
Bonds 12,8 13,23 4
ing amount on on 02 ,239 36
the consolidated Bank debentures 10,500 10,704 204
balance shest Samurai bonds 1,000 1,000 0
e"ce?d_-:‘i the ) Others 1,302 1,534 231
c
FequIsTRon £9 Others 470 480 10
Sub-total 33,228 45,400 11,572
Equity securities 26,670 22,656 (4,014)
. Bonds 23,749 23.482 267
Carrying amount on on 3 (267)
the consolidated Bank debenrutes 5,097 5,994 (2)
balance shest is less Samurai bonds 12,000 11,749 (250)
2‘5‘: the acquisition e 5,752 5,737 G4)
Others 23,860 18,958 (4,901)
Sub-total 74,280 65,097 (9,182)
Total 108,108 110,497 2,380
{AS OF MARCH 31, 2003)
Millions of yen
Carrying amount on
Bpe Acquisition cost the consolidated Difference
balance sheet
Equity securities 17,974 25,307 7,333
Camvi . Bonds 11,794 12,167 373
amount on
e copeolidated Bark debentures 10,500 10,670 170
balance shest Samurai bonds - - -
e"w‘?d,iif:: . Others 1,294 1,496 202
acquisi oSt
Pequisition €0 Others 2,979 2,991 1
Sub-total 32,748 40,466 7,718
Equity securities 18,166 16,361 (1,804)
6,919 6,916 2
Carrying amount on Bonds s *
the consolidated Bank debentures 5,998 5,995 (2)
balance sheet is less Semurai bonds - - -
et o 20QUSIHOR  Otpers 921 921 -
Others 3,734 2,574 (1,160)
Sub-iotal 28,819 25,852 (2,967)
Total 61,568 66.318 4,750
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2, MARKETABLE SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES SOLD DURING THE FISCAL YEAR

Millions of yen
For the year ended March 31, 2002 For the year ended March 31, 2003
Proceeds from  Total Profiton Total Losson  Proceeds from  Tbtal Profiton Total Loss on
Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales
5,891 337 85 11,970 769 5,290
3, CARRYING AMOUNT OF NON-MARKETABLE SECURITIES
Millions of yen
As of March 31, As of March 31, Comments
2002 2003
Unlisted secunities (excludes OTC stocks) 3,340 4,112
Certificate of Deposit 227,990 255,000
Others 51,346 43,986
4. SCHEDULED REDEMPTION AMOUNTS OF SECURITIES BY MATURITY
(AS OF MARCH 31, 2002)
Millions of ven
, After ong year but  Afier five years
Within one year thj;tough ﬁ")v) e years z)}?ra ujzr; rz rzc;eal;?r Exceed ten years
Bonds 29,672 11215 5,430 641
Bank debentares 6,000 10,000 - 500
Samurai bonds 3,000 - 5,000 -
Others 20,672 1,215 430 141
Others 234,588 8,849 4,266 -
Total 264,260 20,064 9.697 641
(AS OF MARCH 31, 2003)
Millions of yen
Within one year zzjz:; ;;z:‘;;g:: 'f‘;i:z{; ;e r}; a;::;r Exceed ten years
Bonds 23,992 11,724 250 102
Bank debentures 18,001 10,500 - -
Samuraj bonds - - - -
Others 5,991 1,224 250 102
Others 256,102 3,914 1,653 -
Total 280,094 15,639 1,903 102
" Notes:
. Write down of investment securities: for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2002 and 2003 totaled ¥16,982 million and -
. _¥11,742 million,’ Tespectively.

In eveluating security values, & security of which value has declmed by more than 50% is considered to have experienced
“sipnificant deterioration”. A security of which value has declined from 30% to 50% and the impact on JT’s financial
position is material, is considered to have experienced “significant deterioration”.

If a security has a strong chance of regaining its value, a security is not devaluated,
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DERIVATIVES

(AS OF MARCH 31, 2002)
INTEREST RATE
Millions of yen
Contract/Notional
Type Principal amount Fair value Gain (loss)
After one
year
Over-the-counter:
Interest rate swap comniracts
Fixed rate psyable and
Flogting rete receivable 7443 4,567 29) 29)
Total 7,443 4,567 (29) (29)
NOTES:
1. Fair value was obtained from financial institutions.
2. Derivatives, which are accounted for as hedges, are not included in the above table.
CURRENCY
Millions of yen
Contract/Notional
Type Principal amount Fair value Gain (loss)
After one
year
Over-the-counter
Poreign currency forward contracts
Buying 11,718 - 11,697 21
Selling 15,039 - 14,620 419
Currenicy option contracts
Purchase options 9,924 - 233 233
Total - - - 631
1. Fair value was estimated based on the forward exchange rate.
2. Derivatives, which are accounted for as hedges, ere not included in the above table.
(AS OF MARCH 31, 2003)
INTEREST RATE
Millions of yen
Contract/Notional
Type Frincipal smovnt Fair valve Gain (loss)
After one
: year
Over-the-counter:
Interest rate swap confracts
Fixed rate payable and
flosting rate receivable N N - N
Total - - . .




CURRENCY

Miilions of yen
Contract/Notional
Type Principel amowot Fair value Gain (loss)
After one
yaar
Qver-the-counter
| Foreign currency-forwerd confracts
e |oBwyime | 6,613 - 6,942 329
Selling w178 - 26783y (605) -
Currency option contracts .
Purchase options 22,989 - (189) (189)
Total . . - (465)
NOTES:

1. Fair value was estimaied based on the forward exchange rate.
7. Derivatives, which are accounted for as hedges, are not included in the above table.




RETIREMENT BENEFITS
1. OVERVIEW OF RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Company end the consolidated domestic subsidiaries have severance indemnities plans, non-contributory defined
benefit pension plans and National Welfare Pension Plan, a conmibutory defined bemefits plan. Consolidated overseas
... subsidiaries also have defined benefit pension plans and post-retirement medical health care plans.

Additional employees® retirement benefits which are not required to be accounted for using actuarial computations would be
paid in certain circumstances.

2. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Millions of yen
ASOF MARCH AS OFMARCH
31, 2002 31, 2003

a  Projected benefit obligations (448,347) (450,862)

b  Plan assets 150,209 141,891

~¢- - Unfunded benefit obligations (a+h) . (298,138) (308971)

d Umrecognized net obligation existing at the date of inftial ’ 6,042 ’ -

application

¢ Unrecognized net actuarial loss 51,382 66,976

f Unrecopnized prior service cost 19,157 17478

g Recorded amount on consolidated balance sheet (c+d+e+f) (221,556) (224,516)

h  Additional minimum pension liability (Note 3) (3,214) (5,220}

1 Prepaid pension cost 189 607

j__Liabilities for retirement bemefit (g+h-i) {(224,961) (230,344)
NOTE:

1.The ghove table ineludes a portion of National Welfare Pension Plan sponsored by certain consolidated
subsidiaries as an additional portion of their non-contributory pension plans,

2.Certain consolidated subsidiaries epply the simplified method for the calculation of the retirement benefit
obligation.

3.An additional minimum pension liability was recorded in accordance with U.S, GAAP by certain consolidated
overseas subgidiaries.

4.A certain subsidiary participates in 2 multemployer pension plan, which was not included in the above table.
The plan asset allocated in proportion to its contribution &s of March 31, 2002 and 2003 was ¥3,857 million and
¥ 3,715 million, respectively.

3. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COST

Millions of yen
FOR THE YEAR FORTHE YEAR
ENDED MARCH ENDED MARCH
31, 2002 31, 2003
a Service cost (Note 2) 17,803 18,673
b Interest cost 15,654 13,034
¢ Expected return on plan essets (6,680) (4,813)
d Amortization of wnrecognized net obligation existing at the 6,176 6,042
date of injtial application
¢ . Recognized net actuarial loss (Note 3) 2,170 5,005
— f.. .Aznortization of prior service cost (Note 3) 4,209 2,100
g Retirement benefit cost (a+b+e+d+e+f ] 39.334 - 40,043
NOTE: .

1. Employees’ contribution to Nationa] Welfare Pension Plap is excluded.

2. The retixement benefit cost of consolidated subsidiaries that adopt the simplified method is included @ “Service
cast.”

3. Amounts of additional retirement benefits, which were reported in extraordinary loss, for the years ended March
31, 2002 and 2003 were ¥ 31,380 million and ¥ 5,580 million, respec'avely Fot the year ended March 31, 2002, the
above smonnt jncludes the emounts of net actnarial loss and prior service cost recogmized on the eaxly retirement of
certain employees.
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4, ASSUMPTIONS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002)

Attribution of retirement benefits
Discount rate

Expected rate of retwm on plan assets |
Amortization period for umrecogmized
prior service cost

Ao o

e Amortization period for uorecogmized
© T o o actuarial gainfloss

f Amortization period for unrecognized

Assifn the same amoust of pension benefits to each year of service
Mainly 2.5%

Mainly 4.0%

Mainly 10 years. (The vmrecognized prior service cost is amortized
using the straight-line method over periods within employees’
average remaining service periods.)

Mainly 10 years. (The unrecognized gain/loss is amortized by usmg
a straight-line method over employees’ average remaining service

-periods beginning from the next consalidated fiscal year.}

Mainly three years. Cerfmin subsidiaries fully recognized net

net obligation existing at the date of obligation at the date of initial application.

initial application

ASSUMPTIONS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003)

Attribution of retirernent benefits
Discount rate

Expected rate of return on plan assets
Amortization period for unrecognized
prior service cost

a0 oW

e Amortization period for unrecognized
actuarial gain/loss

f Amortization period for unrecognized
net obligation existing st the date of
initial application

Assign the same amount of pension benefits to each year of service
Mainly 2.5%

Mainly 2.0%

Mainly 10 years. (The unrecognizad prior service cost is amortized
using the straight-ine method over periods within employees’
gverage remaining service periods.)

Mainly 10 vears, (The unrecognized gain/loss is amortized by using
8 straight-line method over employees’ average remeining service
periods beginning from the next consolidated fiscal year)

Mainly three years. Certain subsidiaries fully recognized net
obligation et the date of initial application.
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INCOME TAXES

For the year ended March 31, 2002

For the year ended Match 31, 2003

1. Significant components of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities

1, Sigpificant components of the deferred tax assets and
Habilities

Deferred tax assets Millions of yen Deferred tax assets Millions of yen
March 31, March 31,
2002 | 2003

Pension and saverance costs 72,651 Pension and severance costs 74,375
Net operating loss carryforwards 19,194 Net operating loss carryforwards 21,125
Qther 58,194 Other 52,899

Defetred tax assets : sub-total 150,039 Deferred tax assets : sub-total 148,399
Valuation allowance (22,594) Valuation allowance {22,159)

Deferred tax assets * total 127,445 Deferred tax assets : total 126,239

Deferred tax liabilities Deferred tax lisbilities

Deferred gain on sale of property for tax (31,353) Deferred gein on sale of property for tax (35,529)
purposes purposes

Basis differences in agsets acquired (46,071) Basis differences in assets acquired (40.263)

upon acquisition
Cther (16,128)

upon acquisition
Other (14,897)

Deferred tax lizbilities : total (93,553)

Deferred tax liahilities : total (20,690)

Deferred tax assets —nat 33,802

Deferred tax assets — net 33,549

Note:
Deferred tax assets - net is included in the following items
on the consolidated balance shest

Millions ¢f yen
Current assets - Deférred tax assets 17,959
Fixed assets - Deferred tax assets 71,033
Current habilities - Deferred tax liabilities 107

Non-cwrrent  linbilities - Deferred tax

liabilities 34,993

2. A reconciliation of the normal effective stanrtory tax
rate to the effective rate

Normal effective statutory tax maie 41.75%
Nondednetible amortization of geodwill and 9.75%
trademarks )
Tex benefits not recognized on operating

L 4.54%
losses of subsidiaries
Other —net 1.70%
Actual effective tax rate 57.74%

Note:
Deferred tax assets - net is ineluded in the following items
on the consolidated balance sheet

Millions of yen
Cusrent assets - Deferred tax assets 19,977
Fixed essets - Deferred tax assets 64,524
Current lisbilities - Deferred tax lisbilities 41
Non-current lisbilities - Deferred 1tax 48.910
liabilities ?

2. The Law to Amend a Part of Local Tax Laws (the “Law™)
was promulgated on March 31, 2003, which reduced
enterprise 1ax rates along with the introduction of nop-income
based taxes, The Law is to be applied to the fiscal years
beginning on or after April 1, 2004. In cormnection with this,
deferred tax agsets and liabilities which will be realized or
settled after April 1, 2004 were adjusted for the effect of a
thange in tax rates.  As a result of the adjustments, deferred
tax assets and liabilities were decreased by JPY 3,280 million
and JPY 1,465 million, respectively, as of March 31, 2003.




SEGMENT INFORMATION
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1. OPERATIONS BY INDUSTRY
{For the year epded March 31, 2002) Millions of yen
Pharmaceu- Eliminadon )
Tobacco ficals Poods Others Total / Comporate Consolidaied

1. Sales and operating income

(loss)
Sales .
(1) Sales to customers 4,178,034 61,267 221,197 83,076 | 4,544,174 - 4,544,174
(2) Intersegment sales 6,478 49 1,086 44,671 52,286 (52,236) -
Total ’ 4,184,512 61,916 222283 | 127,747 4,596,460 (52,286) 4,544,174
Operating expenses ) 3,992,398 80,902 234,144 | 125950 4,433,394 (53,025) 4,380,369
Operating income (loss) 192,114 {18,985) | (11,860) 1,797 163,066 739 163,805
2. Asgets, depreciation and
amortization, and capital
expenditure
Assets 2,309,599 125,209 133,243 | 190,129 2,758,181 304,894 3,063,076
Depreciation and smortization 117,566 5,822 8,241 17,411 149,041 (946) 148,095
Capital expenditure 70,086 2275 6,935 18.186 97,483 (956) 96,526
(For the year ended March 31, 2003) * Millions of yen

Pbarmacen- Elimination .
Tobacco ticals Foods Others Total / Corporate Censolidated

1. Sales and operating income

{loss) .
Sales
(1) Sales to customers 4,134,466 53,926 232,403 71,466 | 4,492,263 - 4,492,263
(2) Intersegment sales 6,574 - 857 36,920 44,352 (44,352) -
Total 4,141,041 53,926 233,261 | 108,386 ) 4,536,616 (44,352) 4,492,263
Opcrating expenses 3,927,695 67,782 246,429 107,454 4,349,364 (46,064) 4,303,300
Operating income (Joss) 213,341 (13,855) |  (13,168) 932 187,251 1,712 188,963
2. Assets, depreciation and
amortization, and capital
expenditure
Assets 2,153,080 114,725 135,317 | 236,524 | 2,639,648 318,016 2,957,665
Depreciation and emortization 108,503 4,102 6,168 18,704 137,478 (944) 134,534
Capital expenditure 60,575 1,161 7,274 38,802 108,213 965 109,179
NOTE:

1. Operations by industry are categorized based on types of products and characteristics.
2. Main products or services under each category are as follows:

1) Tobaceo Tobacco products

2) Pharraceuticals Prescription drugs

3) Foods Beverages and processed foods

4) Others Rent of real estate, leasing, engineering and others

3. Unallocated assets included under Elimination/Corporate consist mainly of surplus funds of the Company such as cash,
‘bank and time deposits as well as marketable securities, Jong-term investments (a portion of investment securities), assets
used for fundamental research and unused Jand. The amounts of these assets as of March 31, 2002 and 2003 are ¥ 333,084

. million and ¥ 373,363 million, Tespectively. :

4, As described in “ACCOUNTING POLICIES (4)Foreign cwrrency transactions®, effective from this fiscal year, the Group
translates profits and logses of consolidated overseas subsidiaries using the average exchange rate of the fiscal year of
individual subsidiaries. As a result of this change, Tobacco segment’s Sales to customers and Operating mcome for this

.. fiscal vear increased by ¥29,160 million and ¥1.372 million, respectively, as compared to the previous method. The
effects of this accounting chenge on Pharmaceiricals, Foods, and Others segments were minor.

e —————



5. Amortization of goodwill by segment, which was included in selling, general and administrative expenses was as follows:
. . Millions of ven
_ﬁ Tobacco Pharmaceuticals Foods Others Consolidated
For the year ended
March 31, 2002 11,288 4,643 5,877 408 22217
For the year ended
March 31, 2003 (426) 4.643 7.546 36 1{,799
2. OPERATIONS BRY GEOGRAFPHIC AREA
{For the year ended March 31, 2002) Millions of yen
Western Elimination/ .
Japan Europe Others Total Corparate Consolidated
1. Sales and operating
income (loss) Sales
*(1) Sales 1o customers 3,873,643 302,911 367,619 4,544,174 - 4,544,174
(2) Intersegment sales 39,834 128,782 25,138 193,805 | ( 153,805 ) .-
Total 3913527 | 431,694 392,758 4737980 | ( 193805 )| 4,544,174
Ogeranng expemses 3,758,032 476,213 339,739 4574985 | ( 194,616 ) 4.380,369
Operating income (loss) 154,494 (44,518 ) 53,019 162,995 810 163,808
2. Assets 1,828,501 717,246 189,622 2,735,370 327,706 3,063,076
(For the year ended Marsh 31, 2003) Millions of yen
Japan g:j;;m Others Total Eliminedon | Consolidated
1. Seles and operaring
income {Joss)
Sales
(1) Seles to custorners 3,794,323 316,992 380,948 4,492,263 - 4,492,263
(2) Intersegment sales 39,716 121,364 21,125 182,206 | ( 182,206 ) -
Total 3,834,039 433,356 402,073 4,674,470 | (182,206 ) 4,492263
Operating expenses 3,675,051 460,250 347,294 4,486,636 | ( 183,336 ) 4,303,300
Operating income (joss) 154,988 | (21,933) 54,779 187,833 1,130 188,963
2. Assets 1,745,501 681,909 167,769 2,595,180 362,484 2,957,665

NOTE:

1. Operations by geographic area are categorized based on geographical approximation,
2. Majin countries and areas included in each category other than Japan

1) Western Burope
2) Others

Switzerland, France, and Germany
Canada, Russig, Malaysia, and others

3. Unallocated assets included in Elimination / Corporate are the same as those described in Note 3 of

OPERATION BY INDUSTRY.

4, As deseribed jo ACCOUNTING POLICIES (4)Foreign currency transactions, effective from this fiscal year, the
Group translates profits and losses of consolidated overseas subsidiaries using the average exchange rate of the
fiscal year of individual subsidiaries. As a result of this change, Sales to customers for this fiscal year of
Westem Eurdpe and Others segment increased by JPY 13,370 million and JPY 15,648 million, respectively, as
compared to the previous method. Also, Operating income/(loss) for this fiscal year of Western Europe and
Others segment increased/(decreased) by JPY 936 million and JPY 2,278 million, respectively. There were no
effects of this accounting change on Japan segment.

3. OVERSEAS SALES

(For the year ended March 31, 2002) Millions of yen
Total

1 Qverseas sales 684,089

2 Consolidated sales 4,544,174

3 Percentage of overseas sales to consolidated sales (%) 15.1




O

{For the year ended March 31, 2003) Millions of yen

Total
1 Overseas sales 708,085
~1 2 Consalidated sales - - 4,492 263
3 Percentage of overseas sales to consqlidated sales (%} 15.8 :
NOTE Overseas sales are sales of the Company and consolidated subsidiaries i countries and areas other thap
Japan.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(For the year ended March 31, 2002)
Information is omitted due to immateriality.

(For the year ended March 31, 2003)
Information is omitted due to immateriality.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT FOOTNOTE

Upon the resolution of the meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 7, 2003, the Company decided to change its
acc‘ountmg policy for certain obligations for ermuity payments of the government sponsored defined benefit pension plans in
order to improve the Company’s financial strength. The Company’s annuity-basis obhgnnons which are subject to the
accounting change relate to pension benefits entitled to beneficiaries for their services rendered up to July 1, 1956, as
presaribed by the Public Official Mutual Assistance Association Law. This accounting change recognizes this liability as part
of the Company's liability for retirement benefits considering the actuarially determined computation methods prescribed by
the Revised Accounting Standards for Independent Administrative Institutions. This standard prescribes accounting for
annuity obligations for government sponsored pension plans and became effective from April 1, 2003. Prior fo the change,
annuity-basis contributions had been recorded as expenses when paid.

The aggregate impact of this sccounting change is to fally m-cognize this lisbility and JT will recognize a one-time
extraordinary loss of approximately JPY 185 billion and to decrease net income by approximately JPY 102 billion, net of tax
effects, for the year ending March 31, 2004. This change in accounting will have no effect on the Campany’s cash flows for
the year then ending and thereafter.




